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Administration of the Company - continued
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Administration of the Company - continued

Paying and Information Agent in Germany*
Russell Investments Limited
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Paying Agent in Sweden

Arctic Fund Management AS, Stockholm Filial
Regeringsgatan 38

11 56 Stockholm

Sweden

Paying Agent in Switzerland**
Banque Cantonale de Geneve
Case Postale 2251

1211 Geneve 2

Switzerland

Representative in Switzerland**
Reyl & Cie S.A.

Rue du Rhone 4

1204 Geneva

Switzerland

Paying Agent in Italy

SGSS S.p.A

Via Benigno Crespi, 19/A-MAC2
20159 Milan

Italy

Facilities Agent for Cyprus, Denmark, Finland, Italy, Malta,
the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal and Spain

Carne Global Financial Services Limited,

3rd Floor

55 Charlemont Place

Dublin D02 F985

Ireland

* The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Prospectus, the Key Information Documents, the unaudited semi-annual re-
ports, as well as the audited annual reports, as well as the issue and redemption prices can be obtained free of charge pursuant to Sec. 297 (1)
of the German Capital Investment Code from the office of the German Information Agent as specified above. The net asset value of each of

the relevant Funds and the subscription and redemption prices of the shares of the Funds are published jointly and daily on “www.fundinfo-

.com” for information purposes only and do not constitute an invitation to subscribe for or repurchase the Company’s shares at those prices.

For investors in Germany, the following sub-funds are available:

* Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund
* Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

* Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

* Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

* Russell Investments World Equity Fund

* Russell Investments China Equity Fund

No notification pursuant to Section 310 of the German Capital Investment Code (Kapitalanlagegesetzbuch) has been filed for the following sub-

fund and the units/shares in this sub-fund may not be marketed to investors in the Federal Republic of Germany:

* Russell Investments U.K. Equity Plus Fund

* Russell Investments Global Defensive Equity Fund
* Russell Investments U.S. Growth Fund

* Russell Investments U.S. Value Fund

* Russell Investments Emerging Markets Extended Opportunities Fund

* Russell Investments Global Bond (Euro Hedged) Fund

** ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR QUALIFIED INVESTORS IN SWITZERLAND
Only the Russell Investments China Equity Fund of The Russell Investment Company II Plc (the "Fund”) is compliant with Swiss law for distri-

bution to qualified investors in Switzerland.

The Company and the Fund mentioned above are compliant with Swiss law for offering to qualified investors in Switzerland. Investors in Switzer-
land can obtain the documents of the Company, such as the prospectus, the Articles of Association, the Key Information Documents, and the fi-

nancial reports free of charge from the Swiss representative.

This document may only be issued, circulated or distributed so as not to constitute an offering to the general public in Switzerland. Recipients of
the document in Switzerland should not pass it on to anyone without first consulting their legal or other appropriate professional adviser, or the

Swiss representative.
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Administration of the Company - continued

Each time performance data is published, it should be noted that the past performance is no indication of current or future performance, and that it
does not take account of the commissions and costs incurred on the issue and redemption of shares.

The list of the purchases and sales and further information can be obtained free of charge from the representative in Switzerland.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Background to the Company

Russell Investment Company II plc (the “Company”) was incorporated in Ireland as a public limited company on 1 November
2000. The Company operates under the Companies Act, 2014 (the “Companies Act”) and has been authorised since 8 November
2000 by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) under registration number incorporated in Ireland with registration
number C25353.

The Company is an open-ended investment company with variable capital which is authorised by the Central Bank under the
European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 (as amended) (the
“UCITS Regulations”) and under the Central Bank (Supervision & Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1) (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)) Regulations 2019 (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations™).

The Company is organised in the form of an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds and as at 30 September
2024, has six constituent sub-funds available for investment, Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund,
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund, Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund, Russell Investments U.S. Quant
Fund, Russell Investments World Equity Fund and Russell Investments China Equity Fund (each a “Fund”, collectively the
“Funds”).

Russell Investment Limited (the “Principal Money Manager”), and its affiliate group companies are referred to collectively as
“Russell Investments” in these financial statements.

The Company has appointed Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (the “Manager®) to act as manager to the Company
and each Fund.

The net assets under management for the Company as at 30 September 2024 amounted to EUR 1,762,360,991 (as at 31 March
2024: EUR 1,727,262,006; as at 30 September 2023: 1,836,413,469) and are broken down as follows:

Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets

Funded during Functional 30 September 2024 31 March 2024 30 September 2023
Fund the financial year ended currency 000 000 000
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local 31 March 2013 USD 82,373 72,959 80,727
Currency Fund
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund 31 March 2002 EUR 84,716 81,467 65,159
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund 31 March 2002 EUR 45,727 46,026 33,318
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund 31 March 2002 USD 97,265 87,205 74,373
Russell Investments World Equity Fund 31 March 2005 USD 1,585,442 1,520,011 1,607,606
Russell Investments China Equity Fund 31 March 2018 USD 56,302 47,575 77,420

All shares in Russell Investments Global Bond (Euro Hedged) Fund, Russell Investments Emerging Markets Extended
Opportunities Fund, Russell Investments Global Defensive Equity Fund, Russell Investments U.K. Equity Plus Fund, Russell
Investments U.S. Growth Fund and Russell Investments U.S. Value Fund have been redeemed and the Funds have been closed
and are no longer available for investment. The Company intends to apply to the Central Bank to revoke each closed Fund’s
approval following final disbursement of assets in the relevant Fund.

Each of the Funds may issue income class shares, accumulation class shares or roll-up class shares. All share classes are
accumulating unless otherwise indicated in the name of the share class. All references to “net assets” throughout this document
refer to net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares unless otherwise stated.

Investment Objectives
Please refer to the Company’s prospectus for full details of the Funds’ Investment Objectives and Investment Policies.
There were no changes in the Funds’ Investment Objectives during the six months to 30 September 2024.

U.K. Reporting Fund Status
The Company conducts its affairs so as to enable U.K. reporting fund status to be obtained under the United Kingdom Income
and Corporation Taxes Act, 1988 for the purposes of U.K. taxation for each applicable Fund.
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Combined Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss...........ccccceeevennnen.

Cash at DANK .....ooiiii e

Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative instruments .....

Debtors:

Receivable for investments Sold ............c..ooooiioiiiiiiiiii
Receivable on fund shares issued ............ccooeeviiiiiiieeciieeeeee,
Dividends receivable............cccooviiviioiiiieeeieeeee e
Interest receivable ...........ocveieviiiuieieeeeecce e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 10ss ........c..ccccoeee.

Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:

Cash due to brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative instruments.......

Payable for investments purchased............cccoeeveeeiienieeciiiiiecieeieee
Payable on fund shares redeemed.............cccecvevviviiviiniiciieiciee
Distributions payable on income share classes..............ccooceevennen.
Capital gains tax payable ...........cceviiiiriiieieieieeeee e
Management fees payable..........oocoooieiiiiiiiiieiiee e
Depositary fees payable..........cccooeieoiioiiiiiniineneececeee e
Sub-custodian fees payable...........ccoooeiiiiiiiiie e
Administration fees payable ............cooooioiiiiiiiii e
Audit fees payable .........coooiiiii e
Other fees Payable .........ccoeeiieiiieiiieieeeee e

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

Total Total
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
EUR 000 EUR ‘000
1,720,750 1,687,868
22,305 14,970
32,300 27,201
885 1,681
806 1,200
2,844 3,742
2,851 2,302
1,782,741 1,738,964
(10,926) (6,119)
(845) (167)
(1,221) (1,160)
(3,383) (1,517)
(1,018) (708)
(39) (93)
(2,399) (1,344)
(136) (88)
(136) (99)
(163) (153)
(55) (137)
(59) (117)
(20,380) (11,702)
1,762,361 1,727,262

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Combined Balance Sheet 7



Russell Investment Company II plc

Combined Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Income

DIVIAENAS ..o
INEEreSt INCOIME ...ooiiiiiiiee e e

Net gain (loss) on investment activities ..........ccceverererierienierieieeneeeene

Total investment income (EXPenSe)...........ccceevvreriieniieeiieerieenieeieeneenns

Expenses

Management TS .......c.ooiiriiieiiieeeee e
DEPOSTLATY TEES ...veeviieiiieiieciie ettt
Sub-custodian fEES.........coieiiriiiieiicieiecieeee s
Administration and transfer agency fees ..........ccccooevevieiieciiiieiennnne.
AUAIE FES....ovieiieiieeieie s
Professional feeS.........c.cociiiiiioiiicicce e
Other FEES....cuiiieiieiie et

Total operating eXPenses ...........c..cccveviieiiieiieiiieeieeie e see e

Net income (EXPEISE) .......cccueiiiiiiiiriieiieeiteniee ettt

Finance costs

DISEEDULIONS ...

Profit (loss) for the financial period before taxation

Taxation

Capital GAINS TAX ..oovviviieieiiciieieeeeeee ettt
WithhoIding taX .....c.oooviiiiiiiieiicieieeee e

Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations.......................c..cooon.

Total Total
Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000
19,530 24,094
4,617 6,015
24,147 30,109
115,396 (5,127)
139,543 24,982
(7,227) (9,161)
(127) (145)
(138) (147)
(334) (341
(49) (78)
(81) (103)
(281) (151)
(8,237) (10,126)
131,306 14,856
(15,466) (16,337)
115,840 (1,481)
20 (49)
(2,538) (3,097)
113,322 (4,627)

All amounts in respect of the financial period ended 30 September 2024 arose solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains

or losses other than those dealt with in the Profit and Loss Account.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Combined Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating

Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Total Total
Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations.........................cooiiiii e 113,322 (4,627)
Share transactions
Reinvestment of deemed distributions on accumulation shares...............ccoocoeeeveeennn... 13,896 12,729
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share
ATANSACTIONS ....vveeeeee ettt ettt e e e e e e e st e e e e eaeeeaeeenaeeeseeeaeeeseeeseeenseeseeeaneenneens (38,160) (265,945)
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
SHATENONIARY'S .......oceoiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e nee e 89,058 (257,843)
Foreign currency translation (INOE 1) .......cooieiiriieiiniiiieieeeeie e (53,959) 44,228
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
Beginning of financial period............ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,727,262 2,050,028
End of financial Period............c.oovieiiiiiiiiiiieieet e 1,762,361 1,836,413

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loSs .........cccoovevieviiiieiiiicieeeee e

Cash at DANK (INOTE 2) ..cuviiuieiiiiieieciieieeit ettt et be e beessenseeeeennes
Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative

instruments (Note 2)

Debtors:

Receivable for InvesStmMents SOIA ........oooiviiiiiiiiiiiiie e

Interest receivable

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loSs .......c.ccoevvvviiiiiiniiiieieieeeee

Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:

Cash due to brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative

INSTIUMENTS (INOTE 2) ..ottt ettt ettt et ee e e sre e e sneeneesseeneenes
Payable for investments purchased............ccocerieiiiiieieeeeeeeeee e
Distributions payable on income share classes...........cceveriereeieniniiene e
Capital 2ains tax PAYADIE .......ccuiiuiiiiirieiiiceereee e
Management fees PaAYabIC...........ccveruirieiiiiieiece et
Depositary fees PaYable........c.cciiieiiiieiiiieeese et
Sub-custodian fees PAYADIC..........ccevieiirieieiieieie e
Administration fees Payable ..........cccevieiiirieriiei e e

Audit fees payable

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders..............................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

10 Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)
USD ‘000 USD €000

78,454 69,720

4,375 2,458

867 840

- 746

1,778 1,408

85,474 75,172

(886) (854)

(671) (180)

(170) (194)

(1,135) (765)

(44) (100)

(123) (69)

(23) (10)

31) (13)

®) (7

(10) (21)

(3,101) (2,213)

82,373 72,959




Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD 000 USD 000

Income

INEETESE INCOMIE ...t e et e e e e et e e e e e e eeeeeenneeas 2,764 3,208
Net gain (10Ss) 0n INVEStMENT ACLIVILICS ...eovievverererierieieieieeieeeeeieeie st eie e eee e sreeae e 2,627 (2,585)
Total investment iNCOME (EXPEISE).......cc.eeririiieriierieeiieniienteeieereeereenteesereebeenseesnennne 5,391 623
Expenses

Management fES (INOTE 3) ....iecuierieiiieiieiie ettt ettt stee e re et eesaeeaeessaeenseeseesens (357) (439)

Depositary fEeS (INOTE 4).....iceiiiieieiieiieieeteee ettt ettt sre s sae s saeessenns (23) (13)

Sub-custodian fEes (INOTE 4) .....ceeriiriieieiiieierieeiete ettt ettt eraeae e eaesseensens (34) (20)

Administration and transfer agency fees (NOte 4)......ccoovvieriieienieieneeiee e 21) (26)

AUIE FEOS. .. ettt sttt sttt et a e et e ae e se et e ste et e teenseereenseeneenaen (11) (1D

Professional fEES.........ciiriririiriiicier e 5) (8)

OtNET FEES. ettt b e et e et e et e e s aaeeabe e beessaeesseessaeenseenseesens (33) (10)
Total OPErating EXPEIMSES .........cccueeiiiiiiiiiieiieiie et eriee ettt et e et e e bt e steeebeeteesabeebeensee e (484) (527)
INet iNCOME (EXPEIISE) .......oeiieeiieeiieiieeieeiteeiteeeteesteesbeeseesseessseesseesseessseesseesssesnseesseessseans 4,907 96
Finance costs

DiStribULIONS (INOTE 6)..e.vveueiieieieiiieieeiieieeteeee ettt ste et e sbeseeebeesae s e eseessesseessesseensesseessenns (2,195) (2,403)
Profit (loss) for the financial period before taxation....................c..cccociiiininn 2,712 (2,307)
Taxation (Note 7)

CaAPItAl GAINS TAX .veevviviieretietieiieeet ettt et ettt e e te e b e eae e s e eseesaesseessesbeessebeessesseeseennas 22 (53)

WIthROLAING tAX .vieviiiiieieii ittt ettt ettt e saesre e sseesaeseessenns (89) (108)
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations................c.cccocooeiiiiiiiinienie e 2,645 (2,468)

All amounts arose solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the
Profit and Loss Account.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund 11



Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD 000 USD 000
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations...............c..cccocoiiiiiiiniiieee 2,645 (2,468)
Share transactions
Reinvestment of deemed distributions on accumulation shares (Note 0)...................... 489 443
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share
tranSACtIONS (INOLE 8)..vvieiieiiiieiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e et et eebeeaeessbeenbeeneeeene 6,280 (1,563)
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
SRATENONIACY'S .......cc.oiiiiiiiicieccee ettt e e eebeestbeebeesee e 9,414 (3,588)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
Beginning of financial Period............cvecvivieiiiieiiriieierie e 72,959 84,315
End of financial period...........cocoiieiiiieieieee e 82,373 80,727

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments

30 September 2024

Principal
Amount *000

Fair Value
USD 000

Fund

%

Principal

Amount 000

Fair Value  Fund
USD 000 %

BRL 7,013

11,598
4,574
9,722

1,045
232
178

CLP 180,000
650,000

170,000

COP 2,486,000
998,500
2,073,700
963,100
1,191,000

5,175,800

292,800
4,185,900
4,418,300
5,405,000
7,779,200

CZK 20,000
13,000

62,860

DOP 600

2,000

Transferable Securities (91.58%)

Long Term Bonds and Notes (89.52%)

Brazil (7.52%)
Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional
10.000% due
01/01/27 oo 1,265 1.54
10.000% due
01/01/29 ..o 2,029 2.46
10.000% due
01/01/31 oo 778 0.95
10.000% due
01/01/33 oo 1,631 1.98
10.000% due
01/01/35 ..o 172 0.21
6.000% due 15/05/35.. 183 0.22
6.000% due 15/08/50.. 135 0.16
6,193 7.52

Chile (1.53%)

Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos

5.800% due 01/10/34 .. 218 0.27
6.200% due 01/10/40.. 843 1.02
5.100% due 15/07/50.. 199 0.24
1,260 1.53
Colombia (8.40%)
Colombia TES
7.500% due 26/08/26.. 589 0.71
5.750% due 03/11/27.. 220 0.27
6.000% due 28/04/28 .. 453 0.55
7.750% due 18/09/30.. 215 0.26
7.000% due 26/03/31 .. 253 0.31
7.000% due 30/06/32.. 1,062 1.29
13.250% due
09/02/33 oo 83 0.10
7.250% due 18/10/34 .. 832 1.01
6.250% due 09/07/36.. 776 0.94
9.250% due 28/05/42 .. 1,143 1.39
7.250% due 26/10/50.. 1,291 1.57
6,917 8.40
Czech Republic (4.07%)
Czech Republic Government Bonds
2.500% due 25/08/28 .. 859 1.04
0.950% due 15/05/30.. 504 0.61
1.500% due 24/04/40 .. 1,990 242
3,353 4.07
Dominican Republic (0.06%)
Dominican Republic Bonds
10.875% due
14/01/26 ..c.oouvvcinnnee 10 0.01
Dominican Republic International Bonds
13.000% due
10/06/34 ..o 40 0.05
50 0.06

HUF

IDR

JMD

INR

COP

TRY

90,000
166,040
119,150
160,000

50,000
265,590
124,460
120,000
180,030
386,300

39,000

7,453,000

3,660,000
4,500,000
7,644,000
12,500,000
7,518,000
10,038,000
10,000,000
1,337,000
2,525,000
4,939,000
4,704,000
21,620,000
5,292,000
462,000
30,800,000
9,565,000
4,761,000

45,000

32,000

1,370,000

68,000

Hungary (4.71%)
Hungary Government Bonds

3.000% due 27/10/27 .. 235 0.28
4.500% due 23/03/28... 450 0.55
6.750% due 22/10/28.. 348 0.42
3.250% due 22/10/31.. 383 0.46
4.500% due 27/05/32 .. 128 0.16
4.750% due 24/11/32... 688 0.83
2.250% due 20/04/33 .. 264 0.32
2.250% due 22/06/34 .. 244 0.30
3.000% due 27/10/38... 353 0.43
3.000% due 25/04/41 .. 714 0.87
4.000% due 28/04/51 .. 76 0.09
3,883 4.71
Indonesia (12.70%)
Indonesia Treasury Bonds
5.500% due 15/04/26.. 487 0.59
10.000% due
15/02/28 .o 268 0.33
6.125% due 15/05/28 .. 297 0.36
6.375% due 15/08/28 .. 508 0.62
9.000% due 15/03/29.. 915 1.11
6.875% due 15/04/29 .. 511 0.62
8.250% due 15/05/29 .. 717 0.87
6.500% due 15/02/31.. 666 0.81
8.750% due 15/05/31 .. 99 0.12
6.375% due 15/04/32 .. 166 0.20
7.000% due 15/02/33 .. 338 0.41
6.625% due 15/02/34 .. 315 0.38
8.375% due 15/03/34 .. 1,616 1.96
6.750% due 15/07/35 .. 356 0.43
7.500% due 15/05/38.. 33 0.04
7.125% due 15/06/38 .. 2,120 2.57
8.375% due 15/04/39 .. 727 0.88
7.125% due 15/06/43 .. 326 0.40
10,465  12.70
Jamaica (0.37%)
Jamaica Government International Bonds
9.625% due 03/11/30.. 305 0.37
Luxembourg (1.10%)
African Development Bank
7.200% due 29/05/29 .. 387 0.47
Asian Development Bank
11.500% due
03/10/25 oo 336 0.41
European Bank for Reconstruction &
Development
Zero Coupon due
10/11/30 e 185 0.22
908 1.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Principal Fair Value  Fund Principal Fair Value  Fund
Amount >000 USD °000 % Amount >000 USD °000 %
Malaysia (10.20%) 1,300 1.750% due 25/04/32... 269 033
Malaysia Government Bonds 3,305  6.000% due 25/10/33 .. 912 1.11
MYR 3389 3.906% due 15/07/26.. 831  1.01 2008 244
3,764 3.900% due 30/11/26.. 925 112 )
1,442 3.502% due 31/05/27.. 351 042 Romania (1.34%)
998 3.899% due 16/11/27.. 246 0.30 Romania Government Bonds
1410 3.519% due 20/04/28.. 343 o4r RON 1,000 5.800% due 26/07/27 .. 23 027
4,853 3.733% due 15/06/28... 1,188 144 4,510 4.750% due 11/10/34... 879 107
1371 4.504% due 30/04/29.. 347 0.42 1,102 1.34
1,558 3.885% due 15/08/29.. 384 047 South Africa (14.09%)
3,801 4.498% due 15/04/30.. 964 1.17 Republic of South Africa Government Bonds
2,129 2.632% due 15/04/31 .. 485 059 zaR 581 8.000% due 31/01/30.. 33 0.04
2,556 3.582% due 15/07/32 .. 614 0.74 4,989 7.000% due 28/02/31 .. 259 0.31
205 3.828% due 05/07/34.. 50 0.06 22,562 8.250% due 31/03/32.. 1227 149
1,619 4.893% due 08/06/38.. 434 053 20.867  8.875% duc 28/02/35 . 1605 195
1,009 4.054% due 18/04/39.. 249 030 21,725 8.500% due 31/01/37.. 1,095 133
989 4.696% due 15/10/42.. 261 032 19,948  9.000% due 31/01/40.. 1013 123
3,050 4.065% due 15/06/50... 731 089 57,689 8.750% due 31/01/44 .. 2,806  3.41
8,403  10.20 73,349 8.750% due 28/02/48 .. 3566 433
Mexico (10.83%) 11,604  14.09
Mexico Bonos Thailand (1.46%)
MXN 8,061  5.750% due 05/03/26.. 390 047 Thailand Government Bonds
2,357 7.000% due 03/09/26.. 15014 1yp 3,774 2.875% due 17/12/28.. 120 0.14
22,930 7.500% due 03/06/27... L125 137 36,000 1.600% due 17/12/29.. 1,084 1.32
2,350 8.500% due 01/03/29.. 117 0.14
8,108  8.500% due 31/05/29.. 404 049 1,204 146
32277 7.750% due 29/05/31 .. 1,532 1.86 Turkey (2.61%)
8,760  7.500% due 26/05/33 .. 400 0.49 Turkiye Government Bonds
13222 8.500% due 18/11/38... 62 076 12.600% due
30,849 7.750% due 13/11/42.. 1314 160 TRY 6,983 01/10/25 crovovvvovvreeen, 162 020
28314 8.000% due 07/11/47.. 1223 148 17.300% due
32,157 8.000% due 31/07/53 .. 1376 1.67 4730 19/07/28 coovveoereeeee.. 101 012
Mexico Udibonos 17.800% due
6,067  4.500% due 22/11/35.. 299 036 5,000 13/07/33 oo, 104 0.13
8017 10.83 26.200% due
61,799 05/10/33 wovvvrrrrrero 1,784 2.16
Peru (3.07%)
Peru Government Bonds 2,151 2.01
PEN 1 6.950% due 12/08/31 .. - 0.00 Ukraine (0.03%)
2,960 6.900% due 12/08/37 .. 821 1.00 Ukraine Government Bonds
840  5.350% due 12/08/40 .. 198 024 19.750% due
4486  6.850% due 12/02/42.. 1240 150 UAH 1,000 05/11/25 oo 25 0.03
1,000 6.714% due 12/02/55 . 274 033 United Kingdom (1.50%)
2,533 3.07 Corp. Andina de Fomento
Philippines (0.67%) YO 3000000 TROMdn 300120 s 047
Philippines Government Bonds 008 DO o due - :
PHP 9,000  2.875% due 09/07/30... 139 0.17 1,000,000 7.250% due 15/04/31.. 126015
16,600  4.000% due 22/07/31 . 270 0.3 European Banl for Reconstruction &
6,600  8.125% due 16/12/35... 140  0.17 Development
Zero Coupon due
549 067 TRy 23,000 12/04/27 cooooooere.. 314 038
Poland (2.44%) INR 4,000  6.750% due 14/03/31 .. 48 0.06
Republic of Poland Government Bonds
PLN 3,390 2.750% due 25/04/28 .. 827  1.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Principal Fair Value  Fund Principal Fair Value  Fund
Amount 000 USD 000 % Amount 000 USD ’000 %
26,000  6.875% due 30/07/31 .. 311 0.38 Money Market Instruments (0.13%)
1,237 1.50 Egypt (0.13%)
United States (0.72%) Egypt Treasury Bills
Inter-American Development Bank Zero Coupon due
CRC 100,000  6.650% due 06/02/31 .. 194 023 EGP 4,475 11/03/25 oo 83 0.10
International Bank for Reconstruction & 1,100  18/03/25 ....ooeeeeennnn. 20 0.03
Development 103 0.13
0,
INR 33,500  6.890% due 06/02/30.. 401 0.49 Total Money Market
395 0.72 Instruments.................. 103 0.13
Uruguay (0.10%)
Uruguay Government International Bonds : ;\Lumbe,l;) 00
UYU 3275 3.875% due 02/07/40.. 82 0.10 R
o,
Total Long Term i?;e;tlglglgg;n)ds (1.75%)
Bonds and Notes .......... 73,744  89.52 e
2 Russell Investment
Short Term Investments (2.06%) Company 111 plc Russell
Brazil (0.54%) Investments U.S. Dollar
Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional Cash Fund II Class SW
10.000% due Roll-up Shares............... 1,442 1.75
BRL 2,385  01/01/25 .o 447 0.54
Total Investment
Indonesia (0.45%) Funds ..........ccccoovvnnnne 1,442 1.75
Indonesia Treasury Bonds Total Investments
IDR 5,597,000  6.500% due 15/06/25 .. 371 0.45 fvest .
excluding Financial
Malaysia (0.40%) Derivative
Malaysia Government Bonds Instruments................. 76,983  93.46
MYR 1,099  3.882% due 14/03/25 .. 267 0.33
244 3.955% due 15/09/25 .. 60 0.07
327 0.40
Mexico (0.60%)
Mexico Bonos
10.000% due
MXN 4,796 05/12/24 ..o 244 0.30
4,959  5.000% due 06/03/25 .. 247 0.30
491 0.60
Ukraine (0.07%)
Ukraine Government Bonds
19.700% due
UAH 2,290 06/08/25 .....oovvvveinnnn. 58 0.07
Total Short Term
Investments................... 1,694 2.06
Total Transferable
Securities ...................... 75,438  91.58
Financial Derivative Instruments (0.71%)
Open Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts (0.55%)
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold 000 USD 000 %
08/10/2024 BRL 11,809 USD 2,150 17 0.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold ’000 USD €000 %o

05/11/2024 BRL 4,963 USD 876 32 0.04
05/11/2024 BRL 2,774 USD 486 21 0.03
18/11/2024 BRL 10,620 USD 1,892 49 0.06
18/02/2025 BRL 6,534 USD 1,259 (81) (0.11)
23/04/2025 BRL 1,182 USD 212 (D) 0.00
15/10/2024 CHF 639 USD 757 1 0.00
12/11/2024 CHF 347 USD 413 - 0.00
15/10/2024 CLP 59,981 USD 64 3 0.00
05/11/2024 CLP 423,911 USD 454 18 0.02
12/11/2024 CLP 404,264 USD 440 11 0.01
19/11/2024 CNY 12,748 USD 1,802 27 0.03
02/12/2024 CNY 6,560 USD 930 12 0.01
15/04/2025 EGP 16,099 USD 300 7 0.00
15/10/2024 HUF 99,348 USD 281 2) 0.00
15/10/2024 HUF 929,019 USD 2,584 25 0.03
15/10/2024 HUF 173,469 USD 489 2) 0.00
11/10/2024 INR 14,956 USD 178 - 0.00
18/11/2024 KRW 3,197,482 USD 2,349 92 0.12
08/10/2024 MXN 4,891 USD 269 (19) (0.02)
28/10/2024 MXN 1,166 USD 59 - 0.00
28/10/2024 MXN 6,010 USD 310 4) 0.00
05/11/2024 MXN 15,790 USD 827 (26) (0.03)
05/11/2024 MXN 8,324 USD 414 9 0.01
09/12/2024 MXN 13,460 USD 673 7 0.01
09/12/2024 MXN 3,787 USD 194 3) 0.00
19/11/2024 MYR 2,374 USD 545 33 0.04
07/03/2025 NGN 309,872 USD 181 (5) (0.01)
11/10/2024 PEN 1,418 USD 379 2 0.00
15/10/2024 PHP 4,787 USD 81 4 0.00
04/11/2024 PHP 39,368 USD 670 31 0.04
18/11/2024 PHP 29,132 USD 508 11 0.01
04/12/2024 PHP 22,878 USD 405 2 0.00
15/10/2024 PLN 4,576 USD 1,173 19 0.02
12/11/2024 PLN 3,778 USD 954 30 0.04
25/11/2024 PLN 2,519 USD 647 9 0.01
22/10/2024 THB 102,682 USD 2,859 337 0.42
22/10/2024 THB 12,636 USD 374 19 0.02
09/12/2024 THB 30,717 USD 908 50 0.06
28/04/2025 TRY 16,463 USD 350 42 0.05
09/05/2025 TRY 27,683 USD 602 49 0.06
08/10/2024 USD 661 BRL 3,815 (39) (0.05)
18/11/2024 USD 3,129 BRL 17,666 (98) (0.13)
15/10/2024 USD 722 CHF 639 (36) (0.04)
12/11/2024 USD 412 CHF 347 (D 0.00
05/11/2024 USD 467 CLP 423911 (5) (0.01)
12/11/2024 USD 400 CLP 374,378 (16) (0.02)
08/10/2024 USD 513 COP 2,091,617 13 0.01
28/10/2024 USD 711 COP 3,037,240 (14) (0.02)
05/11/2024 USD 1,438 COP 5,972,933 13 0.02
05/11/2024 USD 277 COP 1,195,636 () (0.01)
15/10/2024 USD 369 CZK 8,563 (10) (0.01)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought 000 Sold *000 USD €000 %
15/10/2024  USD 303 CZK 7,038 9) (0.01)
12/11/2024  USD 519 CZK 11,973 (12) (0.01)
15/10/2024  USD 1,747 HUF 635,656 (38) (0.04)
15/10/2024  USD 337 HUF 119,429 2 0.00
15/10/2024  USD 360 HUF 129,448 4 0.00
28/10/2024  USD 1,697 IDR 26,093,811 (20) (0.02)
08/10/2024 USD 250 MXN 4,891 1 0.00
28/10/2024  USD 2,139 MXN 38,940 159 0.20
05/11/2024  USD 331 MXN 6,259 13 0.02
09/12/2024  USD 1,916 MXN 38,801 (42) (0.06)
19/11/2024  USD 573 MYR 2,374 5) (0.01)
11/10/2024  USD 375 PEN 1,416 5) 0.00
05/11/2024  USD 856 PEN 3,201 4) 0.00
04/11/2024  USD 88 PHP 5,129 3) 0.00
19/11/2024  USD 1,277 PHP 72,880 21 (0.03)
19/11/2024 USD 1,140 SGD 1,502 (3%5) (0.04)
28/04/2025 USD 244 TRY 10,688 (10) (0.01)
15/10/2024  USD 457 ZAR 8,407 (30) (0.04)
28/10/2024  USD 1,916 ZAR 34,615 (90) (0.11)
12/11/2024  USD 1,280 ZAR 23,630 (87) (0.11)
15/10/2024  ZAR 2,748 USD 154 5 0.01
28/10/2024  ZAR 25,031 USD 1,386 64 0.08
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts...........ccccecevverenuennee 1,239 1.50
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts .............ccoceveeeenen. (785) (0.95)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts........ 454 0.55
Currency Options Purchased (0.11%)
Notional
Amount Fair Value Fund
M USD ‘000 %o
Ireland (0.04%)
231 Putat5.59 of USD BRL
Expiring October 2024 ..........coevieiieiieieiieienie et 6 0.01
308 Putat5.37 of USD BRL
Expiring October 2024 ..........coeiieiiiieieeieee e 1 0.00
331 Putat 18.56 of USD MXN
Expiring October 2024 ..........oooiiiiiieieiieee et - 0.00
331 Putat 17.92 of USD MXN
EXpiring October 2024 .........oovvieeieiiieiieeie ettt - 0.00
423 Putat 1,333.00 of USD KRW
Expiring November 2024 ..........ccoovvivieiinieierieeiene e snens 11 0.01
154 Call at 18.21 of USD ZAR
Expiring November 2024 .........cccooevevierieiiinineneseiceeeeee e 1 0.00
1,201 Call at 0.87 of USD CHF
Expiring December 2024 .........cocooiiiieiiieee et 3 0.01
1,201 Call at 0.85 of USD CHF
Expiring December 2024 .........cooooiiiiiiiiieee e 9 0.01
31 0.04

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

Notional
Amount
USD 000

308

303

303

332

633

154

220

220

661

161

332

653

Total Currency Options Purchased (Premium paid USD 83,057)

Israel (0.04%)
Put at 17.69 of USD ZAR

Expiring October 2024.....................

Put at 5.55 of USD BRL

Expiring October 2024.....................

Put at 5.36 of USD BRL

Expiring October 2024....................

Put at 19.13 of USD MXN

Expiring February 2025 ...................

Put at 1,307.00 of USD KRW

Expiring November 2024 .................

Call at 18.59 of USD ZAR

Expiring November 2024 .................

United States (0.03%)
Put at 5.34 of USD BRL

Expiring September 2024.................

Put at 5.55 of USD BRL

Expiring September 2024.................

Put at 5.46 of USD BRL

Expiring November 2024 .................

Put at 5.67 of USD BRL

Expiring November 2024 .................

Put at 18.06 of USD MXN

Expiring February 2025 ...................

Call at 0.89 of USD CHF

Expiring November 2024 .................

Currency Options Written ((0.05)%)

Notional
Amount
USD 000

(1,201)

(332)

(331)

Treland ((0.02)%)
Put at 0.84 of USD CHF

Expiring December 2024 .................

Israel ((0.01)%)
Call at 19.63 of USD MXN

Expiring November 2024 .................

United States ((0.02)%)
Call at 18.90 of USD MXN

Expiring October 2024....................

Total Currency Options Written (Premium received USD (38,845)) ...occvvvvievevirieenenenn

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Fair Value Fund
USD 000 %
10 0.01
8 0.01
2 0.00
4 0.01
9 0.01
1 0.00
34 0.04
- 0.00
5 0.01
11 0.01
7 0.01
1 0.00
- 0.00
24 0.03
89 0.11
Fair Value Fund
USD <000 %
(19) (0.02)
(8) (0.01)
(16) (0.02)
(43) (0.05)




Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

Interest Rate Swaps (0.10%)

Notional Fund Fund Termination Fair Value Fund
Ccey Amount ‘000 Pays Receives Date USD 000 %o
HUF 752,000 HUF 6 Month BUBOR 17.47% 27/10/2025 60 0.07
HUF 94,000 HUF 6 Month BUBOR 16.39% 27/10/2033 (37) (0.05)
THB Less than a
THB 48,000 2.32% month THOR 24/04/2026 (6) (0.01)
THB Less than a
THB 32,000 2.31% month THOR 24/04/2026 4) 0.00
THB Less than a
THB 80,000 2.30% month THOR 25/04/2026 9) (0.01)
BRL Less than a
BRL 847 11.14% month BRL CDI  03/01/2033 13 0.02
BRL Less than a
BRL 938 11.17% month BRL CDI  03/01/2033 14 0.02
BRL Less than a
BRL 854 11.23% month BRL CDI  03/01/2033 12 0.01
BRL Less than a
BRL 856 11.20% month BRL CDI  03/01/2033 12 0.01
BRL Less than a
BRL 857 11.18% month BRL CDI ~ 03/01/2033 13 0.02
CNY Less than a month
CNY 5,000 CNRR 3.71% 30/08/2029 - 0.00
CZK 10,340 CZK 6 Month PRIBOR 3.07% 01/10/2033 (1) 0.00
CZK 5,804 CZK 6 Month PRIBOR 3.07% 01/10/2033 (D) 0.00
THB Less than a
THB 32,000 2.31% month THOR 24/04/2026 4 0.00
THB Less than a
THB 48,000 2.32% month THOR 24/04/2026 6 0.01
THB Less than a
THB 80,000 2.30% month THOR 25/04/2026 9 0.01
Interest rate swaps at POSItive Fair VAIUC..........ceevuiiiiiiiiieiciecie e 143 0.17
Interest rate swaps at negative fair VAIUC...........cceviriiriieieiiciecccee e e (58) (0.07)
Interest rate swaps at fair value ... 85 0.10
Total Financial Derivative InStruments...............c.ccoccooiiiiiiiniiniiiiecc e 585 0.71
Fair Value Fund
USD €000 %
Total Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
L0SS (95.24%0) ..ot 78,454 95.24
Total Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or
LSS (1.07)0) oottt (886) (1.07)
Net Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(94.17%0) oot 77,568 94.17
Other Net Assets (5.83%0) ..ccvvviiiviieiieeiieeeee e 4,805 5.83
NEEASSEES ... e e e e 82,373 100.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund 19



Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

Analysis of gross assets

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange liSting............ccccevvevieeiecieniecieneeieie s
MoNey MATKet INSEIUMEINLS. .......eouieieiiieiecieeeiete ettt et et e e st esaesseesaeseeseeseeseensesseensesseensenseensaseeneensennes
Investment funds (UCTTS) ....cc.oiiiiiiiiiieieir ettt ettt ettt
Over the counter financial derivative INSIUMENES ...........cccvieriieiieeieeiieeie e eeee e e eaeereeseveeaeessee s
L0 11 1<) U T £SO

The counterparties for the open forward foreign currency exchange contracts are:

Bank of America Merrill Lynch Goldman Sachs
Barclays Bank HSBC

BNP Paribas JP Morgan
Citibank Morgan Stanley

% of
gross assets

88.26
0.12
1.69
1.72
8.21

100.00

The counterparties for the currency options purchased are Bank of America Merrill Lynch, Goldman Sachs and Morgan Stanley.

The counterparties for the currency options written are Goldman Sachs and Morgan Stanley.

The counterparty for the interest rate swaps is Morgan Stanley.

Fair Value Hierarchy (Note 10)

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by investment type)

measured at fair value at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.
As at 30 September 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Total
USD 000 USD €000 USD €000 USD 000
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUIILIES........cc..cvvviieiuieeiiieeeieeeie e - 74,874 564 75,438
Money market instruments.... - 103 - 103
Investment fUnds ..........cccoeeviiiiiiiiece e - 1,442 - 1,442
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange
COMITACES. ...vvieeueieeetee et e ettt eett e et e et e et e e e eteeeeaeeeesaeeeteeeeteeaeneeaans - 1,239 - 1,239
Currency options purchased at fair value............ccccceveeirenecnne - 89 - 89
Interest rate swaps at fair value ..........cocevevienenieneneccecece, - 143 - 143
TOtAl ASSEES......ovviiiiieeiieeeeeee e - 77,890 564 78,454
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
COMETACTS ..ottt ettt sttt st ettt bt et se e st et ene et e e teeeneensennas - (785) - (785)
Currency options written at fair value..........ccocooevenenincncnene. - (43) - (43)
Interest rate swaps at fair value ..........ccoevevvevienienienesececeeeee, - (58) - (58)
Total liabilities..............cccoooiiiiii e - (886) - (886)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

20 Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund



Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
As at 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUrTtes. ......c.evvverieirieiieeeeeee e
Money market inStruments............oceeevereerierierienienienenesesennens
Investment funds ...........ocoevieieiiiiiiiieeeeee e
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONTIACES. ..ottt
Currency options purchased at fair value..........cccccoeevereninnne.
Interest rate swaps at fair value

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open futures contracts .........c.cccceeevererenenne
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONTTACES. ...ttt
Interest rate swaps at fair value .........ccccoevevinenenininie,

Total liabilities....................ooooiiiiiiiii e,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD <000 USD <000 USD <000 USD ‘000
67,145 402 67,547
168 - 168
1,448 - 1,448
507 - 507
1 - 1
49 - 49
69,318 402 69,720
(15) - - (15)
(560) - (560)
(279) - (279)
(15) (839) - (854)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund 21



Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio*

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Acquisition Cost

Disposal Proceeds

Portfolio Securities USD <000 Portfolio Securities USD <000
Russell Investment Company I1I plc Russell Investment Company 111 plc
Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II
Class SW Roll-up Shares 3,158  Class SW Roll-up Shares (3,187)
Turkiye Government Bonds Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional
26.200% due 05/10/2033 1,723  10.000% due 01/01/2033 (1,472)
Indonesia Treasury Bonds Mexico Bonos
7.125% due 15/06/2038 1,428  10.000% due 05/12/2024 (828)
Colombia TES Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional
7.250% due 26/10/2050 1,009  10.000% due 01/01/2029 (660)
Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos Peru Government Bonds
6.200% due 01/10/2040 992 5.400% due 12/08/2034 (648)
Republic of South Africa Government Bonds 6.950% due 12/08/2031 (568)
8.750% due 31/01/2044 988 Colombia TES
Mexico Bonos 7.500% due 26/08/2026 (524)
8.000% due 31/07/2053 915 Republic of Poland Government Bonds
Colombia TES 2.750% due 25/04/2028 (518)
6.250% due 09/07/2036 686 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos
Peru Government Bonds 4.700% due 01/09/2030 (498)
6.900% due 12/08/2037 682 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional
Republic of South Africa Government Bonds 10.000% due 01/01/2025 477)
9.000% due 31/01/2040 649 Peru Government Bonds
Colombia TES 5.940% due 12/02/2029 (470)
9.250% due 28/05/2042 628 Hungary Government Bonds
Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional 6.750% due 22/10/2028 (423)
10.000% due 01/01/2033 603 Israel Government Bonds - Fixed
10.000% due 01/01/2029 539 2.800% due 29/11/2052 (415)
10.000% due 01/01/2031 533 1.500% due 31/05/2037 (407)
Hungary Government Bonds Thailand Government Bonds
4.750% due 24/11/2032 504  1.600% due 17/12/2029 (362)
Romania Government Bonds Republic of South Africa Government Bonds
4.750% due 11/10/2034 482 7.000% due 28/02/2031 (361)
Czech Republic Government Bonds Mexico Bonos
1.500% due 24/04/2040 425 8.000% due 07/11/2047 (342)
Republic of South Africa Government Bonds Republic of South Africa Government Bonds
8.750% due 28/02/2048 418  8.750% due 31/01/2044 (332)
Mexico Bonos Czech Republic Government Bonds
7.500% due 03/06/2027 401  0.950% due 15/05/2030 (327)
7.500% due 26/05/2033 397 Colombia TES
African Development Bank 7.000% due 30/06/2032 (316)
7.200% due 29/05/2029 384  9.250% due 28/05/2042 (305)
Hungary Government Bonds Hungary Government Bonds
3.250% due 22/10/2031 345 3.000% due 25/04/2041 (292)
Indonesia Treasury Bonds Peru Government Bonds
6.750% due 15/07/2035 343 7.300% due 12/08/2033 (261)
Republic of South Africa Government Bonds Republic of South Africa Government Bonds
8.750% due 28/02/2048 338 8.750% due 28/02/2048 (259)

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases exceeding 1% of total cost of purchases, and sales exceeding
1% of total proceeds. At a minimum the twenty largest purchases and twenty largest sales must be shown. Should there have been
less than that amount of transactions, all such transactions have been disclosed. Securities held to maturity, which matured during the
reporting period, have been excluded from the Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio.

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the reference period may be obtained free of charge from the Company’s
Administrator or from the paying agent or paying and information agents in each country of distribution.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio* - continued

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Acquisition Cost Disposal Proceeds
Portfolio Securities USD <000 Portfolio Securities USD ‘000
Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos
10.000% due 01/01/2027 337 6.200% due 01/10/2040 (258)
European Bank for Reconstruction & Development Indonesia Treasury Bonds
Zero Coupon due 12/04/2027 318 5.500% due 15/04/2026 (238)
Malaysia Government Bonds Colombia TES
4.893% due 08/06/2038 314 6.250% due 09/07/2036 (235)
European Bank for Reconstruction & Development Hungary Government Bonds
6.875% due 30/07/2031 310 4.500% due 23/03/2028 (231)
Indonesia Treasury Bonds Peru Government Bonds
6.875% due 15/04/2029 306 6.150% due 12/08/2032 (230)
Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional
10.000% due 01/01/2027 (227)

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases exceeding 1% of total cost of purchases, and sales exceeding
1% of total proceeds. At a minimum the twenty largest purchases and twenty largest sales must be shown. Should there have been
less than that amount of transactions, all such transactions have been disclosed. Securities held to maturity, which matured during the
reporting period, have been excluded from the Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio.

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the reference period may be obtained free of charge from the Company’s
Administrator or from the paying agent or paying and information agents in each country of distribution.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
EUR 000 EUR ‘000
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loSs .........cccoovevieviiiieiiiicieeeee e 82,255 78,990
Cash at DANK (INOTE 2) ..cuviiuieiiiiieieciieieeit ettt et be e beessenseeeeennes 1,092 1,102
Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative
INSTIUMENES (INOTE 2) 1.vieuiiiiieieitieieeteeie ettt ettt et e et et e eseeseesseenaesseenaeseensanseeneennes 537 642
Debtors:
Receivable on fund shares iSSUE .........cceiieriiiiiiieiiiieeeeeee e 1 15
INtEreSt TECEIVADIE ... e et e s 1,258 997
85,143 81,746
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loSs .......c.ccoevvvviiiiiiniiiieieieeeee (53) (178)
Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:
Payable for investments purchased............coeceeierieriiieneeiee e - (2)
Payable on fund shares redeemed............cocoereiiiiiriiieieceeee e (218) (2)
Distributions payable on income share classes...........ocevereerieierieiiene e (1) -
Management fees Payable..........coieiiiiiiiiieee e (117) (61)
Depositary fees PAYADIC.........cccvierieiiieiieie ettt () 5)
Sub-custodian fees PAYADIC..........cccevieiiiieiiiiciete e %) 2)
Administration fees Payable ..........ccevieiiirieiiiieece e ) (7)
AUt £8ES PAYADIC ...ovvieviiiiciieie e (16) (22)
(427) (279)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders.............................. 84,716 81,467

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000

Income

INEETESE INCOMIE ...t e et e e e e et e e e e e e eeeeeenneeas 1,476 1,138
Net gain (10Ss) 0n INVEStMENT ACLIVILICS ...eovievverererierieieieieeieeeeeieeie st eie e eee e sreeae e 1,338 (2,132)
Total investment iNCOME (EXPEISE).......cc.eeririiieriierieeiieniienteeieereeereenteesereebeenseesnennne 2,814 (994)
Expenses

Management fES (INOTE 3) ....iecuierieiiieiieiie ettt ettt stee e re et eesaeeaeessaeenseeseesens (334) (262)

Depositary fEeS (INOTE 4).....iceiiiieieiieiieieeteee ettt ettt sre s sae s saeessenns (6) (7)

Sub-custodian fEes (INOLE 4) .....ceeriiiiieiiiiieierieeieie ettt sttt seesaesaesseenneas 4) 4

Administration and transfer agency fees (NOte 4)......ccoovvieriieienieieneeiee e (26) (26)

AUIE FEOS. .. ettt sttt sttt et a e et e ae e se et e ste et e teenseereenseeneenaen 9) (1D

Professional fEES.........ciiriririiriiicier e 5) (6)

OtNET FEES. ettt b e et e et e et e e s aaeeabe e beessaeesseessaeenseenseesens (13) (7)
Total OPErating EXPEIMSES .........cccueeiiiiiiiiiieiieiie et eriee ettt et e et e e bt e steeebeeteesabeebeensee e (397) (323)
INet iNCOME (EXPEIISE) .......oeiieeiieeiieiieeieeiteeiteeeteesteesbeeseesseessseesseesseessseesseesssesnseesseessseans 2,417 (1,317)
Finance costs

DiStribULIONS (INOTE 6)..e.vveueiieieieiiieieeiieieeteeee ettt ste et e sbeseeebeesae s e eseessesseessesseensesseessenns (1,504) (592)
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations..................cccooooeiviiiiiiniiniie e 913 (1,909)

All amounts arose solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the
Profit and Loss Account.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
EUR 000 EUR 000
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations................c.ccocoeiiiiiiiniiniiieeeee e 913 (1,909)
Share transactions
Reinvestment of deemed distributions on accumulation shares (Note 0)...................... 1,502 591
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share
tranSACtIONS (INOLE 8)..vvieiieiiiieiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e et et eebeeaeessbeenbeeneeeene 834 1,811
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
Y B 1 10 [ 1) R 3,249 493
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
Beginning of financial Period............cvecvivieiiiiiiiiiicierie et 81,467 64,666
End of financial Period...........cocoiiiiiiieieiee e 84,716 65,159

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Schedule of Investments

30 September 2024

Principal Fair Value  Fund Fair Value  Fund
Amount 000 EUR 000 % Amount 000 EUR 000 %
Transferable Securities (91.87%) 200  6.500% due 06/12/32.. 215 0.25
Long Term Bonds and Notes (81.31%) 1,200 6.750% due 05/10/33 .. 1315 155
Belgium (1.12%) Deutsche Bank AG
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA 1,200 4.000% due 24/06/32.. 1,199 141
EUR 927 3.950% due 22/03/44 .. 948 1.12 E.ON SE
Denmark (0.36%) 558 4.125% due 25/03/44 .. 575 0.68
Orsted AS Merck KGaA
300 5.250% due 31/12/99.. 309 036 700 3.875% due 27/08/34... 701 0.83
) RWE AG
Finland (0.22%) 865  4.125% due 13/02/35.. 906  1.07
Sampo OYJ
202 2.500% due 03/09/52.. 183 022 18,787 _22.18
France (8.320/0) Ireland (3.960/0)
Banque Federative du Credit Mutuel SA AIB Group PLC
300 3.750% due 03/02/34.. 310 037 435 2.875% due 30/05/31 . 429 031
Bouygues SA Bank of Ireland Group PLC
1,200 5.375% due 30/06/42.. 1410 1.66 300 6.750% due 01/03/33 .. 327038
Credit Agricole SA CRH SMW Finance DAC
1,200 5.500% due 28/08/33 . 1276 151 1,524 4.250% due 11/07/35... 1,609 1.0
Electricite de France SA Eaton Capital UnLtd Co.
800  4.750% due 17/06/44 .. 843 1.00 953 3.802% due 21/05/36.. 088 117
Engie SA 3353 3.96
700 4.250% due 06/03/44 .. 714 0.84 Ttaly (0.82%)
Orange SA Intesa Sanpaolo Vita SpA
400 5.375%% ovvvvvererererenneen 427 0.50 781 2.375% dus 22/12/30 . 97 082
Suez SACA
1,400 2.375% due 24/05/30.. 1,335 1.58 Luxembourg 3.92%)
TotalEnergies SE Becton Dickinson Euro Finance SARL
850 2.125%% oo 730 0.86 1,225 4.029% due 07/06/36... 1,272 1.50
Prologis International Funding I SA
7045 832 2,100 3.125% due 01/06/31 .. 2,053 242
Germany (22.18%) 3325 392
BASF SE
1,100 4.250% due 08/03/32.. 1,176 1.39 Netherlands (22.59%)
Bayer AG ASR Nederland NV
400 5375% due 25/03/82.. 397 047 2,280  7.000% due 07/12/43 .. 2,689 3.18
200 6.625% due 25/09/83 .. 200 025 BP Capital Markets BV
00 7.000% duo 25/09/83 . 956 Lol 1,389 4.323% due 12/05/35.. 1475 1.74
Bundesobligation EnBW International Finance BV
50 1.300% due 15/10/27 . 9 006 1112 4.300% due 23/05/34.. 1,180 1.39
2.850  2.400% due 19/10/28... 2002 343 MSD Netherlands Capital BV
€98 2.100% duo 12/04/29 . 205 083 LI51  3.700% due 30/05/44 .. 1,166 1.38
Bundesrepublik Deutschland Bundesanleihe 452 3.750% due 30/05/54.. 451 0.53
6,630 2.600% due 15/08/33 .. 6918  8.17 Netherlands Government Bonds
160 1.800% due 15/08/53 .. 139 016 10,760  0.500% due 15/07/32.. 9,404  11.10
Commerzbank AG NN Group NV
500 4.625% due 17/01/31 .. 927 06 751 6.000% due 03/11/43 .. 836 0.99

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Principal Fair Value  Fund Principal Fair Value  Fund
Amount 000 EUR ’000 % Amount 000 EUR ’000 %
Volkswagen International Finance NV 1,218  3.955% due 21/03/35 .. 1,254 1.48
2,100 4.375%% oo 1,933 2.28 6,848 .08
19,134 22.59 Total Long Term
Portugal (0.42%) Bonds and Notes .......... 68,883  81.31
EDP - Energias de Portugal SA Short Term Investments (10.56%)
400  1.875% due 14/03/82.. 360 0.42 Germany (10.56%)
Spain (2.99%) Bundesschatzanweisungen
Banco Santander SA 770 2.200% due 12/12/24 .. 769 0.91
1,200 5.750% due 23/08/33... 1,280 1.51 8,170  2.800% due 12/06/25 .. 8,175 9.65
Mapfre SA 8,944 _ 10.56
1,300  2.875% due 13/04/30.. 1,252 1.48
Total Short Term
2,532 __2.99 Investments................. 8,944  10.56
Switzerland (1.95%) Total Transferable
UBS Group AG Securities ................. 77,827 _ 91.87
866  4.750% due 17/03/32.. 933 1.10
690  4.125% due 09/06/33 .. 720 0.85 Number
1,653 1.95 of Shares *000
United Kingdom (4.38%) Investment Funds (4.93%)
Barclays PLC Ireland (4.93%)
1217 4.506% due 31/01/33.. 1282 1.51 4 Russell Investment
865  5.262% due 29/01/34.. 958 1.13 Company IIT plc Russell
NatWest Group PLC In.ves.tn.lents Euro
1,368  5.763% due 28/02/34.. 1,469  1.74 Liquidity Fund
Class SW Roll-up
3,709 __4.38 SRALES ....vvorrverres 4174 493
United States (8.08%) - Russell Investment
Air Products & Chemicals, Inc. Company III plc Russell
604 4.000% due 03/03/35.. 638 0.75 Investments Sterling
Carrier Global Corp. Liquidity Fund
851  4.500% due 29/11/32.. 918 1.08 Class SW Roll-up
Celanese U.S. Holdings LLC Shares ........ccccceeevvinienen 3 0.00
184 5.337% due 19/01/29.. 196 0.23 4,177 4.93
Exxon Mobil Corp.
1,900 1.408% due 26/06/39... 1435 1.70 Total Investment
Honevwell International. Inc. Funds ..., 4,177 4.93
y 5
298  4.125% due 02/11/34.. 315 0.37 Total Investments
McDonald’s Corp. excluding Financial
1,138 4.250% due 07/03/35.. 1,211 1.43 Derivative
Morgan Stanley Instruments.................. 82,004  96.80
900  2.950% due 07/05/32.. 881 1.04
Financial Derivative Instruments (0.23%)
Open Futures Contracts (0.17%)
Notional Average Unrealised
Amount Cost Price Gain (Loss) Fund
EUR ‘000 EUR EUR ‘000 %
6,957 119.94 58 of Euro Bobl Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ...........ccceviiieiininienenne 6 0.01

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Notional Average Unrealised
Amount Cost Price Gain (Loss) Fund
EUR ‘000 EUR EUR 000 %o
11,572 133.02 23 of Euro Bund Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............ccooevieienieiennnns 34 0.04
8,635 134.92 64 of Euro Bund Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ...........cccooiiieiinieene 132 0.16
2,136 118.66 18 of Long Gilt Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024..........cccoovvevieeviienieeieenne (6) (0.01)
1,801 105.93 17 of U.S. 10 Years Ultra Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............cccoovvieieiieiennnns 1 0.00
(181) (0.90) 2 of 10 Year Mini JGB Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............ccoviiieiinieiees - 0.00
(2,805) (133.54) 21 of Euro Bund Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024..........cccoovvevviieviienieeieene (30) (0.04)
(1,810) (0.91) 2 of Japan 10 Years Bond Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............cccoovvvieienieiennnne 2) 0.00
(2,036) (119.79) 17 of U.S. Ultra Bond Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ...........ccoveiieriiiieiene 9 0.01
Unrealised gain on open fUtures CONLIACES........ccuvvieirrierieriieierieeiesieeeiesie et ereseeeee e eae s 182 0.22
Unrealised 10ss on open futtures CONIACES .........cvecueruieieriiiierieeiieieseeeesie et seeeeeesae e e e (38) (0.05)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open futures contracts ...............ccocoevenieiineniencnenenne. 144 0.17
Open Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts (0.02%)
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold *000 EUR ‘000 %
15/10/2024 AUD 33 EUR 20 - 0.00
15/10/2024 CHF 9 EUR 10 - 0.00
15/10/2024 EUR 719 AUD 1,179 (14) (0.02)
15/10/2024 EUR 1,077 CHF 1,011 2 0.00
15/10/2024 EUR 24 GBP 20 - 0.00
15/10/2024 EUR 6 JPY 1,032 - 0.00
15/10/2024 EUR 9 NOK 111 - 0.00
15/10/2024 EUR 10 NZD 17 - 0.00
15/10/2024 EUR 359 SEK 4,071 (1) 0.00
15/10/2024 EUR 1,143 USD 1,266 9 0.01
15/10/2024 GBP 755 EUR 897 11 0.01
15/10/2024 JPY 67,282 EUR 420 3 0.01
15/10/2024  NOK 8,383 EUR 712 - 0.00
15/10/2024 NZD 641 EUR 359 6 0.01

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold *000 EUR ‘000 %
15/10/2024 SEK 82 EUR 7 - 0.00
15/10/2024 UsSDh 21 EUR 18 - 0.00
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts...........cccceceevereruennee 31 0.04
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts .............ccoceeeeeenen. (15) (0.02)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts........ 16 0.02
Total Credit Default Swaps (0.04%)
Notional
Amount Security Fund Fund Termination Fair Value Fund
Cey ‘000 Name Pays Receives Date EUR 000 %o
Deutsche Bank
EUR 1,425 Aktiengesellschaft 1.00% # 20/06/2029 38 0.04
Credit default swaps at fair value ... 38 0.04
Total Financial Derivative InStruments...................c..cocooiiiiiiniininiieceee e 198 0.23
Fair Value Fund
EUR ‘000 %
Total Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(97.00Y0) .o e e 82,255 97.10
Total Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or
LSS ((0.07)%0) <. (53) (0.07)
Net Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(97.03%0) et e 82,202 97.03
Other Net ASSets (2.97%0) ..ccveevieieeeieeie ettt 2,514 2.97
NEEASSEES ....ovviiiiiiiieeee e e e e e e 84,716 100.00
*Perpetual bond.

#In the event of bankruptcy or modified restructuring, the Fund will pay/receive the notional amount to/from the counterparty.

Analysis of gross assets

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing...........cccoeveririeiiiieieiieeeeee e
Investment fUNAS (UCTTS) ...couieieiii ettt ettt e et esaeeebe e beessaeesbe e saessaeenseesseessseenseesssennseenns
Exchange traded financial derivative INSIUMENES ........cccueeivierierieeiiienie e eiee e et esieesee e esieesreeseeseaeenseeseens
Over the counter financial derivative INStIUMENES .........co.eriiieieieiieiieertese ettt ee e ne
ONET @SSELS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt a et e bt ettt bt e e st e et e st eb e eh b et e s em s ea s e et eseeb e eb e b e st et en b eneenteb e et e e bt sbe et ennenes

The brokers for the open futures contracts are:
Goldman Sachs UBS AG

The counterparties for the open forward foreign currency exchange contracts are:
Bank of America Merrill Lynch State Street Bank and Trust Company

Bank of New York Mellon UBS AG
HSBC Westpack
JP Morgan

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

The counterparty for the credit default swaps is Morgan Stanley.

Fair Value Hierarchy (Note 10)

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by investment type)
measured at fair value at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.

As at 30 September 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUTItIES......c.oovvveveirirreveiireccirecceeeeces
Investment funds ..........ccoccoiviiieiiiniiiicece
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts ............ceceeererenenne
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONTTACES. ...ttt
Credit default swaps at fair value

Total ASSELS......c..ooiviiiiiiiciiceeeeeee e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open futures contracts ...........coceeevevereneenns
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
contracts

Total liabilities.....................ccoooiiiiiii e

As at 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUrIties.......c.ccvviviiiriiinieireeecerece e
Investment funds ...........cocoeoeeiiiiiiiieieeeeeee
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts ..........c.ceceoeeveeneenenns
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONITACES. ...ttt
Credit default swaps at fair value .........c.ccoeveveneneninincncene,

TOtal ASSELS......cueiiiiiiiiiiiiiecieeee e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open futures contracts ............coceeevererenenne
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONETACES. ...ttt
Credit default swaps at fair value ...........cooeeevenenencnincnene,

Total liabilities.................c.cooooiiiiiiiiiiee e,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR <000 EUR <000 EUR <000 EUR <000
- 77,827 77,827
- 4,177 4,177
182 - 182
- 31 31
- 38 38
182 82,073 82,255
(38) - (38)
- (15) (15)
(38) (15) (53)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000
- 74,224 74,224
- 4,517 4517
164 - 164
- 26 26
- 59 59
164 78,826 78,990
(42) - (42)
- (24) (24)
- (112) (112)
(42) (136) (178)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund

Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio*
For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Acquisition Cost Disposal Proceeds

Portfolio Securities EUR ‘000 Portfolio Securities EUR ‘000
Russell Investment Company I1I plc Russell Investment Company 111 plc

Russell Investments Euro Liquidity Fund Russell Investments Euro Liquidity Fund

Class SW Roll-up Shares 15,867  Class SW Roll-up Shares (16,290)
Bundesschatzanweisungen Bundesrepublik Deutschland Bundesanleihe

2.800% due 12/06/2025 8,127  2.600% due 15/08/2033 (5,348)
Bundesrepublik Deutschland Bundesanleihe Bank of America Corp.

2.600% due 15/08/2033 6,855  2.824% due 27/04/2033 (1,217)
Bundesobligation Deutsche Bank AG

2.100% due 12/04/2029 1,393 4.000% due 24/06/2032 (1,182)
Credit Agricole SA Electricite de France SA

5.500% due 28/08/2033 1,257  4.625% due 25/01/2043 (1,109)
Becton Dickinson Euro Finance SARL HSBC Holdings PLC

4.029% due 07/06/2036 1,225 6.364% due 16/11/2032 (1,005)
MSD Netherlands Capital BV Celanese U.S. Holdings LLC

3.700% due 30/05/2044 1,146 5.337% due 19/01/2029 (863)
Bundesobligation Bundesobligation

2.400% due 19/10/2028 1,103 2.100% due 12/04/2029 (710)
Eaton Capital UnLtd Co. Engie SA

3.802% due 21/05/2036 953 3.875% due 06/03/2036 (698)
Electricite de France SA Barclays PLC

4.750% due 17/06/2044 793 5.262% due 29/01/2034 (538)
Merck KGaA UBS Group AG

3.875% due 27/08/2054 696  4.125% due 09/06/2033 (505)
Engie SA Bundesrepublik Deutschland Bundesanleihe

4.250% due 06/03/2044 695  1.800% due 15/08/2053 (452)
MSD Netherlands Capital BV NatWest Group PLC

3.750% due 30/05/2054 449 5.763% due 28/02/2034 (422)

Intesa Sanpaolo SpA
6.184% due 20/02/2034 (245)

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases exceeding 1% of total cost of purchases, and sales exceeding
1% of total proceeds. At a minimum the twenty largest purchases and twenty largest sales must be shown. Should there have been
less than that amount of transactions, all such transactions have been disclosed. Securities held to maturity, which matured during the
reporting period, have been excluded from the Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio.

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the reference period may be obtained free of charge from the Company’s
Administrator or from the paying agent or paying and information agents in each country of distribution.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Global Bond (Euro Hedged) Fund

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024
31 March 2024*
(Audited)
EUR €000
Assets
CaSh @t DANK (INOTE 2) ..ouvieviiiieiiiiieiieieete ettt sttt ettt ettt e et eaesaeessesseesbesbeessebeessesseesaesseesaensesseessesseessenseenes 443
Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative instruments (Note 2) ...........ccceevenneene. 3
Debtors:
INEEIESE TECEIVADIE ....o.tieeiiii ettt ettt et et e st e e e s e e e te e s e ens et e eneeteeneensesmeesesneensenneens 1
447
Liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:
Payable on fund shares redeemed ............ccieiiiiiiiiiicieceeee ettt ena e (272)
Management fEES PAYADIC ........c.civiiiuiiieiicieieee ettt ettt et teeraesaeeraebeereenbeeneens (100)
DepOoSItary fEES PAYADIE .......ccvevviiieiieieieeeieie ettt ettt e b e te st e teere e be e ebeeseenseeneens (7)
Sub-custodian fEES PAYADIC ........c.ecviiiiiieieieeieieee ettt ettt e te et e eneeneenneenees (22)
Administration fEeS PAYADIE. ........cuivuiiiiii ittt ettt sttt et e et ena e te e neeenean (6)
BN U LTI S 1 o] (<P SUR SRS (35
(@7 1o i 1T o T2 ) 21 o) SRS (5)
(447)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders...................cooooiiiiiiiiiini, -

* As the Fund terminated on 30 May 2023, final termination financial statements were prepared for the Fund for the financial year end 31 March 2024.

The Fund’s Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable
Participating Shareholders are disclosed solely for presentation purposes to correspond with the company’s comparative combined
financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Global Bond (Euro Hedged) Fund

Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended
30 September

2023*
(Unaudited)
EUR ‘000

Income

TIEETEST IMCOMIE ... tieiviiiie et ettt ettt ettt et e eb e e eteeetbeebeeeteeesseeteeesseeaseessaeesseesseesssaensaensaessseansaesseassaenseensnean 855
Net gain (10Ss) 0N INVESTMENT ACLIVITIES ..eeveiuieieitieiiitieieete ettt te et e et ete st eeesseeaesteeseeeseeneeeseeneeneeeneas (2,210)
Total investment iNCOME (EXPEIISE) .......c...eoiuiiriiiiiieiieiiie et eeste ettt e ete et esbteeabeebeesebeeabeenbeesabeebeesssesnbeenseesaneas (1,355)
Expenses

Management fEES (INOTE 3)......iiuiiieiiieieiietieteete ettt ettt et e be e e e b e eseesesseessessaessesseesseseaseesesssensesssensensaens (375)

DEPOSILATY TEES (INOTE 4) ..c.vieuietieiieieeiiete ettt ettt e ste et e st eeta e te e st et e ese e sesseesseesaensesseenseseaseesessaensesseensenseans (19)

Sub-CUSLOIAN TEES (INOLE 4)....viiuieieeiieie ettt ettt et st et e et e e e st e e e st eseeeseeseesseeseenseeseensesseensenseeneensennees (24)

Administration and transfer agency fees (INOE 4) ......ccuerieriirieieiieieieeee ettt (22)

ATAIE FEES ..ttt ettt et et e et e e teeetae e bt e eteeesbeesseesseesseestaeesbeeaseessbeenseetaeesbeenbeenteeesbeenseennaean (27)

PrOTESSIONAL TEES ...ocvvieiiiiiieiie ettt ettt e et e et e e te e e b e esbeestaeesbeesseessbeenseeseessseensaenssesnsaenseensnean (6)

ONET fEES ...t e e e e e e e et e e et et e et e e et e e e e e e e teeeeteeeenaeas (7)
Total OPErating EXPEISES. .....c...eoiuiiiiiiiieiitiete ettt ettt et et e st e b e e e et e e bt e bt e eabeeabeesebeeabeenbeesabeenbeenbtesabeebeesaee s (480)
Profit (loss) for the financial period before taxation .................cc.ccoooiiiiiiiiiiii e (1,835)
Taxation (Note 7)

WIHROLAING TAX 1..vieiiiiieiiiit ettt ettt sttt ett et e e st e s e eseensessaensesseessenseessenseeseensesneensesseensenseans 16
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders resulting
FrOM OPEIATIONS ......ooiviiiiiiiiiiiiete ettt ettt et e st e ettt e bt e s et e eabe e beeesbeenteessbeenseenseesnbeenseenseesnsaanseenseeas (1,819)

* As the Fund terminated on 30 May 2023, final termination financial statements were prepared for the Fund for the financial year end 31 March 2024.

All amounts arose solely from terminating operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Profit and Loss Account.

The Fund’s Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable
Participating Shareholders are disclosed solely for presentation purposes to correspond with the company’s comparative combined
financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Global Bond (Euro Hedged) Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended
30 September

2023*
(Unaudited)
EUR ‘000

Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders resulting
1300 1IN0 T3 Y0 (1) 1 LSRR (1,819)
Share transactions

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share transactions (Note 8) ... (200,850)
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders............ (202,669)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

Beginning of fINancial PEIIOQ ........ccuieuiiivieiiiiei ittt ettt a et sb e be e s e beeseesseesaesseessessesneens 202,669

End of financial PEriod ...........ooi ittt sttt ettt et s ne et eneens -

* As the Fund terminated on 30 May 2023, final termination financial statements were prepared for the Fund for the financial year end 31 March 2024.

The Fund’s Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable
Participating Shareholders are disclosed solely for presentation purposes to correspond with the company’s comparative combined
financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Cash at bank (Note 2)

Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative

instruments (Note 2)

Debtors:

Receivable for investments sold
Receivable on fund shares issued
Dividends receivable

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:
Payable for investments purchased
Payable on fund shares redeemed
Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Sub-custodian fees payable
Administration fees payable
Audit fees payable

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)
EUR €000 EUR ‘000

45,505 45,651

182 204

138 90

466 -

55 2

156 205

46,502 46,152

(33) (17)

(599) -

an (33)

(85) (45)

(7) )

(26) (8)

) “4)

©) 6

(775) (126)

45,727 46,026




Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000

Income

DIVIAENAS ..ttt ettt 941 720
Net gain (10Ss) 0n INVEStMENT ACLIVILICS ...eovievverererierieieieieeieeeeeieeie st eie e eee e sreeae e 1,080 (49)
Total investment iNCOME (EXPEISE).......cc.eeririiieriierieeiieniienteeieereeereenteesereebeenseesnennne 2,021 671
Expenses

Management fES (INOTE 3) ....iecuierieiiieiieiie ettt ettt stee e re et eesaeeaeessaeenseeseesens (247) (202)

Depositary fEeS (INOTE 4).....iceiiiieieiieiieieeteee ettt ettt sre s sae s saeessenns (7 (7)

Sub-custodian fEes (INOTE 4) .....ceeriiriieieiiieierieeiete ettt ettt eraeae e eaesseensens (26) (14)

Administration and transfer agency fees (NOte 4)......ccoovvieriieienieieneeiee e (22) (22)

AUIE FEOS. .. ettt sttt sttt et a e et e ae e se et e ste et e teenseereenseeneenaen (®) (7)

Professional fEES.........ciiriririiriiicier e 3) (5)

OtNET FEES. ettt b e et e et e et e e s aaeeabe e beessaeesseessaeenseenseesens (15) (10)
Total OPErating EXPEIMSES .........cccueeiiiiiiiiiieiieiie et eriee ettt et e et e e bt e steeebeeteesabeebeensee e (328) (267)
INet iNCOME (EXPEIISE) .......oeiieeiieeiieiieeieeiteeiteeeteesteesbeeseesseessseesseesseessseesseesssesnseesseessseans 1,693 404
Finance costs

DiStribULIONS (INOTE 6)..e.vveueiieieieiiieieeiieieeteeee ettt ste et e sbeseeebeesae s e eseessesseessesseensesseessenns (682) (364)
Profit (loss) for the financial period before taxation........................ccoooiiiiinininnn 1,011 40
Taxation (Note 7)

WIthROLAING tAX .vieviiiiieieii ettt ettt ettt sre e s neessesbeessenns 113 (45)
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations...................coccoooiiiiiiiiie e 1,124 (5)

All amounts arose solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the
Profit and Loss Account.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
EUR 000 EUR 000
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations................c.ccocoeiiiiiiiniiniiieeeee e 1,124 (5)
Share transactions
Reinvestment of deemed distributions on accumulation shares (Note 0)...................... 682 364
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share
tranSACtIONS (INOLE 8)..vvieiieiiiieiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e et et eebeeaeessbeenbeeneeeene (2,105) (1,129)
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
SRATENONIACY'S .......cc.oiiiiiiiicieccee ettt e e eebeestbeebeesee e (299) (770)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
Beginning of financial Period............cvecvivieiiiiiiiiiicierie et 46,026 34,088
End of financial Period...........cocoiiiiiiieieiee e 45,727 33,318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 EUR ’000 % of Shares 000 EUR ’000 %
Transferable Securities (97.15%) Pharmaceuticals
Common Stock (97.07%) 11 Novo Nordisk AS........... 1,177 2.57
1 o,
g::tl:sla (0.52%) Retail Trade
I BAWAG Group AG ... 66 0.15 2 PandoraAS..........c....... 295 0.65
3 Raiffeisen Bank Transport
International AG ............ 56 0.12 - AP Moller - Maersk AS
Semiconductor Equipment and Products (Class B) .covvevveeveieeiennene 157 0.34
9 ams-OSRAM AG........... 117 0.25 2,279 4.98
239 0.52 Finland (2.87%)
Banks
Belgi 1.58%
angll(lslm ( %) 9 Nordea Bank Abp
2 KBC GroupNV.......... 122 027 (Sweden listed)............... 97 0.21
Beverages Hand and Machine Tools
2 Anheuser-Busch InBev - Konecranes OYJ ............ 14 0.03
SA e 108 0.24 Insurance
Chemicals 2 Sampo OYJ....coeveeenne 76 0.17
5 Solvay SA.... 165 0.36 Machinery
- Syensqo SA .....ccccerine 32 0.07 4 Kone OYJ...coooovvvveiranene 207 0.45
Food Products 1; %etsqloﬁ({)]fj'}xb 24318 8‘(5);
4 Colruyt Group NV......... 152 033 artsila P :
Insurance Oil and Gas
1 Ageas SA o 65 014 4 Neste OYJ .oooovvvvennnn. 74 0.16
Pharmaceuticals Paper and Forest Products
~ UCB SA oo 77 017 7 UPM-Rymmene OY..... 197043
721 1.58 Pharmaceuticals
1 Orion OYJ....oooovvveirnne 28 0.06
Bermuda (0.10%)
Insurance Telecommunications
1 Conduit Holdings Ltd.... 9 0.02 3 ElisaOYJ ..o 127 0.28
56 Nokia OYJ 221 0.48
Transport
6 Hafnia Ltd.......ooo.......... 38 0.08 1311 287
47 0.10 France (14.02%)
D K (4.98° Advertising
enmark (4.98%) 1 Publicis Groupe SA ....... 127 028
Banks
3 Danske Bank AS............ 79 0.17 Aerospace and Defence
1 Ringkjoebing - Safran SA ... 110 0.24
Landbobank AS ............. 63 0.14 1 Thales SA .......coveeeiins 91 0.20
Beverages Auto Components
1 Carlsberg AS.................. 76 0.17 9 Cie Generale des
- Royal Unibrew AS......... 29 0.06 Etablissements Michelin
. 336 0.73
Biotechnology 2 16 0.04
1 Genmab AS.................... 204 0.45 ’
. . Automobiles
Electrical Equipment 3 Renault SA oo 112 025
2 Chemometec AS............ 102 0.22
- NKTAS....ccoooiiieres 14 0.03 Banks
. . 1 BNP Paribas SA ............ 49 0.11
Energy Equipment and Services
4 Vestas Wind Systems Beverages
AS .o 83 0.18 - Pernod Ricard SA........... 47 0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 EUR ’000 % of Shares *000 EUR ’000 %
Building Products Pipelines
4 Cie de Saint-Gobain 1 Gaztransport Et
SA e 320 0.70 Technigaz SA................. 180 0.39
Chemicals Real Estate Investment Trust
- Air Liquide SA .............. 74 0.16 - Covivio SA ..o 15 0.03
2 Arkema SA ... 143 0.31 Semiconductor Equipment and Products
Commercial Services and Supplies - SOITEC....ccoveieene 28 0.06
2 Bureau Veritas SA ......... 61 0.13
Software
Computers and Peripherals - Dassault Systemes SE ... 13 0.03
1 Capgemini SE................ 104 0.23 Telecommunications
I Teleperformance SE ... B3z 029 2 Orange SA ..o 2 005
Construction and Engineering .
- Eiffage SA oo 2 005 Textile and Apparel
1 Vi SA oo 103 0.22 - Hermes International
SCA oot 324 0.71
Distributors - Kering SA.....ccccovvnenn.. 33 0.07
6 Rexel SA.....cccovveveennnnn. 156 0.34 1 LVMH Moet Hennessy
Diversified Financials Louis Vuitton SE ........... 234 0.51
3 Amundi SA.....coevveeeen.. 175 0.38 Transport
Electric Utilities 1 Getlink SE ......cccvnnnne. 14 0.03
7 Engie SA ..o 106 0.23 Water Utilities
Electrical Equipment 4 Veolia Environnement
3 Legrand SA....ooooo. 280 061 SA e 108 0.24
2 Schneider Electric SE.... 513 1.12 6,409 14.02
Entertainment Germany (13.38%)
2 La Francaise des Jeux Aerospace and Defence
NN E1LY SO 80  0.18 - Rheinmetall AG............. 44 010
Food Products Auto Components
5 Carrefour SA ................. 84 0.8 3 Continental AG............. 176 0.38
4 Danone SA ......cceeevenene 258 0.57 Automobiles
Health Care Equipment and Supplies - Bayerische Motoren
- EssilorLuxottica SA ...... 55 0.12 Werke AG ......cocevveennee 3 0.01
1 Sartorius Stedim 6 Daimler Truck Holding
Biotech.......ovveevereann. 90  0.20 AG 190 0.41
L. 2 Mercedes-Benz Group
Home Furnishings X 151 033
2 SEBSA..ccoiiiiieee 164 0.36
Banks
Household Products 13 Deutsche Bank AG ........ 203 0.44
2 Societe BIC SA ............. 98 0.21
Building Products
Insurance - Heidelberg Materials
4 AXASA 140 031 N T 2 0.00
Oil and Gas Chemicals
7 TotalEnergies SE............ 387 0.85 4 BASF SE oo 180 039
Other Finance 1 Covestro AG ......c.ccoeuee. 77 0.17
- Eurazeo SE....o.covveeee.... 18 0.04 17 Evonik Industries AG .... 370 0.81
2 Symrise AG .....cccoveeenee 208 0.46
Personal Products
- L’Oreal SA ......oovvvenen. 156 0.34 Computers and Peripherals
1 Bechtle AG ......ccveueeeee 29 0.06
Pharmaceuticals
2 Ipsen SA oo, 185 0.41 Containers and Packaging
6 Sanofi SA 646 1.41 1 Gerresheimer AG........... 98 0.21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 EUR ’000 % of Shares 000 EUR ’000 %
Diversified Financials Ireland (1.15%)
1 Deutsche Boerse AG...... 184 0.40 Banks
Entertainment 10 Eir(ljk of Ireland Group 03 025
> CTS Eventim AG & Co.  PLCh .
KGaA.....cccooooeieven. 149 0.33 Building Products
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 3 Kingspan Group PLC... 239 0.52
2 Siemens Healthineers Containers and Packaging
AG oo 95 0.21 3 Smurfit WestRock PLC. 145 0.32
Health Care Providers and Services Food Products
4 Fresenius Medical Care 1 Kerry Group PLC.......... 41 0.09
AG .o 158 0.35 508 115
Hotels, Restaurants and Leisure Israel (0.37%)
3 TUIAG . ..o 20 0.04 Diversified Financials
Insurance 6 Plus500 Ltd.................... 170 0.37
1 Allianz SE........cccoveennn. 198 0.43 Ttaly (4.14%)
- Hannover Rueck SE....... 107 0.23 Banks
1 Muenchener 6 Banca Mediolanum
Rueckversicherungs- SPA e 69 0.15
Gesellschaft AG in 20 Banca Monte dei Paschi
Muenchen............c......... 322 0.71 di Siena SpA.................. 107 0.24
- Talanx AG.......ccoocevenna. 13 0.03 5 BPER Banca.................. 23 0.05
Internet Software and Services 13 FmecoBank Banca
1 Scout24 SE 38 019 Fineco SpA ....cccoovveeees 203 0.44
ut24 SE ..o, . 11 Mediobanca Banca di
Machinery Credito Finanziario
1 GEA Group AG.............. 39 0.09 SPA 164 0.36
Metals and Mining 10 UniCredit SpA 402 0.88
2 Aurubis AG..........cocc.... 100 0.22 Diversified Financials
Miscellaneous Manufacturers I Azimut Holding SpA.... 27 0.06
1 Knorr-Bremse AG ......... 126 0.28 Electric Utilities
2 Siemens AG.........coc.... 299 0.65 10 A2ASpA .o 21 0.05
Personal Products 48 Enel SpA....cccovivveniinnnn. 348 0.76
1 Beiersdorf AG................ 154 0.34 Electrical Equipment
2 P i A 11 2
Pharmaceuticals rysmian Sp 8 0.26
5 Bayer AG....ccoooeveeeeenene 145 0.32 Gas Utilities
2 Merck KGaA................. 279 0.61 15 Italgas SpA ... 80 0.17
Semiconductor Equipment and Products 3 Snam SpA......cccveevriene 13 0.03
4 Infineon Technologies Insurance
AG i 111 0.24 4 Unipol Gruppo SpA ...... 40 0.09
Software Internet Software and Services
2 Nemetschek SE 140 0.31 1 Reply SpA ..o 99 0.21
4 SAPSE...coveeevec 911 1.99 Pharmaceuticals
Telecommunications - Recordati Industria
10 Deutsche Telekom AG ... 269 0.59 Chimica e Farmaceutica
Textile and Apparel SPA i 23 0.05
1 adidas AG .......cccocevenen. 228 0.50 Retail Trade
2 141 0.31
Transport 5 13 0.03
6 Deutsche Post AG.......... 253 0.55 :
6,119 13.38 L3891 414

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 EUR ’000 % of Shares 000 EUR ’000 %
Jersey, Channel Islands (0.51%) Media
Metals and Mining 2 Wolters Kluwer NV ....... 242 0.53
Zg E}T:Iiglrlen;’]%g ............... lgg 8;(1) Oil and Gas Services
- 4 Fugro NV....ccceeveeveiennne 74 0.16
231 051 6 SBM Offshore NV......... 102 022
Luxembourg (0.54.1%) ) Pipelines
Health Care Providers and Services 2 Koninklijke Vopak NV .. 75 0.16
1 Eurofins Scientific SE... 12 0.03
Semiconductor Equipment and Products
Iron and Steel - ASM International NV .. 283 0.62
8 Arceloerttal SA ........... 193 042 1 ASML HOlleg NV ... 796 174
Metals and Mining 1 BE Semiconductor
2 Tenaris SA ..o..coooooovveen, 30 0.07 Industries NV ................ 57 012
L 3 STMicroelectronics
Telecommunications |NAVA 73 0.16
2 SESSA ..o, 10 0.02
Telecommunications
245 0.4 80 Koninklijke KPN NV ... 295 065
Netherlands (9.45%)
4,321 9.45
Aerospace and Defence -
1 Airbus SE .ooooooorrreeeen. 92 020 Norway (1.82%)
. Banks
Automobiles 3 DNBBankASA. ... 55 012
- FerrariNV ..., 42 0.09
5 Stellantis NV (France Food Products
) JO 58 0.13 23 Orkla ASA oo, 190 042
Banks Insurance
3 ABN AMRO Bank NV.. 55 0.12 1 Gjensidige Forsikring
15 ING Groep NV .............. 237 0.52 ASA l6  0.03
2 Storebrand ASA............. 17 0.04
Beverages
15 Davide Campari-Milano Metals and Mining
NV oo 118 0.26 7 Norsk Hydro ASA ......... 43 0.09
1 Heineken NV................. 82 0.18 0il and Gas
Chemicals 12 Equinor ASA ................. 281 0.61
1 Akzo Nobel NV............. 74 0.16 Oil and Gas Services
Commercial Services and Supp]ies 3 Aker Solutions ASA ...... 9 0.02
- AdyenNV.....ccooene. 305 0.66 Shipbuilding
4 Randstad NV ................. 159 0.35 1 Kongsberg Gruppen
Diversified Financials ASA oo, 110 0.24
3 Euronext NV............... 321 0.70 N
Telecommunications
Electrical Equipment 10 Telenor ASA .................. 112 0.25
8 Signify NV ..o 172 0.38 833 1.82
Food Products Portugal (0.09%)
7 Koninklijke Ahold Food Products
Delhaize NV .................. 222 0.49 2 Jeronimo Martins SGPS
SA e 34 0.08
Health Care Equipment and Supplies
3 Qiagen NV 127 028 7 Sonae SGPS SA...oooce... 6 __0.01
40 0.09
Insurance .
4 NN Group NV ............... 165 0.36 Singapore (0.01%)
Transport
Internet Software and Services - BWLPGLtd. ................ 5 0.01
2 Prosus NV.....ooccovvneenn. 95 0.21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 EUR ’000 % of Shares *000 EUR ’000 %
Spain (4.72%) Miscellaneous Manufacturers
Banks 1 AlfaLaval AB................ 32 0.07
8 Banco Bilbao Vizcaya 5 Trelleborg AB................ 185 0.40
Argentaria SA................ 78 0.17 .
her F
65 Banco Santander SA...... 208 0.65 A g(gTeZB‘"a“ce o 098
85 CaixaBank SA ..o 456 100 2 Tnvestor AB....ore.. 40 009
Commercial Services and Supplies
Paper and Forest Products
4 Amadeus IT Group SA.. 268 058 3 Billerud Aktiebolag ....... 27 0.06
1 IC(émp;t:rs an(é/l\’erlpherals 9 0.02 Personal Products
NETE SISIEMAS SA worvees : 4 Essity AB..ooovoooorrrreenn. 112 024
Construction and Engineering Telecommunications
- Aena SMESA oo #0012 3 Tele2 ABoororree 31007
Electric Utilities 3 Telefonaktiebolaget LM
13 Iberdrola SA .................. 175 0.38 Ericsson ......ccocveveeencnns 24 0.05
6 Redeia Corp. SA............ 103 0.23 1.492 3.26
Oil and Gas Switzerland (12.69%)
3 Repsol SA....coeiiieienne 37 0.08 Banks
Retail Trade - Banqge Cantonale
12 Industria de Diseno Vaudoise ........cccccvevennnn. 14 0.03
Textil SA eovvrrrreeerreeee 644 141 14 UBS Group AG.............. 383 0.84
Transport 3 geverggis HBC AG 103 023
1 Cia de Distribucion ocatola HEL AL ... :
Integral Logista Building Products
Holdings SA .........c........ 36 0.08 - Belimo Holding AG....... 7 0.01
2,158 4.72 - SikaAG .o, 30 0.07
Sweden (3.26%) Chemicals
Automobiles 1 DSM-Firmenich AG....... 126 0.28
1 VolvoAB .....ccoovvieenne 24 0.05 - Givaudan SA................ 123 0.27
Distributors Commercial Services and Supplies
5 AddTechAB.................. 133 0.29 1 SGSSA. .. 73 0.16
Electrical Equipment Computers and Peripherals
8 NCAB GroupAB......... 50 0.11 2 Logitech International
SA i 134 0.29
Entertainment
1 Betsson AB.......ccccoeeeen. 13 0.03 Diversified Financials
1 Evolution AB............ 52 0.1 2 Julius Baer Group Ltd. .. 104 023
Food Prod - Swissquote Group
ood Products Holding SA...oooroooroo... 122 026
1 AAKAB.....covieie 22 0.05
. . Electrical Equipment
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 6 ABB Ltd. ooooocorerr 208 0.65
5 LifcoAB...oooieieiinne 141 0.31
. Energy Equipment and Services
Machinery - Landis & Gyr Group
13 Atlas Copco AB AG oo 10 002
[(GE:TIN D 234 0.51
8 Atlas Copco AB Food Products
[(GFTT 2 T 123 0.27 4 Nestle SA...cccoovieenee 398 0.87
4 Sandvik AB........cccocoe... 72 0.16 Health Care Equipment and Supplies
Metals and Mining 3 Alcon, Inc....ceevvvennrnnnns 222 0.49
1 BolidenAB.................... 48 0.11 1 Straumann Holding AG. 179 0.39

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 EUR 000 % EUR 000 %
Health Care Providers and Services 27 NatWest Group PLC...... 112 0.24
- Lonza Group AG ........... 143 0.31 16 Standard Chartered
PLC..ooiiiiciireicicens 154 0.34
Insurance
1 Swiss Re AG......ccocuuuee. 145 0.32 Beverages
1 Zurich Insurance Group 5 Diageo PLC......cccceeunee 166 0.36
AG it 228 0.50 Chemicals
Machinery 1 Croda International
5 Accelleron Industries PLC..ooiiiiiiicccee 30 0.07
AG it 233 0.51 Commercial Services and Supplies
Other Finance 1 Ashtead Group PLC ...... 89 0.19
- Partners Group Holding 2 Bunzl PLC......ccccccoueenee 76 0.17
AG i 171 0.37 91 Hays PLC....coceeuviennne 102 0.22
Pharmaceuticals 1 Intertek Group PLC....... 49 0.11
2 Galenica AG ......cccocee... 165 0.36 5 RELXPLC .o 207 045
9 Novartis AG.......ccccueueee. 909 1.99 Computers and Peripherals
3 Roche Holding AG 4 Kainos Group PLC........ 40 0.09
(Non-voting rights)........ 753 1.65 5 Softcat PLC ................... 90 0.19
. R\;)c}}e H9lglng AG 0 0.09 Construction and Engineering
(Voting rights)............... : 47 Balfour Beatty PLC....... 242 053
- Siegfried Holding AG..... 54 0.12
- Ypsomed Holding AG ... 32 0.07 Distributors
11 Travis Perkins PLC........ 117 0.26
Real Estate
- PSP Swiss Property AG. 38 0.08 Diversified Financials
Retail Trade 28 Allfunds Group PLC ..... 156 0.34
. . 3 Alpha Group
1 Cie Financiere .
. International PLC .......... 86 0.19
Richemont SA ............... 197 0.43
3 London Stock Exchange
3 Swatch Group AG
. Group PLC ......ccceneee. 365 0.80
(Ticker UHRN). ..o 15 0.2 4 Schroders PLC............... 16 003
Telecommunications . e
; Electric Utilities
1 Swisscom AG ................ 242 0.53 9 National Grid PLC..... 17 026
Transport 4 SSEPLC......cccevi 89 0.19
) {(uehne‘& I\ia,fi}l 10 0.02 Electrical Equipment
nternational AG........... ' 3 Halma PLC.....ooooco...... 84 0.8
5,803  12.69
. . Food Products
United Kingdom (20.87%) 3 Associated British
Aerospace and Defence F00ds PLC .....oovvecevrrres 71 0.16
10 BAE Systems PLC ........ 152 0.33 4 Compass Group PLC..... 109 0.24
27 QinetiQ Group PLC...... 142031 4 Greggs PLC oo 133 029
4 Rolls-Royce Holdings 40 J Sainsbury PLC........... 144 031
PLC ................................ 26 006 1 Tate & Lyle PLC ......... 12 003
Airlines 50 Tesco PLC ......ccoevueee. 217 0.47
11 easylet PLC.......ccc... 66 0.14 Gas Utilities
Banks 20 Centrica PLC................. 28 0.06
- Bank of Georgia Group Holding Companies - Diversified
PlC .t 13 0.03 Operations
32 Barclays PLC....coen 86 0.19 7 Drax Group PLC ... 54 0.12
45 HSBC Holdings PLC..... 356 0.78

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 EUR ’000 % of Shares *000 EUR ’000 %
Home Builders Personal Products
6 Barratt Developments 4 Haleon PLC................... 22 0.05
PLC..oiiieeee 35 0.07 7 Unilever PLC................. 387 0.85
1 Bellway PLC 17 0.04 2 Unilever PLC
Home Furnishings (Netherlands listed) ....... 102 0.22
10 Howden Joinery Group Pharmaceuticals
PLC.ooiieeieeee 114 0.25 7 AstraZeneca PLC 969 2.12
Household Products 22 GSK PLC............... s 397 0.87
. . 3 Hikma Pharmaceuticals
5 Reckitt Benckiser PLC 66 0.14
Group PLC .......cccceeeee 296 065 T ’
Insurance Retail Trade
1 Admiral Group PLC....... 2 005 2 Marks & Spencer Group
. PLC.ciiiiies 11 0.02
I AVIVA PLC o 62 0.14 2 NextPLC..oooree 246 0.54
10 Beazley PLC 94 0.20
60 Direct Line Insurance Software
Group PLC .......ccuevuee. 137 0.30 6 Sage Group PLC............ 75 0.16
8 Prudential PLC .............. 68 0.15 Telecommunications
Internet Software and Services 8 Gamma
35 Auto Trader Group Communications Plc...... 151 0.33
PLC ..o, 366 0.80 170 Vodafone Group PLC .... 153 0.34
22 Rightmove PLC............. 166 0.36 Toys, Games and Hobbies
Lodging - Games Workshop Group
2 InterContinental Hotels PLC..coiiieieeeeeee 43 0.09
Group PLC......... 191 0.42 9,545 20.87
2 Whitbread PLC 87 0.19
Total Common Stock... 44,387  97.07
Media o
4 Informa PLC 2 009 Ereerf;r::yi (S(;%;lﬁ /S"os %)
7 Pearson PLC 88 0.19 .
Automobiles
Metals and Mining - Dr Ing hc F Porsche AG. 9 0.02
3 Anglo American PLC.... 105 0.23 - Volkswagen AG ............. 15 0.03
2 Rio Tinto PLC................ 115 0.25 Household Products
Miscellaneous Manufacturers - Henkel AG & Co.
2 Diploma PLC................. 113 0.25 KGaA....ooovieieee 11 0.03
2 Smiths Group PLC ........ 31 0.07 35 0.08
Oil and Gas Total Preferred Stock .. 35 0.08
17 BPPLC...ccooveveieenee 80 0.18
3 Harbour Energy PLC..... 10 002 g:zilriT;:s“mrab'e w42 9715
4 Shell PLC (Netherlands ~~ Securities . , .
listed) ...ooeereeniircne 106 0.23
12 Shell PLC (UK listed) ... 355 0.78
Other Finance
5 3iGroup PLC ................ 190 0.42
Paper and Forest Products
2 Mondi PLC........ccocoee. 37 0.08

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 EUR ’000 %

Investment Funds (2.28%)

Ireland (2.28%)
1 Russell Investment

Company III plc Russell

Investments Euro

Liquidity Fund

Class SW Roll-up

Shares .......cccoeereeereennn 960 2.10
- Russell Investment

Company III plc Russell

Investments Sterling

Liquidity Fund

Class SW Roll-up

Shares ......ccooeeeeeeieeennne 83 0.18

1,043 2.28

Total Investment
Funds ..........oooovvennnns 1,043 2.28

Total Investments

excluding Financial

Derivative

Instruments.................. 45465 9943

Financial Derivative Instruments (0.01%)

Open Futures Contracts (0.03%)

Notional Average
Amount Cost Price
EUR ‘000 EUR
975 7,499.73 13 of CAC 40 Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 ..........ccoceeviiieiennnnne.
196 4,885.00 4 of Euro STOXX 50 Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024............c.ccceevvennnee.
201 10,050.35 2 of FTSE 100 Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024...........ccccoeevecnnenne.
45 226.50 2 of OMXS30 Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 .........cccooeeverveeennnnne
128 12,834.54 1 of Swiss Market Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024............c.cccoeveneen.
(293) (4,879.25) 6 of Euro STOXX 50 Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024...........ccccoeevecnnenne.
(302) (10,053.51) 3 of FTSE 100 Index Futures

Short Futures Contracts

Expiring December 2024............ccccoveeeneee.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Notional Average Unrealised
Amount Cost Price Gain (Loss) Fund
EUR ‘000 EUR EUR 000 %o
(45) (226.32) 2 of OMXS30 Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 .........cccoceveeveiieieiieieeenns (1) 0.00
(257) (12,846.22) 2 of Swiss Market Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ...........ccceviiieienieiene (2) 0.00
Unrealised gain on open fUtures CONLIACES........ccuviieierierieriieierieetesieeieere e e eee e eeeenees 31 0.06
Unrealised 10ss on open futures CONIACES .........cvecvereieieriiiieniesieiesieeee e eeee e nee e ae e (15) (0.03)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open futures contracts ................cocoeeenieiininienenienennn. 16 0.03
Open Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts ((0.02)%)
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold *000 EUR 000 %
18/12/2024 CHF 517 EUR 557 4) (0.01)
18/12/2024 CHF 517 EUR 556 4 (0.01)
18/12/2024 DKK 473 EUR 64 - 0.00
18/12/2024 DKK 473 EUR 63 - 0.00
18/12/2024 EUR 227 GBP 190 - 0.00
18/12/2024 EUR 298 NOK 3,573 (5) (0.01)
18/12/2024 EUR 298 NOK 3,573 (5) (0.01)
18/12/2024 GBP 141 EUR 166 2 0.00
18/12/2024 GBP 141 EUR 166 2 0.01
18/12/2024 SEK 5,000 EUR 441 1 0.00
18/12/2024 SEK 1,534 EUR 134 2 0.00
18/12/2024 SEK 1,534 EUR 134 2 0.01
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts.............cceceeeeneennen. 9 0.02
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts ...........c.ccocceveeeennen. (18) (0.04)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts........ (9) (0.02)
Total Financial Derivative InStruments ..................c..cooooiiiiiiiiiiiniee e 7 0.01
Fair Value Fund
EUR ‘000 %
Total Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(99.51%0) .t 45,505 99.51
Total Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or
LSS ((0.07)%0) <ot (33) (0.07)
Net Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(99:44%0) ..o 45,472 99.44
Other Net Assets (0.56%0) ......ccccoerveieiiiinininenccceeeeeeseene 255 0.56
INEEASSEES ..ottt e e e e e eaaae e e e 45,727 100.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

% of
Analysis of gross assets gross assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange liSting............ccoecvevvieieriiiienienieieseeeeeee e 95.53
Investment fUNAS (UCITS) . ..ouiiieiieiieieiee ettt ettt ettt et e et e e st e eseeseesseenaesseessenseensenseeneensenns 2.24
Exchange traded financial derivative INStIUMENLS .......cc.eveieiriririnieniteeet ettt 0.07
Over the counter financial derivative INSTIUMENTS ..........eovietieiiieeierieeiei ettt sttt eeeneeeeenes 0.02
L0101 1<) U T £ S PURSRPPSRP 2.14
100.00
The broker for the open futures contracts is Morgan Stanley.
The counterparties for the open forward foreign currency exchange contracts are:
Bank of America Merrill Lynch Royal Bank of Canada
Citibank
Fair Value Hierarchy (Note 10)
The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by investment type)
measured at fair value at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.
As at 30 September 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR 000 EUR ‘000 EUR 000 EUR 000
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUIIHIES. ......c.evvieiieiieiieeiieieeiecee e 44,422 - 44,422
Investment funds .........oocveviiiiiiiiieeeceeee e - 1,043 1,043
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts ...........ccoeceveeereeennnne 31 - 31
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange
COMETACTS. ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt st saeenaeeaeeas - 9 9
TOtal ASSELS.....c.ovviiiiieeieeeeeeeeeee e 44 453 1,052 45,505
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open futures contracts ...........ccceeevererenenne (15) - (15)
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
(o0) 118 17 1RSSR - (18) (18)
Total Habilities. ... (15) (18) (33)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
As at 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUTItes......c.oovvveveirirreveerireccireccereeecaes
Investment funds ..........ccoceiviviiiiiniiiicce
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts .............cceceeererenenne
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONTTACES. ...ttt

Total ASSELS........oviiiiiiiiieeeee e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONETACES. ...ttt

Total liabilities....................oooooeeiiiiiiee e

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR <000 EUR <000 EUR <000 EUR <000

43,868 - 43,868

- 1,731 1,731

32 - 32

- 20 20

43,900 1,751 45,651

- (17) (17)

- (17) (17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund

Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio*

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Acquisition Cost Disposal Proceeds

Portfolio Securities EUR ‘000 Portfolio Securities EUR ‘000
Russell Investment Company I1I plc Russell Investment Company 111 plc

Russell Investments Euro Liquidity Fund Russell Investments Euro Liquidity Fund

Class SW Roll-up Shares 3,396  Class SW Roll-up Shares (4,162)
Evonik Industries AG 261 ASML Holding NV (514)
adidas AG 238 Novo Nordisk AS (266)
ASM International NV 216 Sage Group PLC (260)
Symrise AG 209 Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA (254)
Accelleron Industries AG 208 SAP SE (219)
Schneider Electric SE 205 Sandvik AB (218)
Euronext NV 204 Hermes International SCA (197)
Cie Generale des Etablissements Michelin SCA 198 EQT AB (194)
Russell Investment Company I1I plc Repsol SA (192)

Russell Investments Sterling Liquidity Fund Siemens Healthineers AG (189)

Class SW Roll-up Shares 198 ABB Ltd. (188)
Amadeus IT Group SA 181 Dino Polska SA (187)
AP Moller - Maersk AS (Class B) 175 Allianz SE (182)
Danone SA 171 Tesco PLC (171)
Balfour Beatty PLC 158 Cie Financiere Richemont SA (166)
Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV 153 Dassault Aviation SA (159)
Gamma Communications PLC 152 Swiss Re AG (155)
Tenaris SA 151 Holcim AG (145)
ASML Holding NV 149 Tenaris SA (144)
FinecoBank Banca Fineco SpA 147
Solvay SA 144

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases exceeding 1% of total cost of purchases, and sales exceeding
1% of total proceeds. At a minimum the twenty largest purchases and twenty largest sales must be shown. Should there have been
less than that amount of transactions, all such transactions have been disclosed. Securities held to maturity, which matured during the
reporting period, have been excluded from the Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio.

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the reference period may be obtained free of charge from the Company’s
Administrator or from the paying agent or paying and information agents in each country of distribution.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loSs .........ccceevvieviiiiecinieieieee,

Cash at bank (INOTE 2) .....evveeiieiieiieieieee ettt sa e ene s

Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative

INSIUMENES (INOTE 2) 1.eeiuiiiieiieiieieeiiet ettt ettt et e e e saeeneenseeseenseeneenes

Debtors:

Receivable for investments SOIA ..........ooovviviiiiiiiiiiee e
Receivable on fund shares iSSUEd ..........ooovuvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e
Dividends reCeIVADIE. ........coouiiiiiieee s

Liabilities

Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:

Payable for investments purchased..........c..coccverenieieiiinininicncnccceeeeeee
Payable on fund shares redeemed............cocoeviiieriiiniiiieeee e
Management fees Payable..........ocveruiiieiiiee e
Depositary fees payable.........ccoeiieriiieiieiee e
Sub-custodian fees payable............ocierieriiiiierieee e
Administration fees payable ..........ccecveviieiiiriiiieie s
Audit TS PAYADIC ....o.viiviiiiiieiicee e

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders...................

30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)
USD ‘000 USD €000

97,194 87,154

449 307

119 64

87 1,003

- 6

32 52

97,881 88,586

(87) (1,034)

(308) (222)

(189) 9D

®) A3)

€) )

(10) (®)

®) d4)

(616) (1,381)

97,265 87,205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Income

DiIvIAendsS........ooouvveeoieeiiieeee e
Interest INCOME .......c.oeeeveieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeee e

Net gain (loss) on investment activities ............c.ccoceuen.

Total investment income (expense).................ceeevee...

Expenses
Management fees (NOte 3) ....oooeverrierinieieieieene
Depositary fees (NOte 4)......ccoeverereenerieneeieeeene
Sub-custodian fees (NOte 4) .....cccvvvveeveenieeieeieenenn
Administration and transfer agency fees (Note 4).....
AUIE FEES. ..t
Professional fees.........ccoevevirininininicceeec e
Other fEeS.....coviiviieieieeeiee e

Total operating expenses .............cccceeereereneenenennne.

Net income (€XPense) .........cccevverveenienieriieenienieenieenns

Finance costs
Distributions (NOte 6).......cccveevurerreerieeieeieesveeveenes

Profit (loss) for the financial period before taxation

Taxation (Note 7)
Withholding tax

Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating

shareholders resulting from operations.....................

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 September 2024 30 September 2023

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD €000 USD €000

563 842

8 10

571 852

8,658 8,198

9,229 9,050

(542) (644)

®) (6)

“4) (10)

(28) (33)

(6) (7

) ()

(25) )

(615) (715)

8,614 8,335

- 2)

8,614 8,333

(162) (242)

8,452 8,091

All amounts arose solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the

Profit and Loss Account.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD 000 USD 000
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations................c.ccocoeiiiiiiiniiniiieeeee e 8,452 8,091
Share transactions
Reinvestment of deemed distributions on accumulation shares (Note 0)...................... - 2
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share
tranSACtIONS (INOLE 8)..vvieiieiiiieiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e et et eebeeaeessbeenbeeneeeene 1,608 (63,119)
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
SRATENONIACY'S .......cc.oiiiiiiiicieccee ettt e e eebeestbeebeesee e 10,060 (55,026)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
Beginning of financial Period............cvecvivieriiiiiiiiicieie e 87,205 129,399
End of financial period...........cocoiieiiiieieii e 97,265 74,373

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Schedule of Investments

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Transferable Securities (96.28%) Switzerland (0.28%)
Common Stock (96.28%) Electrical Equipment
Bermuda (0.07%) 1 Garmin Ltd. ... 175 0.18
Chemicals . Insurance
! félaltac"a“ngsy“ems 5 00s - Chubb Ltd. ..o 92 0.10
267 0.28
Insurance . .
1 Axis Capital Holdings U{nted Kingdom .(0'07%)
Ltd. o 29 0.03 Oil and Gas Services
3 TechnipFMC PLC ......... 65 0.07
72 0.07
United States (93.12%)
Canada (0.05%) Aerospace and Defence
Environmenta'l Control - Curtiss-Wright Corp...... 68 0.07
- Waste Connections, - General Dynamics
INCoveviiiiiiiii 47 0.05 Corp. .............................. 93 0.10
Cayman Islands (0.50%) 1 General Electric Co. ...... 156 0.16
Banks - L3Harris Technologies,

36 NU Holdings Ltd........... 488 0.50 InC.oviiiiiiii 98 0.10
Ireland (1.24%) 2 Leonardo DRS,‘ Inc........ 50 0.05
Building Products 1 Lockheed Martin Corp. . 451 0.46

- CRH PLC (US listed)... 38 0.04 I Northrop Grumman
1 Trane Technologies COFp ............................... 378 0.39
PLC...oooooooooeeseee 274 028 1 RTX COrp. ccvvcvssssnrnsnss 116 0.12
Chemicals Agriculture .
- Linde PLC ...ccoooooe.... 95  0.10 9 Archer-Daniels-Midland
CO. ittt 518 0.53
Computers and Peripherals .
- Accenture PLC ............. 96 0.10 Airlines
1 TE Connectivity PLC.... 96 0.10 4 Southwest Airlines Co. .. 124 0.13
Electrical Equipment Auto Components
2 Eaton Corp. PLC ... 462 0.48 2 BorgWarner, Inc. ........... 53 0.05
- nVent Electric PLC........ 14 0.01 1 Lear COI'p ....................... 144 0.15
2 Phinia, Inc.......ccceeenee. 85 0.09
Health Care Equipment and Supplies
1 Medtronic PLC.............. 92 0.09 Automobiles
1 Cummins, Inc. .............. 413 0.42
Insurance 17 Ford Motor Co............... 180 0.19
- Willis Towers Watson 7 General Motors Co. ....... 306 0.31
PLC.ooiiiieeeeeee 35 0.04 1 PACCAR,InC. oo 96 0.10
1,202 1.24 1 Tesla, Inc 323 0.33
Luxembourg (0.56%) Banks
Internet Software and Services 9 Bank of America Corp... 341 0.35
1 Spotify Technology SA.. 548 0.56 1 BOK Financial Corp...... 69 0.07
Netherlands (0.36%) 5 Citigroup, Inc. ............... 295 0.30
Chemicals 1 Comerica, Inc. ............... 81 0.08
2 LyondellBasell - Goldman Sachs Group,
Industries NV ..o 202 021 INCevvrieeiiieeeeeeee 94 0.10
5 JPMorgan Chase & Co.. 998 1.03
Semiconductor Equipment and Products 11 KeyCorp coovevverererennnann. 183 0.19
1 NXP Semiconductors 2 Morgan Stanley ............. 263 0.27
NV o, 146 0.15 - PNC Financial Services
348 0.36 Group, InC....cccccvvvvuenene 94 0.10
Puerto Rico (0.03%) 2 Stat.e Str.eet Cprp ............ 143 0.15
Banks 2 Truist Financial Corp..... 93 0.09
- Popular, Inc......ccceveneee 32 0.03 2 US. Bancorp......cccceeee %3 0.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %

2 Wells Fargo & Co. ......... 96 0.10 6 PayPal Holdings, Inc. .... 487 0.50

- Western Alliance 2 Robert Half, Inc 126 0.13
Bancorp ......coceveevieeenens 30 0.03 1 S&P Global, Inc. ..... 221 0.23

- Zions Bancorp NA......... 17 0.02 4 Vestis Corp. .ccceveeveneenee 62 0.06
Beverages Computers and Peripherals

10 Coca-Cola Co. ............... 705 0.73 29 Apple, Inc..ccoovveuveennnne 6,698 6.89

2 Monster Beverage 1 Cognizant Technology
(070] 4 o OSSO 90 0.09 Solutions Corp............... 94 0.10

1 PepsiCo, Inc................... 225 0.23 1 Crowdstrike Holdings,

Biotechnolo InC. oo 279 0.29

3 ACADIA gy - EPAM Systems, Inc....... 66 0.07

. 4 Fortinet, Inc. .................. 330 0.34
Pharmaceuticals, Inc...... 41 0.04
1 Hewlett Packard

1 Amgen, Inc.....cccovenenee 199 0.21 .

. Enterprise Co.......cceueee. 19 0.02

1 Biogen, Inc. ....cceevenenne 126 0.13 . .

. o 1 International Business

- Blueprint Medicines .

Corp 14 001 Machines Corp. ............. 100 0.10
L ’ 3 KBR,InC....coovvvevrnene. 225 0.23

- Exelixis, Inc.....cc.ccuee.. 8 0.01 s Kyndrvl Holdi I 114 012

2 Gilead Sciences, Inc. ..... 201 0.21 y.n Ty’ Ho . 1ngs, Inc... :

- Tneyte Corp 16 0.02 1 Leidos Holdings, Inc. ... 198 0.20

C ’ 2 NCR Atleos Corp. ......... 54 0.05

2 PTC Therapeutics, Inc. .. 61 0.06

1 NetApp, Inc. ..cccevveueneee 110 0.11

- Regeneron
Pharmaceuticals, Inc...... 85 0.09 Construction and Engineering

1 Sarepta Therapeutics, 1 AECOM......cccoecvvuveinns 101 0.10
InC. e 111 0.11 - Comfort Systems USA,

- Vertex Pharmaceuticals, INC.vvviiieieeeeeeeee 167 0.17
InC.ovveiicee 92 0.09 1 EMCOR Group, Inc. ..... 210 0.22
Building Products Containers and Packaging

1 Builders FirstSource, 2 Crown Holdings, Inc. .... 188 0.19
INC.voiiieee 196 0.20 1 Sealed Air Corp. ............ 28 0.03

- ?ennox International, . 004 Distributors

) Ijlc'ﬁ". """" Pf """"""" ’ 1 Fastenal Co. ....ccceeveeee. 97 0.10

ousiana-factiie 1 WESCO International,
(61075 s J R 176 0.18 Inc 97 0.10

2 Masco Corp. ....couvnnn. 166 0.17 Crmmmmmmmmmmmm—— ’

1 Owens Corning.............. 128 0.13 Diversified Financials

- Trex Co., InC..cccoovunen... 18 0.02 3 Ally Financial, Inc. ........ 118 0.12
Chemical - American Express Co.... 100 0.10

A - BlackRock, Inc. .....c..... 260 0.28

1 Air Products & . .

. 1 Bread Financial
Chemicals, Inc................ 100 0.10 .
Holdings, Inc. ................ 57 0.06

- Dow, Inc..cccovvvviiiiins 11 0.01 . . .

1 Capital One Financial

5 DuPont de Nemours,

I 438 0.45 COTP. e 81 0.08
NC. i . I Charles Schwab Corp. ... 90 0.09

1 Ecolab, Inc 199 0.21
- CME Group, Inc............ 95 0.10

6 Huntsman Corp. ............ 150 0.15 -

. 1 Enact Holdings, Inc. ...... 20 0.02

1 International Flavors & .

2 Interactive Brokers
Fragrances, Inc. ............. 138 0.14 Grou. Inc 200 021

I PPG Industries, Inc....... 170 0.18 L LPL B '

1 Sherwin-Williams Co. ... 200 0.21 .

| Westlake C 150 015 Holdings, Inc. ................ 118 0.12

estiake LOIP. wvvevvnvens : 2 Mastercard, Inc. ............. 1,131 1.16
Commercial Services and Supplies - Raymond James

3 Automatic Data Financial, Inc. ................ 14 0.01
Processing, Inc............... 731 0.75 10 Synchrony Financial...... 482 0.50

2 Cintas COrp.....couevvevennene 378 0.39 1 T Rowe Price Group,

- ManpowerGroup, Inc..... 27 0.03 Inc. e 97 0.10

- Moody’s Corp. ....cee.e 45 0.05 - Visa, InC...oooveveiiieiee 89 0.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Electric Utilities 1 Bruker Corp.....ccccoevneene 31 0.03
2 CenterPoint Energy, - Danaher Corp. ............... 122 0.13
INC.ooeiiiii 67 0.07 4 Edwards
1 Constellation Energy Lifesciences Corp.......... 285 0.29
(61075 s F 148 0.15 2 GE HealthCare
1 Duke Energy Corp......... 100 0.10 Technologies, Inc........... 184 0.19
1 Eversource Energy......... 65 0.07 - Insulet Corp. ...cceoveueennen 64 0.07
8 Exelon Corp......ccoeuveneee 309 0.32 - Intuitive Surgical, Inc. ... 95 0.10
1 NextEra Energy, Inc. ..... 96 0.10 - Stryker Corp. .....ccceueuenee. 92 0.09
5 NRG Energy, Inc. .......... 500 0.51 1 Thermo Fisher
1 Sempra......... 93 0.09 Scientific, Inc. ............... 338 0.35
! S(?uthern 0. 103 0.1 Health Care Providers and Services
7 Vistra Corp. ...coceeevvueennen 843 0.87 2 Centene COIp..oooe...... 129 0.13
Electrical Equipment 1 Elevance Health, Inc...... 595 0.61
- Acuity Brands, Inc......... 62 0.06 - HCA Healthcare, Inc. .... 133 0.14
12 Amphenol Corp.............. 756 0.78 1 Humana, Inc. ................. 424 0.44
4 Atmus Filtration 1 Molina Healthcare, Inc.. 271 0.28
Technologies, Inc........... 164 0.17 1 Oscar Health, Inc........... 22 0.02
1 Emerson Electric Co...... 107 0.11 1 UnitedHealth Group,
- Generac Holdings, Inc... 38 0.04 Inc. e 507 0.52
! Honeywell Home Builders
International, Inc. .......... 252 0.26
. ) 1 DR Horton, Inc.............. 94 0.10
I Keysight Technologies, 1 Lennar Corp........coo..... 272 028
INC. oot 141 0.15 .
- Meritage Homes Corp. .. 38 0.04
- Mettler-Toledo
International, Inc. ....... 234 0.24 - NVR, Inc. .coovviiinnee 206 0.21
. 1 PulteGroup, Inc. ............ 101 0.10
3 Trimble, Inc. .....cccoueeee. 149 0.15 1 Taylor Morrison Home
Entertainment COTP. e 70 0.07
1 Live Nation 1 Toll Brothers, Inc........... 150 0.16
Entertainment, Inc. ........ 93 0.10 Household Products
Environmental Control 2 Kimberly-Clark Corp. ... 301 0.31
1 Tetra Tech, Inc. .............. 27 0.03 Insurance
3 Veralto Corp. ..ococcvvnes 346 035 1 AFlAC, TG oo 95 0.10
Food Products 3 Allstate Corp. ...... 589 0.61
1 General Mills, Inc.......... 91 0.09 - Assurant, Inc.................. 54 0.06
1 Hershey Co. .....ccoveueee. 87 0.09 2 Berkshire Hathaway,
2 Kroger Co. ..cooeevvveeennene 102 0.11 Inc.oeviiiie 710 0.73
- McCormick & Co., Inc.. 14 0.01 - Brown & Brown, Inc. .... 34 0.04
1 Mondelez International, 5 Corebridge Financial,
INC. oo 104 0.11 INC. oo 149 0.15
2 Pilgrim’s Pride Corp. ... 71 0.07 1 Equitable Holdings,
- Sprouts Farmers InC.ooviiiiiii 49 0.05
Market, Inc. ......cccceeeee 32 0.03 2 First American
1 Sysco Corp. .cceevveveeenne 92 0.10 Financial Corp. .............. 106 0.11
7 Tyson Foods, Inc............ 421 0.43 1 Lincoln National Corp... 33 0.03
Gas Utilities 1 é/[arshI & McLennan 70 ot
0S., INC.oovvviiiiie .
2 UGI Corp....ccevvvvererannne 59 0.06 2 MetLife, Ino........ 158 016
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 4 Progressive Corp. .......... 959 0.99
1 Abbott Laboratories....... 91 0.09 1 Prudential Financial,
1 Agilent Technologies, INC.oiiii 101 0.10
INC.oviiiiii 208 0.21 1 Reinsurance Group of
1 Align Technology, Inc.... 153 0.16 America, Inc. .......cc...... 314 0.32
1 Boston Scientific Corp.. 106 0.11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 USD 000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
2 Travelers Cos., Inc......... 469 0.48 Miscellaneous Manufacturers
1 Unum Group......cccceeenee 83 0.09 2 3M CO.ieieieieeee 192 0.20
Internet Software and Services - llinois Tool Works,
. INC.oovviiiieeeeee 100 0.10
2 Airbnb, Inc.......ccooeue.. 297 0.31 o
9 Alphabet, Inc. - Parker-Hannifin Corp.... 101 0.10
(C1asS A) oo 1464 151 I Textron, InG.....coosvvveve 65 007
10 Alphabet, Inc. Office Electronics
(Class C) .ovvvevreereeeerenene 1,656 1.70 - Zebra Technologies
14 Amazon.com, Inc. ......... 2,678 2.75 COIP. e 124 0.13
- Booking Holdings, Inc. . 682 0.70 Oil and Gas
4 Coupang, Inc. ................ 90 0.09
2 Chevron Corp. ....cevneee 306 0.31
- Etsy, Inc. .cccooveeiiie 14 0.01 o,
1 ConocoPhillips............... 92 0.09
- GoDaddy, Inc... 14 0.02
3 Coterra Energy, Inc........ 73 0.08
11 Lyft, Inc. ............. 140 0.14
2 Devon Energy Corp....... 100 0.10
3 Maplebear, Inc............... 110 0.11
1 EOG Resources, Inc. ..... 94 0.10
5 Meta Platforms, Inc. ...... 2,593 2.67 .
. 6 Exxon Mobil Corp......... 676 0.69
1 Netflix, Inc.......cccoeeunenns 313 0.32
- Marathon Petroleum
- Palo Alto Networks,
Inc 9] 0.09 (01075 s F 17 0.02
R . I SM Energy Co. ... 38 0.04
5 Robinhood Markets, 3 Valero Energy Cor 356 0.37
I0C. oo 127 0.3 By LOIp- oo ‘
3 Snap, Inc 34 0.04 Oil and Gas Services
3 TripAdvisor, Inc. ........... 43 0.04 3 Baker Hughes Co........... 96 0.10
? gbgrs;l“echlrl ologies, Inc. ég; 8 ;i Personal Products
TSI, ANC. v ’ 1 Colgate-Palmolive Co.... 112 0.11
Iron and Steel 1 elf Beauty, Inc................ 91 0.09
1 Nucor Corp.....ccevveeenee 99 0.10 3 Procter & Gamble Co.... 492 0.51
Lodging Pharmaceuticals
1 Hilton Worldwide 3 AbbVie, Inc. ...cocveneeee 695 0.71
Holdings, Inc. ................ 332 0.34 - Becton Dickinson &
Machi CO. o 94 0.10
achnery 1 BellRing Brands, Inc. .... 61  0.06
- Caterpillar, Inc............... 123 0.13 . .
11 Bristol-Myers Squibb
- Deere & Co....ccovveuvennnne 100 0.10
| Fl C 7 0.03 CO. o 564 0.58
OWSCEIVE LOID. - : 3 Cardinal Health, Inc. ..... 301 031
- GE Vernova, Inc............. 88 0.09
- Cencora, Inc.....cc.ooc...... 126 0.13
2 Graco, Inc. ..covvveeennen. 164 0.17 | Ciena Grou 277 0.29
4 Otis Worldwide Corp..... 388 0.40 g P ‘
| Vertiv Holdines C 118 012 2 CVS Health Corp. ......... 103 0.11
V\?rttIVWOt 1ES L0 vvvee : 1 Eli Lilly & Co.ooovvvoee.... 1,061 1.09
- vatts Watet 4 Johnson & Johnson........ 634 0.65
Technologies, Inc........... 21 0.02
. . 1 McKesson Corp............. 504 0.52
1 Westinghouse Air Brake
. 10 Merck & Co., Inc........... 1,089 1.12
Technologies Corp......... 183 0.19 N e Biosci
1 Xvlem. Inc 103 0.10 - Neurocrine Biosciences,
YR, T vevsrsrssssssssssee : I0C. s 53 0.05
Media 14 Pfizer, Inc. ..... 399 0.41
- Charter 1 Zoetis, Inc........ccueeeunen. 166 0.17
Communications, Inc..... 92 0.09 Pipelines
6 Comcast Corp.......ccoe.... 239 0.25 - Cheniere Energy, Tnc. ... 51 0.05
4 Fox Corp. (Class A)....... 175 0.18 .
. 4 Kinder Morgan, Inc. ...... 97 0.10
1 New York Times Co....... 66 0.07
| Walt Di C 101 0.10 1 ONEOK, Inc.....ccoevenen. 91 0.10
AL ASNCY 0o ’ 1 Targa Resources Corp. .. 118 0.12
3 xiﬂsc?ﬁg Minine 126 0.13 Real Estate
e . > CBRE Ine. 264 P
5 Newmont Corp. ............ 286 0.29 CBRE Group, Inc 64 027
3 Southern Copper Corp... 280 0.29

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
1 Howard Hughes 1 Applied Materials, Inc... 159 0.16
Holdings, Inc. ................ 64 0.07 5 Broadcom, Inc. .............. 931 0.96
- Jones Lang LaSalle, 17 Intel Corp............. 392 0.40
INC. oot 31 0.03 - KLA Corp 210 0.22
Real Estate Investment Trust } La.m Res'earch corp..... 162 0.17
. 1 Microchip Technology,
- American Tower Corp. .. 52 0.05
INC. oo 99 0.10
- AvalonBay | Mi Technol
Communities, Inc. ......... 74 0.08 In;cron echinology, 49 0.05
2 Carr?dfen Property Trust.. 257 0.27 44 NVIDIA Corp 5315 5.46
- Equinix, Inc. .....coeeenee 246 0.25
3 Equity Commonwealth.. 61 0.06 - Qorvo, InC..coovvenieienn, 15 0.02
. . . 2 QUALCOMM, Inc. ....... 304 0.31
1 Equity Residential ......... 31 0.03
1 Texas Instruments, Inc... 95 0.10
1 Essex Property Trust,
INC.ooviiiiiii 241 0.25 Software
1 Healthpeak Properties, 1 Adobe, Inc. ...c.oovevennneee 278 0.29
INC.oiiii 15 0.02 - Appfolio, Inc. ................ 15 0.01
1 Prologis, Inc......c.ceee. 90 0.09 2 Atlassian Corp............... 265 0.27
1 Public Storage................ 216 0.22 1 Autodesk, Inc................. 281 0.29
1 SBA Communications 5 Box,InC...cccceevvenniiienn, 147 0.15
COrp. .o, 226 0.23 - CommVault Systems,
3 VICI Properties, Inc. ..... 113 0.12 INC. v 58 0.06
Retail Trade 3 Confluent, Inc 51 0.05
. . 1 Datadog, Inc. ................. 105 0.11
1 Abercrombie & Fitch .. .
1 DigitalOcean Holdings,
CO. ettt 112 0.11 I 56 0.06
1 Bath & Body Works, AT .
1 DocuSign, Inc................ 49 0.05
INC. oot 27 0.03 . .
. 3 DoubleVerify Holdings,
- Burlington Stores, Inc.... 44 0.05
INC.vveiiieieeee 45 0.05
- Cava Group, Inc............. 54 0.06
. . . 12 Dropbox, Inc 308 0.32
2 Chipotle Mexican Grill, .
- Electronic Arts, Inc........ 37 0.04
INC. oo 121 0.12
- HubSpot, Inc.................. 20 0.02
1 Costco Wholesale .
Cor ]71 0.90 1 Intuit, Inc. .oovveeveinee 579 0.59
i Dorﬁmo’shzzalnc """" 129 0'13 13 Microsoft Corp. ............. 5,500 5.65
| Fereuson Enter ,rises. """ ’ - MSCI, Inc. ........... 60 0.06
g Prises, 3 Nutanix, Inc. oo 204 021
INC. oo 99 0.10
1 Oracle Corp. (US
1 Gap,Inc...ocoveveviienes 30 0.03 .
listed) ..vooveerieeeieieieenee 165 0.17
2 Home Depot, Inc. .......... 634 0.65
5 1 Paychex, Inc......ccocueee.. 94 0.10
- Lowe’s Cos., Inc............. 98 0.10
. - Paycom Software, Inc.... 69 0.07
- Lululemon Athletica, .
Inc 48 005 2 Procore Technologies,
e ’ INC. v 122 0.12
- McDonald’s Corp.......... 1
cDonald’s Corp. o7 010 4 ROBLOX Corp 165 0.17
- O’Reilly Automotive, .
- Roper Technologies,
InC.ooviiiiiii 94 0.10
InC.oooviiiiii 93 0.09
1 Ross Stores, Inc.. 92 0.09
- Salesforce, Inc. .............. 103 0.11
1 Starbucks Corp...... 98 0.10 .
5 SentinelOne, Inc. ........... 113 0.12
1 Target Corp....cceevveueenene 96 0.10 .
- ServiceNow, Inc............. 173 0.18
1 Texas Roadhouse, Inc.... 87 0.09
2 Smartsheet, Inc. ... 107 0.11
1 TJX Cos., Inc.......c........ 152 0.16
1 Teradata Corp. ..... 41 0.04
- Walgreens Boots .
. 5 UiPath, Inc......c..ccune.... 65 0.07
Alliance, Inc. ................. 2 0.00
- Veeva Systems, Inc......... 20 0.02
8 Walmart, Inc. ................. 646 0.66 1 Workdav. I 253 026
1 Williams-Sonoma, Inc. .. 175 0.18 OTKAAY, INC. oo :
1 Wingstop, Inc. ............... 224 0.23 Telecommunications
. . 1 Arista Networks, Inc...... 196 0.20
Semiconductor Equipment and Products 4 AT&T, InC...coveeneee. 95 0.10

Analog Devices, Inc. .....

97

0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
15 Cisco Systems, Inc. ....... 783 0.81 - Union Pacific Corp........ 109 0.11
1 Iridium 1 United Parcel Service,
Communications, Inc..... 29 0.03 InC..oooviiiiie, 107 0.11
1 Motorola Solutions, 90.577 93.12
1TSS 384 039 :
- T-Mobile US., Inc. ........ 98 0.10 Total Common Stock... 93,646 _ 9628
4 Verizon Total Transferable
Communications, Inc..... 191 0.20 Securities ..................... 93,646  96.28
Textile and Apparel
{ I]?J;:{(:(l;er?n(zutdoor Corp. 1?; 8?3 Investment Funds (3.58%)
yInc. . Ireland (3.58%)
Toys, Games and Hobbies Russell Investment
2 Hasbro, Inc. ....cccoveuenee 133 0.14 Company III plc Russell
Transport Investments U.S. Dollar
P Cash Fund II Class SW
3 CSX Corp. cevvreeveveeenens 89 0.09 Roll-up Sh 3478 3.58
- FedEX COIP..veerrrrrrrrneen. 89 0.09 OHUP SHALES oovvvvvvvoens 2 '
2 JB Hunt Transport Total Investment
Services) Inc. coveeviiiin, 387 0.40 Funds ..o, 3,478 3.58
1 Landstar System, Inc. .... 180 0.19 Total Investments
2 0Old Dominion Frelght excluding Financial
Line, InC....ccoovevereeiinnnn 438 0.45 Derivative
I Ryder System, Inc. ........ 149 0.15 Instruments................... 97,124  99.86
3 Schneider National,
INC.ooviiiiiiii 71 0.07
Financial Derivative Instruments (0.07%)
Open Futures Contracts (0.07%)
Notional Average Unrealised
Amount Cost Price Gain (Loss) Fund
USD €000 USD USD ‘000 %
3,418 5,696.96 12 of S&P 500 E-mini Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............cceovvieieieeiennnne 70 0.07
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open futures coONtracts ................occoeeveeriercieeiienieeieeeenns 70 0.07
Total Financial Derivative INStruments ................ccoocoiiiiiiiniiiiiinie e 70 0.07
Fair Value Fund
USD €000 %
Total Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(99.93%/0) .ot 97,194 99.93
Other Net AsSets (0.07%0) ..cc.coovieieeiieeiieieeeie e 71 0.07
NEEASSEES ....oviiiiiiiiieeee e e e e et 97,265 100.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

Analysis of gross assets

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing

Investment fUNAS (UCITS) . ..ouiiieiieiieieiee ettt ettt ettt et e et e e st e eseeseesseenaesseessenseensenseeneensenns
Exchange traded financial derivative INStIUMENLS .......cc.eveieiriririnieniteeet ettt
L0 13 TS) U T £ SRS

The broker for the open futures contracts is Bank of America Merrill Lynch.

Fair Value Hierarchy (Note 10)

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by investment type)
measured at fair value at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.

As at 30 September 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUITHIES. .....ccvervierieeiieiesieie e
Investment funds
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts

TOtal ASSELS........oviiieiiiiieeeee e

As at 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUITLIES........cc.eevviiiiuieeiiieeciieeee e
Investment funds

% of
gross assets
................................................................ 95.68
3.55
0.07
0.70
100.00
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD 000 USD 000 USD 000 USD <000
93,646 - 93,646
- 3,478 3,478
70 - 70
93,716 3,478 97,194
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD ‘000 USD 000 USD 000 USD <000
84,078 - 84,078
- 3,010 3,010
66 - 66
84,144 3,010 87,154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio*

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Acquisition Cost
Portfolio Securities USD €000

Disposal Proceeds
Portfolio Securities USD <000

Russell Investment Company I1I plc
Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II

Class SW Roll-up Shares 12,120
Apple, Inc. 852
NVIDIA Corp. 798
Amphenol Corp. 790
Merck & Co., Inc. 713
Amazon.com, Inc. 698
Walmart, Inc. 673
Intuit, Inc. 607
Cisco Systems, Inc. 538
ConocoPhillips 533
Meta Platforms, Inc. 513
Salesforce, Inc. 477
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 473
Constellation Energy Corp. 446
Exxon Mobil Corp. 408
Berkshire Hathaway, Inc. 391
Home Depot, Inc. 379
Bristol-Myers Squibb Co. 355
Eli Lilly & Co. 353
NU Holdings Ltd. 350

Russell Investment Company 111 plc
Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II

Class SW Roll-up Shares (11,752)
Merck & Co., Inc. (874)
Apple, Inc. (871)
Adobe, Inc. (762)
Walmart, Inc. (677)
Eli Lilly & Co. (663)
Visa, Inc. (601)
Microsoft Corp. (597)
Meta Platforms, Inc. (550)
Mastercard, Inc. (545)
ConocoPhillips (519)
NVIDIA Corp. (512)
Salesforce, Inc. (488)
Marathon Petroleum Corp. (464)
Intel Corp. (426)
Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. (422)
HP, Inc. (408)
Constellation Energy Corp. (393)
3M Co. (391)
NVR, Inc. (372)

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases exceeding 1% of total cost of purchases, and sales exceeding
1% of total proceeds. At a minimum the twenty largest purchases and twenty largest sales must be shown. Should there have been
less than that amount of transactions, all such transactions have been disclosed. Securities held to maturity, which matured during the
reporting period, have been excluded from the Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio.

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the reference period may be obtained free of charge from the Company’s
Administrator or from the paying agent or paying and information agents in each country of distribution.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loSs .........cccoovevieviiiieiiiicieeeee e

Cash at bank (NOTE 2) .....eeveriieieiieieie ettt

Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative

INSIUMENtS (INOTE 2) ..ottt

Debtors:

Receivable for investments SOId ...........cooevvvviiiiiiiiiieiiiiieee e,
Receivable on fund shares iSSUEd ..........cccovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee,
Dividends receivable.........cooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiceee e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or oSS .........cccevveiieviinieciirieieic e,

Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:

Payable for investments purchased............ccocoeverieieniicienciieeee
Payable on fund shares redeemed............cccooveiininiiiiieiee
Management fees payable.........ccccooeeriiiiiinieeee e
Depositary fees payable..........ocovvevveerieiiienieiecie e
Sub-custodian fees payable..........ccoveveriieieriieieieceeeceee e
Administration fees payable ...........ccoccvvveviirieciinieee e
Audit fees payable ........ccvevviviiiiieee e
Other fees Payable ........c.ooveieriieiei e

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)
USD ‘000 USD €000

1,546,796 1,485,267

17,360 10,299

34311 27,467

381 -

837 1,219

2,921 3,739

1,602,606 1,527,991

(11,209) (5,498)

(381) -

(3,121) (1,083)

(2,056) (1,025)

(104) (64)

(74) (41)

(143) (126)

(10) (22)

(66) (121)

(17,164) (7,980)

1,585,442 1,520,011




Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Income

DAVIAEINAS ...
INEEIESt INCOMIE ..ot

Net gain (loss) on investment actiVities .........c.oceevvereerverreeriereeieneeeenneenees

Total investment inCome (EXPENSE)...........cccuerruierierieeieenieeireenieeeeeeneenns

Expenses

Management fees (INOE 3) ....ooveiuirieriiriieiieieiee et
Depositary fees (INOTE 4).....ocuieieiiiieeiiieieetieie et
Sub-custodian fees (INOLE 4) ......ceeveeriieiiieiieiie et ere e
Administration and transfer agency fees (Note 4).......cccocveevvenveriieenneens
AUAIE FEES. .ttt
Professional fEes..........couiiiiriiirieee e
OFRET fEES... ettt ettt

Total operating eXPenses ............cccooveiuirieiiiiieiene e

Net inCOmME (EXPEIISE) .......oovuiiiiiiiieniiieiieniie ettt ete ettt ebeesreeseenaee s

Finance costs

Distributions (INOLE 6)....ccueevevieriieriieiieiieeieeieesteeteereesee e esieessaeeaeenes
Profit (loss) for the financial period before taxation..............................

Taxation (Note 7)

Withholding taX ......cccieieiiiieee e

Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations......................cccoooiiininine

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 September 2024 30 September 2023

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD €000 USD €000

18,477 23,129

632 1,131

19,109 24,260

101,411 7,555

120,520 31,815

(6,070) (7,514)

93) (98)

(66) (60)

(243) (210)

(12) (12)

(65) (69)

(191) (105)

(6,740) (8,068)

113,780 23,747

(11,464) (13,494)

102,316 10,253

(2,549) (2,866)

99,767 7,387

All amounts arose solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the

Profit and Loss Account.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Russell Investments World Equity Fund 63



Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD 000 USD 000
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations................c.ccocoeiiiiiiiniiniiieeeee e 99,767 7,387
Share transactions
Reinvestment of deemed distributions on accumulation shares (Note 0)...................... 11,464 11,541
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share
tranSACtIONS (INOLE 8)..vvieiieiiiieiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e et et eebeeaeessbeenbeeneeeene (45,800) (7,886)
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
SRATENONARI'S ... et e e 65,431 11,042
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
Beginning of financial Period............cvecvivieiiiieiiriieierie e 1,520,011 1,596,564
End of financial Period...........cocoiieiiioiei e 1,585,442 1,607,606

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % USD ’000 %
Transferable Securities (93.14%) Canada (1.75%)
Common Stock (93.14%) Airlines
Australia (0.43%) 40 Air Canada..................... 487 0.03
Commercial Services and Supplies
205 Brambles Ltd. .............. 2,701 0.17 Auto Components
27 Magna International,
Food Products Inc. (US listed) .............. 1,123 0.07
26 Coles Group Ltd. ........... 325 0.02 Banks
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 17 Royal Bank of Canada... 2,092 0.13
1 Cochlear Ltd................... 106 0.01 Containers and Packaging
Insurance 5 CCL Industries, Inc. ...... 272 0.02
73 gsuranﬁfdAHStralla 4 000 Electric Utilities
FOUP LG v ‘ 8 Atco Ltd. ..o 269 0.02
Metals and Mining
Food Products
27 BHP Group Ltd. ............ 858 0.06 2 George Weston Ltd. ...... 356 0.02
47 Northern Star 14 Loblaw Cos. Ltd 1,846 0.12
Resources Ltd. ............... 526 0.03 ODIAW L-0S. Cr ’ ’
B
9 AmPOLLAd. oo 186 0.01 TCe oo 9% 001
Other Finance Insurance
8 Iris Energy Ltd............... 69 0.01 8 Great-West Lifeco, Inc. . 286 0.02
Real Estate Investment Trust 17 Intact Financial Corp. ... 3,282 0.20
34 Charter Hall Group........ 379 0.02 42 Manulife Financial
5 Goodman Group............ 134 0.01 (01075 s 1,251 0.08
.. 14 Sun Life Financial, Inc. . 793 0.05
Telecommunications
415 Telstra Group Ltd. ......... 1,116 0.07 Internet Software and Services
. listed) ...coooerveveneiriinne 2,436 0.15
Austria (0.02%)
Banks Metals and Mining
3 BAWAG Group AG ...... 251 0.02 12 Agnico Eagle Mines
. Ltd. v 929 0.06
Bel 0.08¢
c;eg:x?ig;fs %) 40 Barrick Gold Corp......... 803 0.05
20 Barrick Gold Corp. (US
15 S SA 1,321 0.08 .
yensqo ’ Tisted) cooooeeeerrorrreoeee 394 0.03
Bermuda (0.10%) .
Hotels, Restaurants and Leisure oil an_d Gas
30 Viking Holdings Ltd...... 1,041 0.06 32 Canadian Natural
Resources Ltd. (US
Insurance listed) ..vovvreeeeeeeenn. 1,053 0.07
3 Arch Capital Group 5 Imperial Oil Ltd............. 349 0.02
Ltq. ........ e s 313 0.02 156 Suncor Energy, Inc. ....... 5,767 0.36
1 Axis Capital Holdings 7 Tourmaline Oil Corp. ... 346 0.02
Ltd. oo 88 0.01 .
- Everest Group Ltd. ........ 199 0.01 Retail Trade
16 Dollarama, Inc. .............. 1,674 0.11
1,641 0.10
Brazil (0.05%) Software
Beverages 6 Descartes Systems
329 Ambev SA ADR 302 0.05 Group, InC.....cccoecveennnne. 662 0.04

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 USD 000 % of Shares 000 USD 000 %
Transport Oil and Gas
10 Canadian National 167 Neste OYJ...coovevvveiiennnne 3,249 0.20
Railway Co. .....cccoveuennes 1,154 0.07 Paper and Forest Products
27,720 1.75 180 UPM-Kymmene OYJ..... 6,030 038
Cayman Islands (0.66%) Telecommunications
Internet Software and Services 7 Elisa OYJ oovroreerereee. 402 0.03
50 Alibaba Group Holding
Ltd. ADR ..o 5339 034 13,136 __0.383
8 Baidu, Inc. ADR ............ 786 0.05 France (5.07%)
41 Tencent Holdings Ltd. ... 2,347 0.15 Advertising
20 Trip.com Group Ltd. 51 Publicis Groupe SA....... 5,560 0.35
ADR.....ooviieeeie 1,202 0.07 Aerospace and Defence
Real Estate 4 Safran SA 946 0.06
85 CK Asset Holdings Ltd.. 374 0.02 24 Thales SA 3,752 0.24
Telecommunications Banks
341 HKT Trust & HKT Ltd.. 437 0.03 87 BNP Paribas SA ............ 5,950 0.38
10,485 066 Beverages
Curacao (0.06%) 11 Pernod Ricard SA .......... 1,746 0.11
QOil and Gas Services Building Products
23 Schlumberger NV........ 977 0.06 50 Cie de Saint-Gobain
Denmark (1.39%) SA o, 4,523 0.28
Bank
5 R?nngkjoebing Chemicals
Landbobank AS 348 0.05 29 Arkema SA................... 2,761 0.17
Beverages Computers and Peripherals
21 Carlsberg AS....ooooo........ 2462 0.16 20 Capgemini SE.............. 4323 027
. Electric Utilities
Biotechnology .
> Genmab AS. 386 0.02 173 Engie SA....cccoveveinne 3,004 0.19
. . Electrical Equipment
Electrical E t
b lee;r;f;e tecqz'spme“ L1gs 008 9 Legrand SA.....oooocro.... 1,068 0.07
"""""" ’ ’ 25 Schneider Electric SE.... 6,645 0.42
Energy Equlpment and Services Food Products
155 Vestas Wind Systems 197 Carrefour SA 3358 021
AS oo 3432 0.22 HESR e : :
Health Care Equipment and Supplies He?.llth Care Equlpment and Supplies
4 EssilorLuxottica SA ...... 1,082 0.07
14 Demant AS .................... 540 0.03 . .
3 Sartorius Stedim
Pharmaceuticals Biotech........ccccoevveenninns 627 0.04
97 Novo Nordisk AS.......... 11,440 0.72
Insurance
Retail Trade 101 AXASA .o 3,905 0.25
1 Pandora AS................... 248 0.02 .
Lodging
Transport 41 Accor SA......cccevvviennn 1,802 0.11
7 DSVAS. oo 1,412 0.09 Oil and Gas
21,956 1.39 96 TotalEnergies SE ........... 6,274 0.40
Finland (0.83%) Personal Products
Insurance 4 L’Oreal SA .......cocu.... 1,624 0.10
13 Sampo OYJ......cocvneen. 602 0.04
) Pharmaceuticals
Machinery 68 Sanofi SA ... 7817 049
25 Kone OYJ....cooovvvenennnen. 1,477 0.09 18 Sanofi SAADR............. 1’033 0.07
128 Metso OYJ..covevreiinnnne 1,376 0.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

Number
of Shares 000

13

130

42

150

42

13

21

\S)

19

Fair Value  Fund Number
USD 000 % of Shares 000
Semiconductor Equipment and Products
SOITEC......coveieiennn, 1,295 0.08 152
Textile and Apparel
Kering SA......ccevevennnnen. 1,570 0.10
LVMH Moet Hennessy 15
Louis Vuitton SE ........... 5,489 0.34 29
Water Utilities
Veolia Environnement 168
SA o 4,282 0.27
80,436 5.07 75

Germany (3.63%)
Aerospace and Defence
Rheinmetall AG ............. 1,245 0.08
Automobiles 285
Bayerische Motoren
Werke AG ........covenee. 3,684 0.23
Daimler Truck Holding 12
AG i 5,640 0.36
Mercedes-Benz Group
AG oo 2,703 0.17
Chemicals 30
Symrise AG ......cccoeueee. 1,288 0.08
Computers and Peripherals
Bechtle AG .................... 341 0.02
Containers and Packaging 46
Gerresheimer AG........... 1,147 0.07
Diversified Financials
Deutsche Boerse AG...... 1,201 0.08 41
Entertainment
CTS Eventim AG & Co.
KGaA.....cccooeeeeienenn 897 0.06 27
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 4l

. . 4
Siemens Healthineers
AG i 1,250 0.08
Insurance |
Allianz SE.........ccoceveen.. 860 0.06 40
Hannover Rueck SE....... 499 0.03
Muenchener 3
Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in
Muenchen..........c........... 2,285 0.14 112
Internet Software and Services
Scout24 SE ......cccvene. 1,301 0.08 1
Miscellaneous Manufacturers
Knorr-Bremse AG ......... 572 0.04 11
Siemens AG .......ccouuee.... 7,427 0.47
Pharmaceuticals
Merck KGaA ................. 3,375 0.21 29

Fair Value  Fund
USD ’000 %

Semiconductor Equipment and Products
Infineon Technologies
AG i 5,340 0.34
Software
Nemetschek SE.............. 1,490 0.09
SAPSE ..ot 6,661 0.42
Telecommunications
Deutsche Telekom AG ... 4,942 0.31
Transport
Deutsche Post AG.......... 3,368 0.21

57,516 3.63
Hong Kong (0.10%)
Banks
BOC Hong Kong
Holdings Ltd.................. 912 0.06
Diversified Financials
Hong Kong Exchanges
& Clearing Ltd............... 487 0.03
Electric Utilities
Power Assets Holdings
Ltd. o 195 0.01

1,594 0.10

India (0.18%)
Banks
HDFC Bank Ltd. ADR .. 2,853 0.18
Ireland (1.93%)
Airlines
Ryanair Holdings PLC
ADR...oooiiiiee 1,838 0.12
Building Products
CRH PLC (US listed).... 2,517 0.16
Kingspan Group PLC.... 3,885 0.24
Trane Technologies
PLC.coiiiiiiiiiice 1,554 0.10
Computers and Peripherals
Accenture PLC .............. 497 0.03
Seagate Technology
Holdings PLC................ 4,354 0.27
TE Connectivity PLC .... 427 0.03
Containers and Packaging
Smurfit WestRock PLC. 5,610 0.36
Electrical Equipment
Eaton Corp. PLC ........... 530 0.03
Entertainment
Flutter Entertainment
o 5 2,552 0.16
Health Care Equipment and Supplies
Medtronic PLC.............. 2,652 0.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Insurance 59 Taiheiyo Cement Corp... 1,383 0.09
11 Willis Towers Watson 129 TOTO Ltd. .......ccevvene.. 4,817 0.30
PLC.oiiiie, 3,158 0.20 Chemicals
Pharmaceuticals 438 Asahi Kasei Corp. ......... 3,312 0.21
9 Jazz Pharmaceuticals 141 KH Neochem Co. Ltd.... 2,074 0.13
PLC.oioiieeeee, 977 0.06 388 Teijin Ltd. ....ccovevnnenee 3,844 0.24
30,551 1.93 583 Toray Industries, Inc...... 3,435 0.22
Israel (0.09%) Commercial Services and Supplies
Aerospace and Defence 492 Sohgo Security Services
4 Elbit Systems Ltd. ......... 855 0.05 Co. Ltd. oo 3,559 0.22
Computers and Peripherals Computers and Peripherals
3 Check Point Software 162 Elecom Co. Ltd.............. 1,646 0.10
Technologies Ltd. .......... 609 0.04 40 NET One Systems Co.
Ltd. e 988 0.06
1464 0.09 29 Otsuka Corp.....c.ccceveee. 724 0.05
Italy (1.10%) . . .
Construction and Engineering
Banks 4 Holdi 1 1
7 Banca Mediolanum 345 JGC Holdings Corp. ...... 3,018 0.19
SpA ................................ 88 0.00 Distributors
208 Banca Monte dei Paschi 20 ITOCHU Corp............... 1,084 0.07
di Siena SpA........c........ 1,204 0.08 19 Sojitz Corp......cceeuvnveen. 445 0.03
128 BPER Banca.................. 724 0.04 . R .
118 FinecoBank Banca Diversified F¥nanc1als
Fineco SpA oo 2023 0.13 93 Nomura Holdings, Inc. . 485 003
158 UniCredit SpA............... 6,925 0.44 Electric Utilities
Electric Utilities 153 ghubu Electric Power 00 ol
347 Enel SPA.eeeroocrsver. 2,780 0.17 05 INC. oo 7 :
76 Kansai Electric Power
Electrical Equipment Co., INC. e, 1,263 0.08
4 P ian SpA................ 256 0.02
fysman Sp Electrical Equipment
Internet Software and Services 29 Brother Industries Ltd. .. 570 0.04
8 Reply SpA ..o 1,237 0.08 277 Casio Computer Co.
RotailTrade 5 Hoya Corp. 05 004
34 Moncler SpA ................. 2,174 0.14 ’ ’
Oncler >p ’ 360 Kyocera Corp................ 4173 026
17.411 1.10 232 Mabuchi Motor Co.
Japan (9.02%) Ltd. el 3,609 0.23
Auto Components 171 Siix COrp. covevvevverrenrennnns 1,320 0.08
14 Bridgestone Corp........... 527 0.03 Gas Utilities
41 Denso Corp.................... 609 0.04 124 Toho Gas Co. Ltd. ......... 3,443 022
448 Nisshinbo Holdings,
TNC. oo 3,006  0.19 Hand and Machine Tools
. 81 Makita Corp......cceveneeen 2,738 0.17
Automobiles
720 Hino Motors Ltd............ 2,331 0.15 Health Care Equipment and Supplies
14 Subaru Corp. ...... 252 0.01 256 Topcon Corp......cceuenee. 2,769 0.17
281 Suzuki Motor Corp........ 3,126 0.20 Health Care Providers and Services
Banks 169 H.U. Group Holdings,
153 Sumitomo Mitsui INC.vvviiieeeeeeeeee, 3,131 0.20
Financial Group, Inc...... 3,257 0.21
Building Products
136 Rinnai Corp. ..c.cceoevveenee 3,357 0.21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc

Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Home Builders Telecommunications
224 Sekisui Chemical Co. 116 KDDI Corp....ccceeveueenee 3,716 0.23
Ltd. oo 3,495 0.22 1,208 Nippon Telegraph &
57 Sekisui House Ltd. ........ 1,578 0.10 Telephone Corp. .. 1,240 0.08
Home Furnishings 1,393 SoftBank Corp............... 1,823 0.12
330 Panasonic Holdings Toys, Games and Hobbies
2,869 0.18 4 Nintendo Co. Ltd........... 192 0.01
119 2,301 0.15
Transport
Hotels, Restaurants and Leisure 237 Nagoya Railroad Co.
303 HIS Co. Ltd. ....ccocuneeeee. 3,567 0.23 Ltd. oo 2,881 0.18
51 Sankyu, Inc. 1,723 0.11
Insurance
32 MS&AD Insurance 143,035 9.02
Group Holdings, Inc....... 752 0.05 Jersey, Channel Islands (0.03%)
62 Sompo Holdings, Inc..... 1,385 0.09 Metals and Mining
51 Tokio Marine Holdings, 93 Glencore PLC................. 533 0.03
InC..oooviiiiii, 1,851 0.11 Korea, Republic of (0.60%)
Internet Software and Services Banks
14 Trend Micro, Inc............ 836 0.05 30 Shinhan Financial
Machinery Group Co. Ltd................ 1,275 0.08
13 Keyence Corp. ............... 6,452 0.41 Semiconductor Equipment and Products
3 SMC Corp. weevereeeenienne 1,290 0.08 174 Samsung Electronics
Metals and Mining Co. Ltd. .o 8,187 0.52
260 MISUMI Group, Inc...... 4,713 0.30 9,462 0.60
Office Electronics Luxembourg (0.38%)
52 Canon, InC. .ooocceverve.eo.. 1,703 0.11 Internet Software and Services
226 Seiko Epson Corp.......... 4,180 0.6 7 Spotify Technology SA.. 2701 0.17
Oil and Gas Iron and Steel
140 ENEOS Holdings, Inc. .. 761 0.05 120 ArcelorMittal SA............ 3,156 0.20
Personal Products Metals and Mining
68 Kao COrp. .ooovvvrrvrrrrrer. 3,404 022 11 Tenaris SA oo 174 __0.01
Pharmaceuticals 6,031 0.38
186 Nippon Shinyaku Co. Marshall Islands (0.03%)
Ltd. v 4,860 0.31 Transport
12 Ono Pharmaceutical Co. 7 Teekay Tankers Ltd........ 396 0.03
5 SR 155 0.01 Netherlands (4.42%)
15 Takeda Pharmaceutical Aerospace and Defence
Co. Ltd s 419 0.02 47 Airbus SE ..o 6,920  0.44
Retail Trade Automobiles
153 Marui Group Co. Ltd..... 2,558 0.16 3 Ferrari NV ..oooooooeoe 1,345 0.08
155 Ryohin Keikaku Co. 170 Stellantis NV (France
Ltd. v 2,849 0.18 1ESted) vvvonrveeeeeereeees 2,357 0.15
Semiconductor Equipment and Products Banks
2 Tokyo Electron Ltd........ 371 0.02 18 ABN AMRO Bank NV.. 321 0.02
Software 665 ING Groep NV .............. 12,085 0.76
101 Square Enix Holdings
Co. Ltd. .o 4,013 0.25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Beverages Telecommunications
233 Davide Campari-Milano 123 Telenor ASA .................. 1,580 0.10
NV ................................. 1,975 0.13 4 964 0.31
77 Heineken NV 6,863  0.43 -
Panama (0.02%)
Biotechnology Hotels, Restaurants and Leisure
3 Argenx SE ... 1,843 0.12 16 Carnival Corp. .............. 304 0.02
Chemicals Singapore (0.49%)
33 Akzo Nobel NV............. 2,342 0.15 Aerospace and Defence
Commercial Services and Supplies 292 }Szﬁlgiii(;iienTeE},nglOgles 1.060 0.07
1 Adyen NV..ooovvvooooee.. 1,860  0.12 & & L e : :
Banks
Diversified Financials .
. 89 DBS Group Holdings
28 AerCap Holdings NV.... 2,59 016 LAd. e 2,630 0.16
Entertainment 62 Oversea-Chinese
56 Universal Music Group Banking Corp. Ltd......... 735 0.05
NV e 1,472 0.09 107 United Overseas Bank
Health Care Equipment and Supplies Ltd. e 2,678 0.17
17 Qiagen NV....cccoeevenene. 754 0.05 Shipbuilding
Internet Software and Services 186 gﬁ?szllljlllil?fg Holdings
64 Prosus NVe.ecovvscee 272 017 L. oo 356 0.02
Oil and Gas Services Telecommunications
39 Fugro NV....ccoeveenne 886 0.06 137 Sineapore
220 SBM Offshore NV......... 4,024 0.25 gap .
Telecommunications
Semiconductor Equipment and Products Ltd. v 347 0.02
2 ASM International NV .. 1,674 0.10 7.806 0.49
14 ASML Holding NV ....... 11,874 0.75 . o
10 BE Semiconductor Spain (1.01%)
Industries NV ooooo...... 1255 0.08 Banks ,
1 NXP Semiconductors 288 Banco Blllbao Vizcaya
NV oo 145 0.01 Argentaria SA............ 3,114 0.20
101 STMicroelectronics 913 Bapco Santander SA...... 4,688 0.29
NV oo 2,992 0.19 836 CaixaBank SA............. 5,006 0.32
Telecommunications Commercial Services and Supplies
423 Koninklijke KPN NV .. 1,731 0.11 15 Amadeus IT Group SA.. 1,071 0.07
70,106 4.42 Construction and Engineering
New Zealand (0.03%) 36 Cellnex Telecom SA ...... 1,468 0.09
Electric Utilities Retail Trade
89 Meridian Energy Ltd. .... 335 0.02 10 Industria de Diseno
N Textil SA..oooviiiiiinee 617 0.04
Telecommunications
56 Spark New Zealand 15,964 1.01
Ltd. oo 108 0.01 Sweden (0.75°A,)
443 0.03 Distributors
Norway (0.31%) 75 AddTechAB.................. 2,261 0.14
Oil and Gas Electrical Equipment
69 Equinor ASA ................. 1,760 0.11 43 AssaAbloy AB .............. 1,430 0.09
Shipbuilding 153 NCAB Group AB .......... 1,020 0.07
17 Kongsberg Gruppen Health Care Equipment and Supplies
ASA oo, 1,624 0.10 45 LifcoAB...ooovvveierinene. 1,487 0.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Machinery Taiwan (2.04%)
37 Atlas Copco AB Semiconductor Equipment and Products
(Class B) ..oovvevveiieiennne 637 0.04 106 Taiwan Semiconductor
40 Sandvik AB 880 0.06 Manufacturing Co. Ltd.. 3,205 0.20
Miscellaneous Manufacturers 168 ﬁ;‘gﬁgfﬁgfg"gﬁucﬁﬁ
55 Trelleborg AB................ 2,123 0.13 T
refieborg . ADR...ooooeee 20163 1.84
Other Finance 32,368 2.04
62 EQTAB...ccoeicie 2,121 0.13
Thailand (0.15%)
11,959 0.75 Banks
Switzerland (3.23%) 256 Kasikornbank PCL
Beverages NVDR. ..o 1,194 0.08
14 Coca-Cola HBC AG....... 482 0.03 346 SCB X PCL NVDR....... 1,171 0.07
Building Products 2,365 0.15
5 Gebgrit AG..oooveieienee 3,092 0.20 United Kingdom (6.90%)
2 Holcim AG.......ccooeue... 198 0.01 Aerospace and Defence
Commercial Services and Supplies 372 BAE Systems PLC........ 6,186 0.39
3 SGS SA.vcriorriiriinn 386 0.02 37 Rolls-Royce Holdings
PLC..oiiieieieee 260 0.02
Computers and Peripherals .
22 Logitech International Airlines
S N 1,932 0.12 379 easylet PLC...coovvrvenn 2,645 017
Diversified Financials Banks
3 Swissquote Group 48 Barclays PLC ................. 143 0.01
Holding SA ...ovveoooooeeo.. 1,128 0.07 272 HSBC Holdings PLC..... 2443 015
3,366 Lloyds Banking Group
Electrical Equipment 1 I G 2,655 0.17
14 ABBLtd......ccoeevveneenn. 794 0.05 562 NatWest Group PLC...... 2,593 0.16
2 Garmin Ltd. ....c.coeenee 446 0.03
Beverages
Food Products 121 Diageo PLC................... 4226 027
91 Nestle SA....cciveieenne. 9,127 0.57
Biotechnology
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 42 Royalty Pharma PLC..... 1,175 0.07
26 Alcon, Inc. ........ccoco.. 2,570 0.16 . . .
1 Sonova Holding AG....... 454 0.03 Commercial Services and Supplies
7 Straumann HOldlIlg AG. 1’230 0.08 45 Ashtead Group PLC ...... 3,482 0.22
66 Bunzl PLC..................... 3,117 0.19
Health Care Providers and Services 27 Intertek Group PLC....... 1,886  0.12
1 Lonza Group AG ........... 444 0.03
Computers and Peripherals
Insurance 32 Kainos Group PLC........ 375 0.02
2 Chubb Ltd.....ccoeennneee 593 0.04 56 Softcat PLC weoevoeeeoonn 1,178 0.08
2 Zurich Insurance Group . " X .
YN T 1259 0.08 Diversified Financials
256 Allfunds Group PLC ..... 1,574 0.10
Pharmaceuticals 32 Alpha Group
61 Novartis Aq ................... 7,015 0.44 International PLC .......... 955 0.06
39 Roche Holding AG 31 London Stock Exchange
(Non-voting rights)........ 12,590 0.80 Group PLC ...ooveann.. 4237 027
Retail Trade Electric Utilities
44 Cie Financiere 320 National Grid PLC......... 4419 028
Richemont SA ............... 7,009 044 154 SSEPLC...oovvonrrerrrrenns 3,884 0.24
Telecommunications Electrical Equipment
1 Swisscom AG ................ 475 0.03 17 HalmaPLC.................... 581 0.04
51,224 3.23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Food Products Aerospace and Defence
112 Compass Group PLC..... 3,584 0.23 22 General Dynamics
Home Furnishings Corp. s s 6,754 0.43
113 Howden Joinery Group 3 L3Harris Technologies,
PLC. 1378 0.09 INC.oiiee 616 0.04
’ 14 Northrop Grumman
Household Products COTP. e 7,635 0.48
54 Reckitt Benckiser Agriculture
Group PLC ... 3,344 0.21 21 Archer-Daniels-Midland
Insurance CO. e 1,269 0.08
340 Prudential PLC.............. 3,171 0.20 -
Airlines
Internet Software and Services 109 Delta Air Lines, Inc. ...... 5,557 0.35
177 Auto Trader Group 23 United Airlines
PLC.oooioiiieeeeeieie 2,059 0.13 Holdings, Inc. .......c....... 1,283 0.08
Lodging Automobiles
41 InterContinental Hotels 6 Cummins, Inc. .............. 1,944 0.12
Group PLC .....cccevevneee. 4,520 0.28 57 General Motors Co. ....... 2,551 0.16
86 Whitbread PLC.............. 3,615 0.23 3 PACCAR, Inc. ............... 268 0.02
. 4 Tesla, Inc.......cocoevvennn.. 1,177 0.07
Machinery
15 Spirax-Sarco Banks
Engineering PLC............ 1,528 0.10 129 Bank of America Corp... 5,135 0.33
. 110 Citigroup, Inc. ............... 6,850 0.43
Media 5 Goldman Sachs Group,
33 Informa PLC..cooccovcoee 360002 I0C. e 2683 0.17
Metals and Mining 41 JPMorgan Chase & Co.. 8,638 0.55
124 Anglo American PLC .... 4,028 0.25 2 M&T Bank Corp. .......... 312 0.02
. 3 Morgan Stanley ............. 327 0.02
Mlscellaneous Manufacturers 1 PNC Financial Services
18 Diploma PLC................. 1,092 0.07 ST 152 001
Oil and Gas 9 Regions Financial
624 BPPLC.....cccoevevrenne. 3,281 0.21 COTP. e 215 0.01
56 BPPLCADR............... 1,757 0.11 6 State Street Corp............ 522 0.03
10 Shell PLC (UK listed) ... 315 0.02 3 U.S. Bancorp.................. 151 0.01
24 Shell PLCADR............. 1,583 0.10 21 Wells Fargo & Co. ......... 1,168 0.07
Paper and Forest Products Beverages
11 Mondi PLC.................... 211 0.01 89 Coca-Cola Co. ............... 6,396 0.40
19 Keurig Dr Pepper, Inc.... 704 0.05
Per.sonal Products 5 Monster Beverage
104 Unilever PLC ..o 6,780 043 s 263 0.02
Pharmaceuticals 47 PepsiCo, Inc................... 7,977 0.50
76 AstraZeneca PLC .......... 11,766 0.74 Biotechnology
41 AstraZeneca PLC ADR . 3,243 0.20 2 Amgen, InC. oo 760 0.05
38 GSKPLC.....ccoevverrennen 774 0.05 1 Biogen, InC. oo 141 0.01
41 GSKPLCADR............. 1,663 0.11 5 Gilead Sciences, Inc. ..... 453 0.03
Telecommunications 1 Mlumina, Inc. ................. 110 0.01
680 Vodafone Group PLC.... 684 0.04 26 Incyte Corp......ccceeeneene. 1,683 0.10
. - Regeneron
Toys, Games and Hobbies Pharmaceuticals, Inc...... 395 0.02
> Games Workshop Group 1 United Therapeutics
o O O 710 0.04 o 322 0.02
109,460 6.90 2 Vertex Pharmaceuticals,
United States (46.26%) INC. v 735 0.05
Advertising
3 Trade Desk, Inc. ............ 287 0.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Building Products 4 Fastenal Co. .....ccocvneee. 276 0.02
1 Builders FirstSource, 5 LKQ Corp...cccevveeeeeeeancne 188 0.01
InC..oooviiiiieis 227 0.02 - Watsco, Inc. .....ccccccueeee. 224 0.01
56 Carrier Global Corp....... 4,494 0.28 - WW Grainger, Inc. ........ 254 0.02
3 Fortune Brands Diversified Financials
Innovations, Inc. ............ 224 0.02 .
10 American Express Co.... 2,789 0.18
6 Masco Corp. .ccevevueenene 522 0.03 3 Ameriprise Financial
3 Owens Corning.............. 539 0.03 P ’
INC.oiiiiiee 1,322 0.08
Chemicals 3 BlackRock, Inc.............. 2,886 0.18
2 CF Industries Holdings, 1 Capital One Financial
INC.viiieieeeieeeee 180 0.01 (©70] 4 o OSSR 214 0.01
3 Dow, InC.....oovvveniennnns 148 0.01 10 Cboe Global Markets,
2 DuPont de Nemours, InC..ooovviiiiiiiie, 2,138 0.14
InC. o 229 0.01 30 CME Group, Inc............ 6,563 0.41
4 Ecolab, Inc... 992 0.06 1 Discover Financial
35 FMC Corp. eoevevevereanene 2,304 0.15 Services ....ccceevveeeeneeenne.. 204 0.01
3 Mosaic CO...ccvevvrervrennne 75 0.01 5 LPL Financial
3 RPM International, Inc.. 352 0.02 Holdings, Inc. ........c....... 1,078 0.07
14 Sherwin-Williams Co. ... 5,206 0.33 25 Mastercard, Inc. ............. 12,304 0.78
Commercial Services and Supplies 9 Nasdagq, Inc.: ........ R 639 0.04
8 Automatic Data 10 Synchrony‘Fmancml ...... 481 0.03
. 2 T Rowe Price Group,
Processing, Inc............... 2,313 0.15
2 Booz Allen Hamilton In'c. ................................. 202 0.01
Holding COp....oo...... 202 0.02 3 Visa, InC..coeevvveiiiiinine 876 0.06
34 Chegg, Inc. ..ccoeuveuvneee 59 0.00 Electric Utilities
2 Cintas COrp.....ccccceveune. 431 0.03 2 Constellation Energy
29 Global Payments, Inc..... 2,941 0.18 (070] 4 o FOSU 600 0.04
20 Moody’s Corp. ....c.ce.... 9,634 0.61 23 Edison International ...... 1,975 0.12
5 S&P Global, Inc. ........... 2,555 0.16 33 Exelon Corp......cccveueene. 1,338 0.08
1 United Rentals, Inc......... 674 0.04 41 FirstEnergy Corp. .......... 1,829 0.12
1 Verisk Analytics, Inc...... 280 0.02 20 NRG Energy, Inc. .......... 1,866 0.12
Computers and Peripherals 46 Xcel Energy, Inc. ........... 2,976 0.19
143 Apple, Inc. ....ooovveeveneennnne 33,260 2.10 Electrical Equipment
5 Cognizant Technology 43 Amphenol Corp.............. 2,834 0.18
Solutions Corp............... 397 0.02 4 Emerson Electric Co...... 488 0.03
1 Crowdstrike Holdings, 11 Honeywell
InC.vveiieiieieeeeee 239 0.02 International, Inc. .......... 2,171 0.14
8 Hewlett Packard 1 Hubbell, Inc. .................. 259 0.02
Enterprise Co... 163 0.01 2 Keysight Technologies,
15 HP Inc. .cooovevereieinee 546 0.03 INC.oiiiie 292 0.02
1 International Business 2 Mettler-Toledo
Machines Corp. ............. 269 0.02 International, Inc. .......... 3,014 0.23
15 Leidos Holdings, Inc. .... 2,357 0.15 9 Trimble, Inc. ..o 538 0.03
31 NetApp, Inc. ..covvvenneennen. 3,821 0.24 25 Vontier Corp. .......ceou..... 859 0.05
2 Western Digital Corp..... 143 0.01 Food Products
Construction and Engineering 50 Conagra Brands, Inc...... 1,619 0.10
4 EMCOR Group, Inc. ..... 1,718 0.11 18 General Mills, Inc.......... 1,352 0.09
Containers and Packaging 1 Hershey Co. ....cccoveueeeee 182 0.01
11 Crown Holdings, Inc. .... 1,081 0.07 9 Hormel Foods Corp. ... 294 0.02
3 Packaging Corp. of 7 JM Smucker Co............ 873 0.06
AMETICA ..o 576 0.03 14 Kellanova .o Llea — 0.07
112 Kroger Co. ..cocevvevevreeennne 6,419 0.40
Distributors 7 McCormick & Co., Inc.. 570 0.04
7 Copart, Inc....cccvvvenenee. 340 0.02
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31 Mondelez International, 15 Clorox Co. .cooveevvereenne. 2,440 0.15
INC. oo 2,259 0.14 27 Kimberly-Clark Corp. ... 3,805 0.24
61 Tyson Foods, Inc............ 3,613 0.23
Insurance
Hand and Machine Tools 16 Aflac, Inc.......ccoeeennenn.n. 1,779 0.11
2 Snap-on, Inc.......ccoceee. 486 0.03 32 Allstate Corp. .....cccoee.. 6,108 0.38
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 4 American Financial
. Group, InC.....cccevvveneenen. 483 0.03
22 Abbott Laboratories....... 2,460 0.16
. . 8 Assurant, Inc 1,575 0.10
2 Agilent Technologies, .
4 Berkshire Hathaway,
INC.ooovieiiciceeeee 237 0.01
. INC.oovviiiieieeeeeee 1,992 0.13
- Align Technology, Inc.... 139 0.01 . . .
. 6 Cincinnati Financial
25 Baxter International,
(01075 s F R 777 0.05
InC.vveiieieieeeee 966 0.06 3 CNO Financial Grou
2 Bio-Techne Corp. .......... 161 0.01 P>
s INC.ooviiiieieeeeeee 112 0.01
3 Boston Scientific Corp.. 256 0.02 . .
. 1 Erie Indemnity Co. ........ 410 0.03
42 Dentsply Sirona, Inc. ..... 1,130 0.07 . .
59 Genworth Financial,
6 Edwards Inc 402 0.03
Lifesciences Corp. ... 369 0.02 s R s .
. 14 Hartford Financial
36 Exact Sciences Corp...... 2,470 0.16 .
. Services Group, Inc....... 1,608 0.10
5 Hologic, Inc. .................. 371 0.02 . .
. 2 Jackson Financial, Inc.
- IDEXX Laboratories, .
(US listed)..cocveeeeeeinne 230 0.01
INC.ooviiiieeeeeeee 181 0.01
- Markel Group, Inc. ........ 196 0.01
1 Insulet Corp.....ccoveuveneen. 305 0.02
.. . 12 Marsh & McLennan
6 Intuitive Surgical, Inc. ... 2,815 0.18
2 ResMed, Inc 332 0.02 Cos., InC...ooeeeecreeeennen. 2,728 0.17
L ’ 10 NMI Holdings, Inc. ....... 423 0.03
I Thermo Fisher 9 Principal Financial
Scientific, Inc. .............. 652 0.04 clpa’ tnancia
. Group, InC.....ccccovvvuennen. 817 0.05
- West Pharmaceutical .
. 13 Progressive Corp. .......... 3,207 0.20
Services, Inc. ................. 128 0.01 .
1 Reinsurance Group of
Health Care Providers and Services America, Inc. ................. 287 0.02
4 Centene Corp........c....... 325 0.02 8 Travelers Cos., Inc......... 1,900 0.12
15 Elevance Health, Inc...... 7,927 0.50 4 Unum Group.................. 226 0.01
31 HCA Healthcare, Inc..... 12,626 0.80 13 W R Berkley Corp......... 734 0.05
4 Hun}ana, Inc. .o, 1,225 0.08 Internet Software and Services
1 Molina Healthcare, Inc.. 188 0.01 .
. . 2 Airbnb, Inc.......cc..cco..... 202 0.01
1 Quest Diagnostics, Inc... 150 0.01
. 101 Alphabet, Inc.
24 UnitedHealth Group,
(G TSN FO 16,815 1.06
InC.vveeeeiiieeeee 13,781 0.87
. 114 Alphabet, Inc.
1 Universal Health
Services. Inc 243 0.01 (Class C) .oovvevrevrerrerennee. 19,009 1.20
P ’ 100 Amazon.com, Inc. ......... 18,658 1.18
Home Builders 1 Booking Holdings, Inc. . 3,799 0.24
4 DR Horton, Inc.............. 696 0.04 4 eBay, Inc. ...ccccovvvreuienne 262 0.02
5 KB Home..... 415 0.03 5 Etsy, InC. .ccoooevreiiennns 267 0.02
4 Lennar Corp 665 0.04 1 F5,Inc............... 242 0.01
1 Meritage Homes Corp. .. 283 0.02 13 GoDaddy, Inc.... 2,054 0.13
- NVR, Inc. .coocovenvirnnns 638 0.04 - MercadoLibre, Inc.......... 238 0.01
6 PulteGroup, Inc. ............ 798 0.05 46 Meta Platforms, Inc. ...... 26,550 1.67
5 Taylor Morrison Home 5 Netflix, Inc.....ccoeeneenn... 3,947 0.25
COrP. et 358 0.02 1 Palo Alto Networks,
5 Toll Brothers, Inc 829 0.05 INC. oo 276 0.02
5 Tri Pointe Homes, Inc.... 249 0.02 5 Pinterest, Inc. ................. 158 0.01
Household Products 33 gbler "{echnologles, Inc.. 2,?;1; 8(1)?
3 Avery Dennison Corp. .. 698 0.05 elp, InC...oooveereinn .
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Iron and Steel Oil and Gas Services
11 Cleveland-Cliffs, Inc. .... 149 0.01 54 Halliburton Co............... 1,576 0.10
3 Nucfor (©70] 4o USRI 414 0.03 Other Finance
I Reliance, Inc 189 0.01 26 Blackstone, Inc 4,031 0.25
3 Steel Dynamics, Inc....... 367 0.02 P ’ ’
Machinery Personal Prodqcts
1 Caterpillar, Inc............. 274 0.02 29 Colgate-Palmolive Co.... 3,034 0.19
7 Chart Industries, Inc. ... 923 0.06 11 elf Beauty, Inc................ 1,207 0.08
1 Dover COIp. covvvveee... 253 0.01 > Estee Lauder Cos., Inc... a7 0.03
36 Kenvue, Inc................... 826 0.05
39 Graco, Inc. ....ccvveeuneennnnn. 3,409 0.21
5 IDEX COrp. e 1,076 0.07 38 Procter & Gamble Co.... 6,587 041
1 Nordson Corp. ............... 180 0.01 Pharmaceuticals
39 Otis Worldwide Corp..... 4,085 0.26 16 AbbVie, Inc. .................. 3,230 0.20
2 Toro Co..oeeevvveeneeeieen, 149 0.01 19 Becton Dickinson &
8 Westinghouse Air Brake CO. e 4,556 0.29
Technologies Corp......... 1,456 0.09 68 Bristol-Myers Squibb
Media Co. e 3,501 0.22
14 Comcast COrp......om..... 568 0.04 17" Cardinal Health, Inc. ..... 1,924 0.12
- FactSet Research 6 C§ncora, InCoovvevrenns 1,265 0.08
Systems, Inc................... 169 0.01 25 Cigna Group .....ccceere 8,744 0.55
36 Sirius XM Holdings 45 CYS .Health Corp. ......... 2,817 0.18
G - 842 0.05 [1 Eli Lilly & Co. ........... 9,408 0.59
nc .
18 Walt Disney Co........... 1,761 0.11 3 Henry Schein, Inc.......... 224001
41 Ironwood
Metals and Mining Pharmaceuticals, Inc...... 169 0.01
2 Alcoa Corp. .covevevenrenee 66 0.00 64 Johnson & Johnson........ 10,418 0.66
15 Freeport-McMoRan, 4 McKesson Corp............. 1,999 0.13
Inc. oo 764 0.05 50 Merck & Co., Inc 5,708 0.36
55 Newmont Corp. ............. 2,934 0.19 5 Neurocrine Biosciences,
Miscellaneous Manufacturers INC.oovieieeeeeeeee 623 0.04
6 A O Smith Corp............ 537 0.03 39 Organon & CO. ..covcvvrne 743 0.05
4 Tllinois Tool Works, 100 Pf.lze.r, Inc. oo 2,889 0.18
T oo 1,049 0.07 82 Viatris, InC. oooooccve 51 0.06
4 Parker-Hannifin Corp.... 2,793 0.18 2 Zoetis, Inc......ocoeeneen.nn. 325 0.02
Oil and Gas P ipel'ines
3 Chesapeake Energy 13 Cheniere Energy, Inc. .... 2,314 0.15
COI'p. ................ 224 0.01 Real Estate
21 Chevron Corp. .............. 3,078 0.19 5 CBRE Group, Inc. ......... 622 0.04
17 ConocoPhillips .............. 1,809 0.11 11 Howard Hughes
24 Coterra Energy, Inc........ 581 0.04 Holdings, Inc. ................ 871 0.05
26 Devon Energy Corp....... 996 0.06
2 Diamondback Energy, Real Estate.Investment Trust
I oo 332002 70 Annaly Capital
21 EOG Resources, Inc. ..... 2522 0.16 Management, Inc. ......... 1415 0.09
37 Exxon Mobil Corp........ 4366 0.28 4 Equinix, Inc. .......... s 3,755 0.24
e 168 0.0 14 Healthpeak Properties,
3 HF Sinclair Corp. ........ 129 0.01 INC. e 327 0.02
10 Marathon Oil Corp. ...... 273 0.02 25 Host Hotels & Resorts,
1 Marathon Petroleum Igc. ................ — 433 0.03
o 154 0.01 12 Piedmont Office Realty
5 Ovintiv, Inc. ..... 169 0.01 Trus?, InC. oovvveveeeee. 121 0.01
1 Pllips 6o 141 001 3 Public Storage.............. 928 - 0.06
- Texas Pacific Land 3 SBA Communications
o 326 0.02 COMP. e 672 0.04
4 Valero Energy Corp....... 550 0.04 17 Welltower, Inc................ 2,166 0.13
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Retail Trade Software
2 AutoZone, Inc................ 7,803 0.49 6 Adobe, Inc. .....cccoeeeneen. 2,870 0.18
5 Best Buy Co., Inc. ......... 505 0.03 3 Akamai Technologies,
1 Burlington Stores, Inc.... 291 0.02 Inc.oovveveiennnn, 304 0.02
60 Chipotle Mexican Grill, 3 Autodesk, Inc 835 0.05
Inc..coveiiiiiiiii 3,441 0.22 5 Cadence Design
2 Costco Wholesale Systems, Inc................... 1,470 0.09
(01075 s F 1,850 0.12 2 Datadog, Inc. ..o 258 0.02
1 Dick’s Sporting Goods, 3 Electronic Arts, Inc........ 426 0.03
InC.ovvviiiie 259 0.02 11 Fiserv, Inc. .....ccocoeuenn. 1,953 0.12
19 Dollar General Corp...... 1,620 0.10 4 HubSpot, Inc 1,953 0.12
2 Dollar Tree, Inc.............. 127 0.01 1 Intuit, InC. ..oovvvvenvrenns 422 0.03
1 Ferguson Enterprises, 1 Jack Henry &
InC..ooovveiiiiiis 230 0.01 Associates, Inc............... 181 0.01
1 Genuine Parts Co........... 145 0.01 106 Microsoft Corp. ............. 45,634 2.88
7 Home Depot, Inc. .......... 2,801 0.18 7 MongoDB, Inc............... 1,921 0.12
2 Lowe’s Cos., Inc............ 482 0.03 7 MSCIL Inc. ....ovvveennan. 4,106 0.26
3 Lululemon Athletica, 33 Oracle Corp. (US
INC.oovviiieeeeeee 949 0.06 listed) .vooveeeiereeeieeene 5,673 0.36
9 McDonald’s Corp.......... 2,628 0.17 10 Palantir Technologies,
2 Ross Stores, Inc............. 267 0.02 Inc. oo 379 0.02
9 Target COrp....ccovevveueenen 1,436 0.09 8 Paychex, Inc......cccceenee 1,026 0.06
76 TJX Cos., Inc................. 8,949 0.56 1 Roper Technologies,
1 Tractor Supply Co. ........ 192 0.01 Inc. e 526 0.03
- Ulta Beauty, Inc..... 158 0.01 2 Salesforce, Inc. .... 582 0.04
22 Walmart, Inc. ................. 1,781 0.11 4 ServiceNow, Inc... 3,569 0.23
4 Williams-Sonoma, Inc... 636 0.04 1 Synopsys, Inc................. 464 0.03
2 Wingstop, Inc. ............... 656 0.04 1 Veeva Systems, Inc........ 207 0.01
Semiconductor Equipment and Products 1 Workda}f, Inc..ooveieies 215 0.01
20 Advanced Micro I Zoom Vlc.leo.
Devices, Inc. ............... 3269 021 Communications, Inc..... 103 0.01
12 Applied Materials, Inc... 2,469 0.16 Telecommunications
22 Broadcom, Inc. .............. 3,826 0.24 6 Arista Networks, Inc...... 2,281 0.14
296 0.02 140 AT&T, Inc..covvevvevvnnee. 3,086 0.19
715 0.04 94 Cisco Systems, Inc. ....... 5,007 0.32
3 Lam Research Corp....... 2,592 0.16 30 Corning, Inc.......cucuee. 1,354 0.09
26 Marvell Technology, 25 Juniper Networks, Inc.... 965 0.06
INC..oovviiiiieieee, 1,898 0.12 7 Motorola Solutions,
2 Microchip Technology, INC.ooiiiii 3,151 0.20
INC.oovviiieeeeeee 188 0.01 21 T-Mobile U.S., Inc. ........ 4,427 0.28
17 Micron Technology, 8 Verizon
INC..ooovveiiiieiciee, 1,799 0.11 Communications, Inc..... 358 0.02
1 Monolithic Power Textile and Apparel
Systems, Inc................... 433 0.03 2 Deckers Outdoor Corp. . 312 0.02
192 NVIDIA Corp......co.e..... 23,293 1.47 14 NIKE. Inc 1216 0.08
27 ON Semiconductor ,Inc. , .
COTP. v 1,991 0.13 Transport
7 Qorvo, INC....ovvveverennnn. 721 0.04 1 CH Robinson
31 QUALCOMM, Inc. ....... 5,174 0.33 Worldwide, Inc. ............. 165 0.01
10 Skyworks Solutions, 2 Expeditors International
I0C. cooeeeireieeieeeeeenen 1,011 0.06 of Washington, Inc......... 224 0.01
2 Teradyne, Inc. ................ 201 0.01 9 FedEx Corp...ccovevereenne 2,464 0.16
2 Texas Instruments, Inc... 434 0.03 1 JB Hunt Transport
Shipbuilding Services, Inc. .......c.c....... 143 0.01
1 Huntington Ingalls
Industries, Inc. ............... 298 0.02
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Number
of Shares 000

Fair Value  Fund
USD 000 %

4 Knight-Swift

Transportation

Holdings, Inc. ................ 215 0.01
1 Old Dominion Freight

Line, InC....ooovvvvenvennns 289 0.02
9 Union Pacific Corp........ 2,187 0.14
4 United Parcel Service,

Inc. .o 502 0.03

Total Common Stock ...

733,349  46.26
1,476,657  93.14

Total Transferable

Securities .........

1,476,657  93.14

Investment Funds (3.71%)

Ireland (3.71%)

53 Russell Investment
Company III plc Russell
Investments U.S. Dollar
Cash Fund II Class SW

Roll-up Shares

............. 58,764 3.71

Total Investment

............. 58,764 3.71

Total Investments
excluding Financial

Derivative

Instruments.....

1,535,421  96.85

Financial Derivative Instruments (0.01%)

Open Futures Contracts (0.04%)

Notional Average
Amount Cost Price
USD €000 USD
1,117 2,482.26
854 266.76
312,106 5,684.99
23,342 1,051.44
22,866 5,681.03

9 of Hang Seng Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts

Expiring October 2024 .........cccccecevenennenn

32 of MSCI Singapore Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts

Expiring October 2024 ..........cccovveveneennen.

1,098 of S&P 500 E-mini Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts

Expiring December 2024...........c.ccocenenee.

111 of S&P/TSX 60 Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts

Expiring December 2024...........cccocevenenn.

161 of SPI 200 Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts

Expiring December 2024 .............cccceeenee.

Unrealised
Gain (Loss) Fund
USD ‘000 %

............ 116 0.01
............ 4 0.00
............ 7,096 0.45
............ 394 0.02
............ 327 0.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notional Average Unrealised
Amount Cost Price Gain (Loss) Fund
USD “000 USD USD €000 %o
(7,669) (1,009.11) 38 of Amsterdam Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 .........cccocvvieveiieiesieieienns (66) 0.00
(14,484) (8,372.31) 173 of CAC 40 Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 .........cccoceviereiieeieeeenne (285) (0.02)
(13,741) (21,140.63) 26 of DAX Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024..........cccoovvevvieeviienieeinene (407) (0.03)
(53,178) (5,442.97) 977 of Euro STOXX 50 Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............cccoovvieienieiennnns (1,668) (0.11)
(36,456) (11,217.10) 325 of FTSE 100 Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............cccoviiieiinieiene 323 0.02
(4,324) (37,597.50) 23 of FTSE MIB Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024..........cccoovvevvveeviienveeieenne 47) 0.00
(4,837) (13,073.30) 37 of IBEX 35 Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 .........cccocvvieveiieiesieieennns (73) 0.00
(40,863) (1,099.95) 743 of MSCI Emerging Markets Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ...........ccoviiieiinieieee (2,703) (0.17)
(8,563) (252.59) 339 of OMXS30 Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 .........ccoocvvevienieeiierieeieenne (219) (0.01)
(26,237) (14,337.03) 183 of Swiss Market Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............cccoovvvieienieiennnns (243) (0.02)
(51,472) (17.87) 288 of Topix Index Futures
Short Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024 ............cccoveiieiinieienne (1,834) (0.12)
Unrealised gain on open fUtures CONTIACTS.........cuveieriieierieiieieiieiesieeeesreeeeesreeeeesseseeeaeeeeas 8,260 0.52
Unrealised 10ss on open fUtures CONLIACES .......cc.evieierieeieriiiierieeieie et neeens (7,545) (0.48)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open futures contracts ...............ccoccoeeenieiininienenenenne. 715 0.04
Open Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts ((0.03)%)
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold ’000 USD 000 %
08/10/2024 AUD 1,760 EUR 1,091 4 0.00
08/10/2024 AUD 1,560 GBP 807 - 0.00
18/12/2024 AUD 7,711 USD 5,135 219 0.02
18/12/2024 AUD 7,711 USD 5,135 219 0.02
18/12/2024 AUD 7,711 USD 5,136 218 0.01
18/12/2024 AUD 7,711 USD 5,131 223 0.02
18/12/2024 AUD 7,711 USD 5,129 225 0.02
08/10/2024 CAD 2,526 EUR 1,676 (1) 0.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold *000 USD ‘000 %

08/10/2024 CAD 2,238 GBP 1,239 5) 0.00
18/12/2024 CAD 6,335 USD 4,669 29 0.00
18/12/2024 CAD 6,335 USD 4,671 27 0.00
18/12/2024 CAD 6,335 USD 4,671 27 0.00
18/12/2024 CAD 6,335 USD 4,668 31 0.00
18/12/2024 CAD 6,335 USD 4,667 31 0.00
08/10/2024 CHF 1,336 EUR 1,420 - 0.00
08/10/2024 CHF 1,183 GBP 1,049 4) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 31 AUD 51 (1) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,049 AUD 1,709 (15) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 1,090 AUD 1,760 4) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 65 CAD 97 1 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,627 CAD 2,429 17 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 1,675 CAD 2,526 1 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 44 CHF 41 - 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,383 CHF 1,295 8 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 1,423 CHF 1,336 - 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 38 GBP 32 (1) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,160 GBP 968 3) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,160 GBP 968 3) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 2,059 GBP 1,735 (30) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,160 GBP 968 3) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,160 GBP 967 3) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 2,115 GBP 1,767 (6) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 15 HKD 133 - 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 223 HKD 1,929 1 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 237 HKD 2,062 (1) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 809 JPY 129,747 5) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 808 JPY 129,747 (6) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 808 JPY 129,747 (6) 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 809 JPY 129,747 %) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 810 JPY 128,952 - 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 812 JPY 128,952 2 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 811 JPY 128,952 - 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 810 JPY 128,952 - 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 18 SEK 205 - 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 525 SEK 5,963 2) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 548 SEK 6,167 3 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 163 SGD 235 2) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 163 SGD 233 - 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 1,847 USD 2,046 17 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 9,441 USD 10,474 65 0.01
08/10/2024 EUR 9,436 USD 10,474 59 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 9,437 USD 10,474 60 0.00
08/10/2024 EUR 9,438 USD 10,474 62 0.01
07/11/2024 EUR 9,798 USD 10,986 (35) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 9,809 USD 10,986 (22) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 9,794 USD 10,986 (39) 0.00
07/11/2024 EUR 9,798 USD 10,986 (34) 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 50 AUD 98 - 0.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold *000 USD ‘000 %

08/10/2024 GBP 756 AUD 1,462 - 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 807 AUD 1,560 - 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 90 CAD 161 2 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 1,173 CAD 2,078 35 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 1,240 CAD 2,238 5 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 68 CHF 75 2 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 997 CHF 1,107 23 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 1,053 CHF 1,183 4 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 287 EUR 341 6 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 906 EUR 1,075 16 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 906 EUR 1,075 16 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 906 EUR 1,075 16 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 1,767 EUR 2,118 6 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 906 EUR 1,075 15 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 969 EUR 1,160 3 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 969 EUR 1,160 3 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 969 EUR 1,160 3 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 969 EUR 1,160 3 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 17 HKD 176 - 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 161 HKD 1,650 4 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 175 HKD 1,826 - 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 82 JPY 15,126 3 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 583 JPY 110,906 6 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 582 JPY 110,906 5 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 582 JPY 110,906 5 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 583 JPY 110,906 6 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 599 JPY 114,091 2 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 600 JPY 114,091 4 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 599 JPY 114,091 2 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 599 JPY 114,091 2 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 27 SEK 367 - 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 379 SEK 5,098 5 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 406 SEK 5,464 4 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 4 SGD 7 - 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 118 SGD 201 1 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 121 SGD 206 - 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 2,346 USD 3,076 71 0.00
08/10/2024 GBP 6,810 USD 8,960 175 0.01
08/10/2024 GBP 6,806 USD 8,960 169 0.01
08/10/2024 GBP 6,807 USD 8,960 170 0.01
08/10/2024 GBP 6,806 USD 8,960 170 0.01
07/11/2024 GBP 7,248 USD 9,729 @) 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 7,258 USD 9,729 6 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 7,246 USD 9,729 9) 0.00
07/11/2024 GBP 7,248 USD 9,729 (6) 0.00
08/10/2024 HKD 2,062 EUR 237 1 0.00
08/10/2024 HKD 1,826 GBP 175 - 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 3,177 EUR 20 - 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 128,952 EUR 808 - 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 128,952 EUR 810 2) 0.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold *000 USD ‘000 %
08/10/2024 JPY 128,952 EUR 808 - 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 128,952 EUR 808 - 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 2,385 GBP 12 - 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 114,091 GBP 596 (2) 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 114,091 GBP 598 4 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 114,091 GBP 597 2) 0.00
08/10/2024 JPY 114,091 GBP 596 2) 0.00
08/10/2024 SEK 6,167 EUR 548 3) 0.00
08/10/2024 SEK 5,464 GBP 405 4) 0.00
18/12/2024 SEK 55,440 USD 5,369 121 0.01
08/10/2024 SGD 2 EUR 1 - 0.00
08/10/2024 SGD 233 EUR 163 - 0.00
08/10/2024 SGD 2 GBP 1 - 0.00
08/10/2024 SGD 207 GBP 120 - 0.00
18/12/2024 UsSDh 6,439 CHF 5,413 (33) 0.00
18/12/2024 UsSDh 6,441 CHF 5,413 (30) 0.00
18/12/2024 USD 6,435 CHF 5,413 (37 0.00
18/12/2024 UsSDh 6,439 CHF 5,413 (33) 0.00
18/12/2024 UsSDh 6,443 CHF 5,413 (28) 0.00
08/10/2024 UsSDh 10,986 EUR 9,809 35 0.00
08/10/2024 usSD 10,986 EUR 9,822 22 0.00
08/10/2024 usSDh 10,986 EUR 9,806 39 0.00
08/10/2024 USD 10,986 EUR 9,810 34 0.00
18/12/2024 uUsSDh 28,476 EUR 25,738 (338) (0.02)
18/12/2024 USD 28,481 EUR 25,738 (333) (0.02)
18/12/2024 UsSDh 28,469 EUR 25,738 (345) (0.02)
18/12/2024 UsSDh 28,471 EUR 25,738 (342) (0.03)
18/12/2024 UsSDh 28,461 EUR 25,738 (353) (0.03)
08/10/2024 UsSDh 9,729 GBP 7,248 7 0.00
08/10/2024 usSD 9,729 GBP 7,257 (6) 0.00
08/10/2024 usSDh 9,729 GBP 7,246 9 0.00
08/10/2024 usSDh 9,729 GBP 7,248 6 0.00
18/12/2024 uUsSDh 9,858 GBP 7,551 (268) (0.02)
18/12/2024 USD 9,859 GBP 7,551 (268) (0.02)
18/12/2024 UsSDh 9,862 GBP 7,551 (264) (0.02)
18/12/2024 USDh 9,854 GBP 7,551 (273) (0.02)
18/12/2024 UsSDh 9,849 GBP 7,551 (278) (0.02)
18/12/2024 UsSDh 6,887 JPY 966,315 62 0.01
18/12/2024 usSD 6,895 JPY 966,315 70 0.01
18/12/2024 usSDh 6,878 JPY 966,315 53 0.00
18/12/2024 usSDh 6,889 JPY 966,315 64 0.01
18/12/2024 uUsSDh 6,900 JPY 966,315 75 0.01
18/12/2024 uUsSDh 5,269 NOK 57,142 (158) (0.01)
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts...........cccecvevveeneenns 3,115 0.20
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts .............ccoceeevenennen. (3,664) (0.23)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts........ (549) (0.03)
Total Financial Derivative InStruments .................cccccooiiiniiniiiiienieeee e 166 0.01

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Russell Investments World Equity Fund 81



Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

Total Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or

LSS (97.57%0) .o

Total Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or

LOSS ((0.71)%0) vvvooreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeseeseseeseeseeseseeeeeeeeeees

Net Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

(96.80%0) ...ttt e
Other Net Assets (3.14%0) ......oooooviiiiiiieiieceeecee e

NEEASSEES ..o e e e e

Abbreviation used:

ADR - American Depository Receipt
NVDR - Non-Voting Depository Receipt

Analysis of gross assets

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing...........c.ccccecvevenneene.
Investment funds (UCITS) ....couiiieiiiieieeieeieeie ettt eneene
Exchange traded financial derivative inStruments ............ccocceeverveerierienierieneeee e seesieeeeens
Over the counter financial derivative INStrUMENTS ..........cceevveeieriireeiere e
ONET ASSELS ...vieuiieiiietieeiieeite et e et e ettt e et e et e e steeeaseebeestbeeseesseessbeenseessseesseeseessseenseesseenesean

The broker for the open futures contracts is Morgan Stanley.

The counterparties for the open forward foreign currency exchange contracts are:

Fair Value Fund
USD 000 %o

1,546,796 97.57
(11,209) 0.71)
1,535,587 96.86
49,855 3.14
1,585,442 100.00

% of

gross assets

................................ 92.14
................................ 3.67
................................ 0.52
................................ 0.19
................................ 3.48
100.00

Bank of America Merrill Lynch

Royal Bank of Canada

Bank of New York Mellon Standard Chartered Bank

Citibank State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Toronto Dominion Bank

Morgan Stanley UBS AG

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Fair Value Hierarchy (Note 10)

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by investment type)
measured at fair value at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.

As at 30 September 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:

Transferable SECUIItIES........cc.eeeviiiiiieeiie e
Investment funds ..........cccooeveviieiiei e
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts ............cceceeevevervennene

Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange

CONTTACTS. ..eiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e

TOtal ASSELS.....c..vviiiiiiiiiieeee e

Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Unrealised loss on open futures contracts .............ceceevevevennnns

Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange

(070201 101 £ U RPN

Total liabilities.................c.cooooiiiiiiiiiee e

As at 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:

Transferable SECUTTHIES.......ecvvivverierieiieie e
Investment funds ..........cocevvevierieninereceeeeeeee e
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts .............cecevveveeennene

Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange

CONETACES. ..eiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e

Total ASSELS........vviiiiiiiiieeee e

Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Unrealised loss on open futures contracts.........c.oceevevevevennene.

Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange

(6702011 101 £ U UUPTRRR PPN

Total liabilities.................c.cooooiiiiiiiii e

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD 000 USD 000 USD ‘000 USD 000
1,476,657 - 1,476,657
- 58,764 58,764
8,260 - 8,260
- 3,115 3,115
1,484,917 61,879 1,546,796
(7,545) - (7,545)
- (3,664) (3,664)
(7,545) (3,664) (11,209)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
1,391,566 - 1,391,566
- 82,028 82,028
7,249 - 7,249
- 4,424 4,424
1,398,815 86,452 1,485,267
(4,024) - (4,024)
- (1,474) (1,474)
(4,024) (1,474) (5,498)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments World Equity Fund

Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio*

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Acquisition Cost
Portfolio Securities USD €000

Disposal Proceeds
Portfolio Securities USD <000

Russell Investment Company I1I plc
Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II

Class SW Roll-up Shares 232,155
Apple, Inc. 11,374
ASML Holding NV 6,518
Amazon.com, Inc. 4,704
Northrop Grumman Corp. 3,819
National Grid PLC 3,768
Novo Nordisk AS 3,708
Bank of America Corp. 3,704
TOTO Ltd. 3,598
Kimberly-Clark Corp. 3,140
Toho Gas Co. Ltd. 3,016
Prudential PLC 2,807
Amphenol Corp. 2,471
Eli Lilly & Co. 2,456
easylJet PLC 2,441
Allstate Corp. 2,420
Parker-Hannifin Corp. 2,387
Marsh & McLennan Cos., Inc. 2,387
Xcel Energy, Inc. 2,366
Merck & Co., Inc. 2,279

Russell Investment Company 111 plc
Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II

Class SW Roll-up Shares (256,817)
Alphabet, Inc. (Class C) (7,008)
Microsoft Corp. (6,196)
IHI Corp. (6,013)
Meta Platforms, Inc. (5,635)
Wells Fargo & Co. (4,121)
NVIDIA Corp. (3,992)
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. Ltd. ADR  (3,546)
Santen Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. (3,485)
Medtronic PLC (3,388)
Allianz SE (3,274)
Mitsubishi Electric Corp. (3,256)
Amazon.com, Inc. (3,074)
Micron Technology, Inc. (3,015)
JD Sports Fashion PLC (2,943)
Mastercard, Inc. (2,923)
Synopsys, Inc. (2,721)
Vertex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (2,688)
CRH PLC (UK listed) (2,665)
Mercedes-Benz Group AG (2,659)

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases exceeding 1% of total cost of purchases, and sales exceeding
1% of total proceeds. At a minimum the twenty largest purchases and twenty largest sales must be shown. Should there have been
less than that amount of transactions, all such transactions have been disclosed. Securities held to maturity, which matured during the
reporting period, have been excluded from the Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio.

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the reference period may be obtained free of charge from the Company’s
Administrator or from the paying agent or paying and information agents in each country of distribution.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments China Equity Fund

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2024

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ..........cccovvvenrnen.

Cash at bank (NOTE 2) .....eeveriieieiieieie ettt

Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative

INSIUMENtS (INOTE 2) ..ottt

Debtors:

Receivable for investments SOId ...........cooevvviiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieee e,
Receivable on fund shares iSSUEd ..........cccovvvviiiiiiiiieiiiiieeeeeee,
Dividends receivable.........cooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ...........c..........

Creditors — amounts falling due within one financial year:

Cash due to brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative

INStrUMENES (INOLE 2) ..eviiiieeiieeiieciie ettt
Payable for investments purchased............ccocoeeerinveninienciieeene
Payable on fund shares redeemed..........c.coceevviiciiinieniiiiiienieeieee
Management fees payable..........ooovveriiieciiriieiicecee e
Depositary fees payable..........ccoviiieriiieriiniieieceeiee e
Sub-custodian fees payable..........cccoevveriieieriieieieeeee s
Administration fees payable ...........ccooeivieiirieiiniee e
Audit fees payable .........cooevereiiiiii e

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)
USD ‘000 USD €000

55,490 46,144

1,289 1,215

- 212

- 66

- 53

47 29

56,826 47,719

“) (46)

(272) -

(56) (23)

oD 2

(84) (44)

A3) 2)

3) )

) (6)

(©)] a2

(524) (144)

56,302 47,575

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments China Equity Fund

Profit and Loss Account

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Income

DAVIAEIAS ... e
INEEIESt INCOMIE ...t eae e e e e enns

Net gain (loss) on investment actiVities .........c.oceveeverreeierreneerieseereeseenens

Total investment income (EXPENSe)..........cccuevvviereeriieniienieereenieeeaeeveenens

Expenses

Management fees (INOTE 3) ....ooveruirieriieiieeeiee e
Depositary fees (INOTE 4).....oouieieriiieieeiieieeiee et
Sub-custodian fees (INOLE 4) ......ceevveriieriieiieeie et eee e esae e ens
Administration and transfer agency fees (Note 4).......cccoceeevvverieeieenneenne.
AUAIE FEES. .ttt
Professional fEes.........coiiiriririiieiee e
OFhET fEES.... ettt

Total operating eXPemnses ............cccoecveiuirieninieneneee e

Net inCOME (EXPEIISE) .......oovueiriiiiiieriiieiienite et eiteete et et e e et e sireebeenaee e

Finance costs

Distributions (INOLE 6)....ccueeeuvierieerieeiieiiieeie et seeeee e see e eeeeeaeevee e
Profit (loss) for the financial period before taxation...............................

Taxation (Note 7)

Withholding taX ......oooiiiiiiiieee e

Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations...................c..cccooiiinniinnns.

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 September 2024 30 September 2023

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD €000 USD €000

1,173 1,387

12 15

1,185 1,402

10,155 (13,967)

11,340 (12,565)

(258) (431)

A3) ()

(13) (24)

19 (25)

(6) (6)

“) (®)

(26) (15)

(329) (514)

11,011 (13,079)

(781) (788)

10,230 (13,867)

(83) (113)

10,147 (13,980)

All amounts arose solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the

Profit and Loss Account.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments China Equity Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Six months ended Six months ended
30 September 2024 30 September 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
USD 000 USD 000
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders resulting from operations................c.ccocoeiiiiiiiniiniiieeeee e 10,147 (13,980)
Share transactions
Reinvestment of deemed distributions on accumulation shares (Note 0)...................... 781 788
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable participating share
tranSACtIONS (INOLE 8)..vvieiieiiiieiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e et et eebeeaeessbeenbeeneeeene (2,201) 1,207
Total net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
SRATENONIACY'S .......cc.oiiiiiiiicieccee ettt e e eebeestbeebeesee e 8,727 (11,985)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
Beginning of financial Period............cvecvivieriiiiiiiiicieie e 47,575 89,405
End of financial period...........cocoiieiiiieieii e 56,302 77,420

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments China Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Transferable Securities (93.30%) Food Products
Common Stock (93.30%) 40 China Mengniu Dairy
Bermuda (0.39%) Co. Ltd..eeieieiieeee 96 0.17
Al!tqmoblles. Gas Utilities
36 Brilliance China .
. . 9 ENN Energy Holdings
Automotive Holdings Ltd 7 0.13
Ltd. oo 14 0.02 Trmmmmmmmmmmmmm—— ’
Gas Utilities Health Care Equipment and Supplies
52 China Gas Holdings 13 Hengan International
Group Co. Ltd................ 45 0.08
Ltd. oo 48 0.08 . .
. 759 Kangji Medical
16 China Resources Gas Holdings Ltd 590 105
Group Ltd. ..coovevrnne. 65 012  ET ’
Oil and Gas Heal.th .Care. Providers and Services
16 Wauxi Biologics
71 Kunlun Energy Co. Cavman. Inc 16 0.06
LA, e 73 0.13 YA, T '
Water Utilities Hotels, Restauraqts and Leisure
. 16 Yadea Group Holdings
70 Beijing Enterprises Lid 28 0.05
Water Group Ltd........... 2 0.04 s .
222 0.39 Internet Software and Services
106 Alibaba Group Holding
Cayman Islands (30.75%) LA, e 1,500 2.67
Auto Componen.ts 7 Alibaba Group Holding
289 Nexteer Automotive Ltd. ADR ..o 766 136
Group Ltd. ...ccooverrinene 124 0.22 1 Autohome, Inc. ADR..... 43 0.08
Automobiles 8 Baidu, Inc. .....ccuvvennenn. 109 0.19
104 Geely Automobile 1 Baidu, Inc. ADR 148 0.26
Holdings Ltd.................. 163 0.29 23 Bilibili, Inc............... 576 1.02
4 Li Auto, INCeoovrvvnrernnen. 56 0.10 1T iQIYI, Inc. ADR 30 0.05
. 12 JD.com, Inc......ccoeveueeee 254 0.45
Blotechnol.ogy . 5 Kuaishou Technology .... 36 0.06
35 Innovent Biologics, Inc.. 212 038 41 Meituan. .o 911 1.62
Commercial Services and Supplies 11 PDD Holdings, Inc.
61 New Oriental Education ADR...coooveeieicie 1,410 2.51
& Technology Group, 83 Tencent Holdings Ltd. ... 4,768 8.47
INC. .o 485 0.86 2 Tencent Music
. . . Entertainment Group
Construction and Engincering ADR ..o 24 0.04
37 China State 12 Trip.com Group Ltd....... 787 1.40
COHStl’uF:thIl . 21 Vipshop Holdings Ltd.
International Holdings ADR oo 327 058
Ltd. oo 58 0.10
13 EHang Holdings Ltd. Machinery
ADRu.ces 182 033 10 Haitian International
. e . . Holdings Ltd.................. 32 0.06
Diversified Financials
2 Qifu Technology, Inc. Metals and Mining
PN D) L S 56 0.10 55 China Honggqiao Group
Ltd. oo 92 0.16
Energy Equipment and Services
104 Xinyi Solar Holdings Miscellaneous Manufacturers
Ltd. oo 57 0.10 56 Sunny Optical
. Technology Group Co.
Entertainment LAd. oo 416 074
5,612 Haichang Ocean Park
Holdings Ltd.................. 650 1.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Russell Investment Company II plc
Russell Investments China Equity Fund

Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
Personal Products Auto Components
5 Giant Biogene Holding 13 Contemporary Amperex
Co. Ltd. e 30 0.05 Technology Co. Ltd. ...... 470 0.83
Pharmaceuticals 19 g(l)n‘(ibtz Tuopu Group 125 022
72 China Feihe Ltd. ... >4 010 155 Sailun Group Co. Ltd. ... 354 0.63
108 Sino Biopharmaceutical 9 Weichai Power Co. Lid
Ltd. e 52 0.09 (CIASS A) oo 21 0.04
Real Estate 36 Weichai Power Co. Ltd.
15 C&D International (Class H).oovvvvevveieinene 66 0.12
Investment Group Ltd.... 33 0.06 .
41 China Resources Land Automobiles
Ltd 153 027 21 BYD Co. Ltd.
e ’ [(©1F:TSN) F 893 1.58
85 Country Garden 9 BYD Co. Ltd
Holdings Co. Ltd. .......... 5 0.01 (Class Hj ’ 329 0.58
39 Longf or Group 47 Great Wall Motor Co.
Holdings Ltd.................. 75 0.13 Ltd. (Class H) oo 38 016
Retail Trade 66 Guangzhou Automobile
11 ANTA Sports Products Group Co. Ltd................ 26 0.05
Ltd. oo 139 0.25 10 SAIC Motor Corp. Ltd.. 21 0.04
176 Bosideng International Banks
Holdmgs. | 57 PR 101 0.18 40 Agricultural Bank of
41 Chow Tai Fook China Ltd 27 0.05
Jewellery Group Ltd. ..... 46 0.08 1 LG e ’
45 Li Nine Co. Ltd 114 0.20 205 Agricultural Bank of
29 MINISgO G;ou T ’ China Ltd. (Class H)...... 97 0.17
. P 29 Bank of Beijing Co.
Holding Ltd. .................. 425 0.76 Ltd 24 0.04
27 MINISO Group 40 Bank of China Ltd.
Holding Ltd. ADR.......... 481 0.85 (Class A) 29 0.05
54 Topsports International OIS .
. 355 Bank of China Ltd.
Holdings Ltd.................. 24 0.04 (Class H) 168 030
19 Zhongsheng Group oy Sl 1D .
Holdings Ltd.................. 34 0.06 Communications Co.
Software Ltd. (Class A) ....c.ceueee. 33 0.06
13 NetEase, Inc................... 262 0.47 45 Bank of
Telecommunications Communications Co.
L Ltd. (Class H) ....c.cc........ 34 0.06
25 Xiaomi Corp......cceueeee. 71 0.13 21 Bank of Jiangsu Co.
Transport Ltd. v 25 0.04
41 JD Logistics, Inc............ 74 0.13 13 Bank of Nanjing Co.
17,312 30.75 Ltd. oo 21 0.04
. 8 Bank of Ningbo Co.
China (55.82%) Ltd 30 0.05
Advertising 47 China CITIC Bank
436 Focus Media Corp. Ltd 30 0.05
Information Technology 840 China Construction
Co. Ltd. v 439 0.78 Bank Corp. (Class H) .... 636 1.13
Aerospace and Defence 58 China Everbright Bank
52 AviChina Industry & Co. Ltd. e 30 0.05
Technology Co. Ltd. ...... 25 0.04 17 China Merchants Bank
Aeri Co. Ltd. (China listed)... 88 0.16
griculture . 236 China Merchants Bank
17 Guangdong Haid Group Co. Ltd. (Hong-Kong
CoLtd. s 113 020 BSE) oo LI71 2.08
8 Muyuan Foods Co. Ltd.. 55 0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %

44 China Minsheng Commercial Services and Supplies
Banking Corp. Ltd......... 25 0.05 24 Jiangsu Expressway Co.

51 Industrial & Ltd. v 24 0.04
Commercial Bank of 32 Ninestar Corp. .............. 139 0.25
China Ltd. (Class A)...... 45 0.08 32 Zhejiang Expressway

292 Industrial & Co. Ltd. oo 23 0.04
Commercial Bank of Computers and Peripherals
China Ltd. (Class H)...... 174 0.31 46 BOE Technology G
. gy Group
114 Industrial Bank Co. CO. Ltd: oo 29 005
Ltd. oo 312 0.55 41 Richinfo Technology
170" Ping An Bank Co. Ltd. . 296 033 CO. LA 114 020

30 Postal Savings Bank of
China Co. Ltd. Construction and Engineering
(Class A) .vevevererererere, 23 0.04 51 China Communications

27 Postal Savings Bank of Services Corp. Ltd......... 28 0.05
China Co. Ltd. 26 China Railway Group
(Class H)..oooovvoeeen. 16 0.03 Ltd. (A Shares).............. 25 0.05

172 Shanghai Pudong 78 China Railway Group
Development Bank Co. Ltd. (H Shares) .............. 41 0.07
Ltd. o 248 0.44 53 China State
Beverages Construction
Lo . Engineering Corp. Ltd... 46 0.08
I Anhui Gujing Distillery 778 Ch%na Towegr COI‘I})). Ltd.. 103 0.18
Co. Ltd. e 17 0.03 .
2 Anhui Gujing Distillery 25 Power Const.ructlon
Co. Ltd. (Class B)......... 39 0.07 Corp. of China Ltd. ..... 20 004
2 Jiangsu Yanghe Distributors
Brewery Joint-Stock 18 Zhongji Innolight Co.
Co. Ltd. .o 23 0.04 Ltd. oo 401 0.71
i Kweichowivoutat Co- Diversified Financials
Ltd. s 872 1.55 61 China Galaxy Securities
6 Luzhou Lacjiao Co. CO LA 57 0.10
Ltd. s 134 0.23 24 China International

23 Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Capital Corp. Ltd.......... 43 008
Wl'ne Factory Co. Ltd. ... 714 1.27 10 China Merchants

52 Tsingtao Brewery Co. Securities Co. Lid. ...... 26 005
Ltd. oo 410 0.73 12 CITIC Securitics Co.

Building Products Ltd. v 47 0.08
6 Anhui Conch Cement 20 CITIC Securities Co.
Co. Ltd. (Class A).......... 22 0.04 Ltd. (Class H) ...cccceueueeee 54 0.10
110 Anhui Conch Cement 7 GF Securities Co. Ltd.
Co. Ltd. (Class H).......... 324 0.57 (Class A) .c.ovveereerricinne 17 0.03

89 China National Building 10 Guotai Junan Securities
Material Co. Ltd. ........... 39 0.07 Co. Ltd. oo 21 0.04

60 Monalisa Group Co. 31 Haitong Securities Co.

Ltd. v 82 0.15 Ltd. oo 14 0.02
Chemicals 89 Huatai Securities Co.
122 Hengli Petrochemical Ltd. (Class A.). ................ 224 0.40
27 Huatai Securities Co.
Co. Ltd..ocieiiiie 273 0.49
7 Qinghai Salt Lake Ltd. (Class H) ................ 44 0.08
25 Shenwan Hongyuan
Industry Co. Ltd. ........... 19 0.03 Group Co. Ltd 20 0.03

52 Sunresin New Materials T ’
Co. Ltd. e 415 0.74 Electric Utilities

19 Xiamen Tungsten Co. 880 CGN Power Co. Ltd....... 340 0.60
Ltd. e 58 0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares 000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
60 China Longyuan Power Health Care Providers and Services
Group Corp. Ltd. ........... 55 0.10 4 WuXi AppTec Co. Ltd.
12 China National Nuclear (Class A) .coveveeveeneieieenee 27 0.05
Power Co. Ltd. ............... 19 0.03 7 WuXi AppTec Co. Ltd.
35 China Yangtze Power (Class H).oovvvevvreeiiie 53 0.09
Co. Ltd. e 151 0.27 Home Furnishings
Electrical Equipment 4 Gree Electric
47 Chaozhou Three-Circle Appliances, Inc. of
Group Co. Ltd................ 249 0.44 Zhuhai.....ccooevivcinennne. 26 0.05
36 Foxconn Industrial 25 Haier Smart Home Co.
Internet Co. Ltd. ............ 131 0.23 Ltd. (Class A) .....coou.e.. 114 0.20
31 GoerTek, Inc. ................. 99 0.18 188 Haier Smart Home Co.
51 Hunan Aihua Group Co. Ltd. (Class H) ......cc.c...... 757 1.35
Ltd. e 110 0.20 27 Hisense Visual
125 Luxshare Technology Co. Ltd. ...... 87 0.15
Precision Industry Co. 4 Midea Group Co. Ltd. ... 43 0.08
Ltd. oo 775 1.38 142 Suofeiya Home
101 Shenzhen Fastprint Collection Co. Ltd. ........ 367 0.65
Circuit Tech Co. Ltd. ..... 154 0.27
12 Shenzhen Kinwon, Insurance
. & 28 China Life Insurance
Electronic Co. Ltd. ........ 49 0.09
Co. Ltd. oo 56 0.10
24 Shenzhen Sunlord . i
3 21 China Pacific Insurance
Electronics Co. Ltd........ 98 0.17
. . Group Co. Ltd................ 76 0.13
70 Sieyuan Electric Co.
250 PICC Property &
Ltd. o 735 1.31 Casualty Co. Lid 371 0.66
76 SUPCON Technology ASHAtty 0. TG e :
83 Ping An Insurance
Co. Ltd. e 543 0.96 .
. . . Group Co. of China Ltd.
31 Xi’an Sinofuse Electric
(Class A) .ceeeeeeeeeicicee 673 1.20
Co. Ltd. .o 434 0.77 129 Pine An Insurance
57 Xuji Electric Co. Lid. .... 278 0.49 & :
. Group Co. of China Ltd.
44 Zhuhai CosMX Battery (Class H) ]33 1.48
Co. Ltd. .o 107 019 T ’
. . Iron and Steel
Energy Equlpment apd Services 30 Baoshan Iron & Steel
105 Hengtong Optic-electric Co. Ltd 30 0.05
Co. Ltd. .o 252 0.45 T ’
9 LONGiI Green Energy Machinery
Technology Co. Ltd. ...... 23 0.04 85 Hangcha Group Co.
6 TCL Zhonghuan Ltd. o 264 0.47
Renewable Energy 62 Jiangsu Hengli
Technology Co. Ltd. ...... 9 0.02 Hydraulic Co. Ltd.......... 554 0.99
6 Tongwei Co. Ltd............ 19 0.03 130 NARI Technology Co.
Food Products Ltd. oo 513 0.91
. 42 Shenzhen SC New
19 Anjoy Foods Group Co.
Ltd 262 0.47 Energy Technology
Cmmmmmmmmmmm——— ’ COIP. e 413 0.73
Gas Utilities 50 Yizumi Holdings Co.
40 Xinjiang Xintai Natural Ltd. oo 173 0.31
Gas Co. Ltd......ccoveenene 206 0.37 Metals and Mining
Health Care Equipment and Supplies 19 Aluminum Corp. of
55 iRay Technology Co. China Ltd. (Class A)...... 24 0.04
Ltd. o 996 1.77 76 Aluminum Corp. of
25 Jafron Biomedical Co. China Ltd. (Class H)...... 60 0.11
Ltd. oo 113 0.20 147 CMOC Group Ltd.
55 Shandong Weigao (Class A) oo 183 0.33
Group Medical Polymer 65 CMOC Group Ltd.
Co.Ltd..oovveveererienne 40 0.07 (Class H).oovovvevveeeinene 64 0.11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
150 Guangdong Hongda 14 China Merchants
Holdings Group Co. Shekou Industrial Zone
Ltd. oo 516 0.92 Holdings Co. Ltd. .......... 24 0.04
22 Jiangxi Copper Co. Ltd. 16 China Vanke Co. Ltd.
(Class H).oovvveverieiiie 45 0.08 (A Shares)......c.cccceceruenee 21 0.04
41 Shandong Gold Mining 42 China Vanke Co. Ltd.
Co. Ltd. (Class A).......... 169 0.30 (H Shares)........ccoeevenne. 40 0.07
74 Shandong Gold Mining 242 Poly Developments &
Co. Ltd. (Class H).......... 166 0.29 Holdings Group Co.
45 Zhejiang Sanhua Ltd. oo 381 0.68
Intelligent Controls Co. Retail Trade
Ltd. o 152 0.27 . .
o 3 China Tourism Group
239 Zijin Mining Group Co.
Ltd. (Class H 543 0.96 Duty Free Corp. Ltd.
(Class H) oo : (SPTYN T 30 0.05
Miscellaneous Manufacturers 8 China Tourism Group
418 CRRC Corp. Ltd............ 273 0.49 Duty Free Corp. Ltd.
10 Zhuzhou CRRC Times (ST ) S 76 0.14
Electric Co. Ltd. 15 Shanghai
(Class H)..ovovvevvevieinnee 40 0.07 Pharmaceuticals
Oil and Gas Holding Co. Ltd............. 25 0.04
71 PetroChina Co. Ltd........ 92 0.16 Semiconductor Equipment and Products
Oil and Gas Services 12 ?ivr?n:t‘i’dnl\g“‘i"mem
39 China Oilfield Services abrieation Bquipment,
Inc. China ........ccoeueueeee. 277 0.49
Ltd. oo 36 0.06
174 CNOOC Ener 38 Hangzhou Chang Chuan
& Technology Co. Ltd. ...... 206 037
Technology & Services
69 Montage Technology
Ltd. oo 112 0.20
123 Yantai Jereh Oilfield Co. Ltd. .o 654 1.16
. 18 Piotech, Inc.................... 364 0.65
Services Group Co.
Lid 579 1.03 24 Shenzhen Bluetrum
s . Technology Co. Lid. .... 209 0.37
Personal Products 32 TongFu
43 Chongging Baiya Microelectronics Co.
Sanitary Products Co. Ltd. v 106 0.19
Ltd. oo 164 0.29 7 Yuanjie Semiconductor
Pharmaceuticals Technology Co. Ltd. ...... 121 0.21
30 Guangzhou Baiyunshan Software
Pharmaceutical 4 Beijing Kingsoft Office
Holdings Co. Ltd. Software, Inc.................. 144 0.26
(Class H)..oovevvevvevveinnne 80 0.14 130 Kingnet Network Co.
35 Hefei Lifeon Ltd. oo 221 0.39
Pharmaceutical Co. 16 Shanghai Baosight
Ltd. oo 100 0.18 Software Co. Ltd. .......... 28 0.05
16 Jiangsu Hquml Telecommunications
Pharmaceuticals Co. .
19 Eoptolink Technology,
Ltd. oo 115 0.20
220 Sinopharm G C Inc. Ltd. oo 348 0.62
L‘tr(’l"p arm Lroup 0. 590 105 33 ZTE Corp. (Class A)...... 147 026
s . 16 ZTE Corp. (Class H) ..... 3 0.08
Real Estate Transport
337 Beijing Urban 28 COSCO SHIPPING
Construction Investment Enerev Transportation
& Development Co. Co ]i}é P 34 0.06
Ltd. oo 292 0.52 T ’

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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30 September 2024
Number Fair Value  Fund Number Fair Value  Fund
of Shares *000 USD ’000 % of Shares *000 USD ’000 %
40 COSCO SHIPPING Water Utilities
Holdings Co. Ltd. 49 Guangdong Investment
ass H) oo . td e .
(Class H) 66 0.12 Ltd 33 0.06
175 CTS International 1.917 3.41
Logistics Corp. Ltd........ 159 0.8 . :
24 Dagin Railway Co. Ltd.. 24 0.04 Ireland (0.71%)
Electrical Equipment
31,428 _55.82 1 Eaton Corp. PLC............ 398 071
Hong Kong (3.41%) Taiwan (0.40%)
Automobiles Semiconductor Equipment and Products
14 Sinotruk Hong Kong 1 Taiwan Semiconductor
Ltd. o 44 0.08 Manufacturing Co. Ltd.
Commercial Services and Supplies ADR.....coooiii 226 0.40
23 China Merchants Port United States (1.82%)
Holdings Co. Ltd. .......... 37 0.06 Computers and Peripherals
43 Fosun International 2 Apple, Inc. ...ovovverenn 419  0.74
Ltd. o 27 0.05
Semiconductor Equipment and Products
Computers and Peripherals 2 NVIDIA Corp................ 219 0.39
110 Lenovo Group Ltd. ........ 150 0.27
Software
Diversified Financials 1 Microsoft Corp. ............. 387 0.69
22 Far East Horizon Ltd. .... 16 0.03
17 Hong Kong Exchanges 1,025 1.82
& Clearing Ltd............... 697 1.24 Total Common Stock... 52,528  93.30
Electrical Equipment Total tﬁ:ansferable
110 BYD Electronic Securities ...................... 52,528 93.30
International Co. Ltd. .... 461 0.82
Gas Utilities Investment Funds (4.27%)
9 Beijing Enterprises Ireland (4.27%)
Holdings Ltd. oo, 31 0.05 2 Russell Investment
Holding Companies - Diversified Company III plc Russell
Operations Investments U.S. Dollar
110 CITIC Ltd. oo 130 023 Cash Fund II Class SW
Roll-up Shares................ 2,406 4.27
Insurance
24 China Taiping Insurance ;‘:)lt:(lislnvestment 2 406 497
Holdings Co. Ltd. .......... 39 oo07 T - -
. Total Investments
Pharmaceuticals excluding Financial
40 China Resources Derivative
Pharmaceutical Group Instruments............ 54,934 _ 97.57
Ltd. o 31 0.06
126 CSPC Pharmaceutical
Group Ltd. ...cooveiiee 98 0.17
Real Estate
60 China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd............... 123 0.22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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30 September 2024

Financial Derivative Instruments (0.98%)

Open Futures Contracts (0.96%)

Notional Average Unrealised
Amount Cost Price Gain (Loss) Fund
USD ‘000 USD USD ‘000 %
1,042 12,116.77 86 of FTSE China A50 Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring October 2024 ...........ccocovevvvieienieeiene 153 0.27
1,619 443.42 73 of MSCI China Index Futures
Long Futures Contracts
Expiring December 2024............cccovvvieirnieiennns 386 0.69
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open futures coONtracts ...............cccceeeeerieiiieecieneeeieeeenns 539 0.96
Open Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts (0.02%)
Unrealised
Settlement Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Fund
Date Bought *000 Sold ’000 USD ‘000 %
18/12/2024 CNY 8,732 USD 1,239 17 0.03
18/12/2024 usSDh 384 CNY 2,700 (4) (0.01)
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts.............cceeeeveruennen. 17 0.03
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts .............ccocceveeeennen. (4) (0.01)
Net unrealised gain (loss) on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts........ 13 0.02
Total Financial Derivative Instruments ..................c..coccoiiiiiiiiiinie e 552 0.98
Fair Value Fund
USD 000 %
Total Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(98.560%0) ..ot 55,490 98.56
Total Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or
LSS ((0.01)%0) .o e (4) (0.01)
Net Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(98.55%0) et 55,486 98.55
Other Net Assets (1.45%) .......ooovvviiiiiieii e 816 1.45
INEEASSEES ...t e e e e eaaaeeeeen 56,302 100.00
Abbreviation used:
ADR - American Depository Receipt
% of
Analysis of gross assets gross assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange liSting............ccoccvevvieieviiieeriiiieieseeecreeeee e 92.44
Investment fUNAS (UCTTS) ....oouiiiiiieieiieeete ettt ettt ettt ettt et st e b e teesseebeessesseessesseessesbeessesseeseensenns 4.23
Exchange traded financial derivative INSIIUMENLS ...........coveiieiiriieieniieeerieeeesie st ebe e eseeseeaesseesaesseessesseesaeseens 0.95
Over the counter financial derivative INStIUMENES .........coverieieiiiiiitierere ettt ettt 0.03
ORET @SSELS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt s et e bt eh e bt bt st et e et ea b ea e e bt e bt e bt b e ne et et e st e st eb e et e bt sa et ene 2.35
100.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments - continued

30 September 2024

The broker for the open futures contracts is Goldman Sachs.

The counterparty for the open forward foreign currency exchange contracts is State Street Bank and Trust Company.

Fair Value Hierarchy (Note 10)

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by investment type)
measured at fair value at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.

As at 30 September 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable securities
Investment funds ..........ccooeeereinenicncene
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts .............ceceeeeereneenne
Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange
COMETACES ..ttt ettt ettt ese et s et es et et eeneeseneenenea

TOtal ASSELS.....c..vviiiiiiiieeeeee e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONTTACES. ...ttt

Total liabilities....................ccooeiiiiiii e

As at 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value:
Transferable SECUIILIES........cc.ooeviiiirieeiiieeeeeeeee e
Investment funds

TOtal ASSELS.......vviiiiieiieeeeee e

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised loss on open futures contracts ............ccceeveereeeenene
Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange
CONETACES. ...ttt

Total liabilities.................c.cocoooieiiiiii e

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
52,488 35 52,528
i 2,406 2,406
539 - 539
- 17 17
53,027 2,458 55,490
- 4 4
- 4 4)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
43,754 - 43,754
- 2,390 2,390
43,754 2,390 46,144
(38) - (38)
- (3) 8
(38) (8) (46)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio*

For the six months ended 30 September 2024

Acquisition Cost
Portfolio Securities USD €000

Disposal Proceeds
Portfolio Securities USD <000

Russell Investment Company I1I plc
Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II

Class SW Roll-up Shares 9,377
PDD Holdings, Inc. ADR 802
Luxshare Precision Industry Co. Ltd. 595
Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co. Ltd. 540
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd. 449

Tencent Holdings Ltd. 448
Meituan 409
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 401
CRRC Corp. Ltd. 401
SUPCON Technology Co. Ltd. 400
Xuji Electric Co. Ltd. 388
Apple, Inc. 387
Montage Technology Co. Ltd. 379
Zijin Mining Group Co. Ltd. (Class H) 373
Tsingtao Brewery Co. Ltd. 355
Bilibili, Inc. 350
Xi’an Sinofuse Electric Co. Ltd. 350
China Railway Group Ltd. (H Shares) 348
iRay Technology Co. Ltd. 343
Zhongji Innolight Co. Ltd. 333
Piotech, Inc. 333
Chongqing Baiya Sanitary Products Co. Ltd. 294
Sailun Group Co. Ltd. 286

Russell Investment Company 111 plc
Russell Investments U.S. Dollar Cash Fund II
Class SW Roll-up Shares
Sinopharm Group Co. Ltd.
China Construction Bank Corp. (Class H)
Tencent Holdings Ltd.
Kweichow Moutai Co. Ltd.
PICC Property & Casualty Co. Ltd.
NVIDIA Corp.
China Yangtze Power Co. Ltd.
H World Group Ltd.
Wuxi Autowell Technology Co. Ltd.
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.
China State Construction Engineering Corp. Ltd.
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. Ltd. ADR
Maxscend Microelectronics Co. Ltd.
China Railway Group Ltd. (H Shares)
Ningbo Joyson Electronic Corp.
iRay Technology Co. Ltd.
CGN Power Co. Ltd.
China Merchants Bank Co. Ltd. (Hong-Kong listed)
AK Medical Holdings Ltd.

(9,416)
(697)
(652)
(587)
(543)
(522)
(459)
(402)
(384)
(375)
(361)
(347)
(346)
(335)
(320)
(308)
(301)
(301)
(301)
(290)

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases exceeding 1% of total cost of purchases, and sales exceeding
1% of total proceeds. At a minimum the twenty largest purchases and twenty largest sales must be shown. Should there have been
less than that amount of transactions, all such transactions have been disclosed. Securities held to maturity, which matured during the
reporting period, have been excluded from the Statement of Changes in Composition of Portfolio.

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the reference period may be obtained free of charge from the Company’s
Administrator or from the paying agent or paying and information agents in each country of distribution.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

30 September 2024

1.

a)

b)

©)

Basis of Preparation

The Company’s condensed semi-annual unaudited financial statements (the “Financial Statements™) have been prepared for
the six months ended 30 September 2024.

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”) 104: Interim Financial
Reporting (“FRS 104”), the financial reporting standard applicable in the U.K. and Republic of Ireland for preparing
interim financial statements and the provisions of the UCITS Regulations. Accounting standards generally accepted in
Ireland ("Irish GAAP"), in preparing financial statements which present a true and fair view, are those issued by the
Financial Reporting Council.

The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis for all Funds.

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s annual audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024. The statutory auditors’ report in the most recent annual audited financial statements as
at and for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 was unqualified.

Investments on each individual Schedule of Investments less than 500 in value in the presentation currency of the respective
Fund are rounded to zero. The transferable securities listed on each Fund’s Schedule of Investments are listed in the order of
country of incorporation of the respective security and the number of shares, in respect of equities, and the principal
amount, in respect of debt instruments, held have been rounded to the nearest thousand (number of shares are rounded to
zero where less than 500 shares are held).

Basis of measurement, accounting policies and presentation

The basis of measurement and accounting policies applied in preparing these Financial Statements under FRS 104 are
consistent with those applied in preparing the Company’s annual audited financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2024 prepared under FRS 102.

The Company has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds that hold a substantial proportion of
highly liquid and fair valued investments and as a result, the Company is not presenting cash flow statements.

The information required by FRS 104 to be included in a statement of comprehensive income, is, in the opinion of the
Directors, contained in the Profit and Loss Account of the Company and each Fund.

The financial statements of the individual Funds are prepared in the functional currency of the respective Fund. The
functional currency of each Fund is that disclosed on the primary statements of the respective Fund.

The Company has also adopted Euro as the presentation currency. The combined financial statements of the Company are
measured using Euro, being the functional currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates.

For the purpose of producing the Combined Balance Sheet, respective financial period end exchange rates are used. For the
purpose of producing the Combined Profit and Loss Account and the Combined Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders, the average exchange rates for the financial period are used. The
currency gain or loss on re-translation of the opening net assets and the average rate difference arising on the translation of
the Combined Profit and Loss Account and the Combined Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable
Participating Shareholders is included in the Combined Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable
Participating Shareholders. This translation adjustment does not impact the net asset value per share of any of the
individual.

Estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements applied in preparing the Financial Statements are consistent with those applied and disclosed
in the Company’s annual audited financial statements as at and for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.
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Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

30 September 2024

2.

a)

b)

<)

a)

Cash at Bank and Cash Held with/due to Brokers and Counterparties

Cash at Bank

Cash at bank balances are comprised of cash balances held within State Street Bank and Trust Company’s (“State Street”)
custodian network*, unrestricted margin accounts held by brokers for exchange traded derivative instruments held by the
Funds and net unrealised gains and losses on open spot foreign currency exchange contracts. The names of brokers used by
each individual Fund can be found at the base of each relevant Fund’s Schedule of Investments.

Cash held in U.S. Dollar bank accounts with State Street automatically transfer into the demand deposit account at State
Street Bank and Trust New York in the name of State Street Bank and Trust Company - London.

* Certain cash balances may be held by sub-custodians, as approved and appointed by State Street, in markets where State
Street does not operate as a depositary.

Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative instruments

Cash may also be deposited by or on behalf of the Funds for initial margin purposes with brokers for options and futures
contracts and as collateral with counterparties in respect of over the counter financial derivative instruments (“OTC FDIs”)
and To Be Announced (“TBA”) positions held on the Funds. As this amount is the minimum deemed by the brokers and
counterparties for collateral requirements the cash is as such restricted and is reported separately to the unrestricted cash on
the Funds’ Balance Sheets. Cash collateral pledged by counterparties and held by the Funds remains in the ownership of the
relevant counterparty and a related liability to repay the cash is recognised as “Cash due to brokers and counterparties for
financial derivative instruments” on the relevant Fund’s Balance Sheet. See section c) of this note for further details of
same.

Cash due to brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative instruments

Cash amounts may also be pledged as collateral by counterparties to the Funds for OTC FDIs and this cash is held by the
relevant Funds and is payable back to the relevant counterparty. Margin cash amounts may also be owed by the Funds to
brokers for exchange traded Financial Derivative Instruments transactions at each balance sheet date. These amounts are
recognised within “Cash due to brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative instruments” on the respective
Balance Sheets.

The cash amounts pledged as collateral by counterparties form part of the net assets of the respective Funds and a related
asset is included within “Cash held with brokers and counterparties for open financial derivative instruments” on the
Balance Sheet.

Transactions with Related Parties

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or is able to exercise significant
influence over the other party, in making financial or operational decisions. The following entities were related parties to the
Company during the six months ended 30 September 2024 and the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

Details
disclosed in
section of
Relation to the Company Name of entity this note
MaANAZET ...cvevenieiiieieierieerce et Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited .........cccocvvvevvninenninenninenecnceene b), 1)
Principal Money Manager .........ccoceovevervevnenereeenrennnns Russell Investments Limited .........evvevirirerieieneniiinenieeseieeseneeesesiessieseesessessesessens b), ii)
Investment Managers Affiliated Russell Investments entities b), iii)
Affiliated BroKer ......cocevveviveneieniinieinnenereneniessennens Russell Investments Implementation Services INC........cccovvveivirineiiinnceninnceninnene b), iv)
Directors of the COmMpany ..........coceeveevverrerenieenennnne As listed in the Administration of the Company page .......c.ccuververeereriererererenenerenens b), v)
Affiliated Russell Investments entities and Russell Investments managed Irish
Related Party Investors and Investees ........coccoeervennnne AOMICIIEd fUNAS..c.eevevirieiiieiieiiee bbb e b), vi)
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3. Transactions with Related Parties - continued

b) Related Party Transactions

i)  Manager, Management Fee and Performance Fee
The Company has appointed Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited to act as manager of the Company. The
Principal Money Manager is responsible for the general management and administration of the Company’s affairs,
subject to the overall supervision and control of the Directors. Pursuant to the Principal Money Manager and Advisory
Agreement, the Manager has delegated certain investment management functions in respect of each Fund to the Prin-
cipal Money Manager. The Principal Money Manager also acts as distributor for the Funds. The Manager has ap-
pointed the Administrator to act as administrator of the Company.

Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, as Manager is considered a related party to the Company as it is con-
sidered to have significant influence over the Company in its role as Manager. Carne Global Financial Services Lim-
ited, the parent Company of the Manager, received fees amounting to EUR 20,070 during the financial period ended
30 September 2024 (financial period ended 30 September 2023: EUR Nil), in respect of fund governance services to
the Company, of which EUR Nil (financial year ended 30 March 2024: EUR Nil) was payable at period end.

a) Management Fee
For services rendered under the management agreement, the fees of the Manager and the Principal Money Man-
ager are paid out of the below management fees which shall be paid out of the assets of each Fund, calculated and
accrued daily and shall be payable monthly in arrears. Rates are based on the respective average daily net asset
values of each class of shares. The Company shall pay all reasonable out of pocket expenses properly incurred by
the Manager and the Principal Money Manager.

The following management fee rates are effective for the six months ended 30 September 2024 unless otherwise

indicated:
Russell Investments Emerging Russell Investments Russell Investments
Market Debt Local Currency Fund Euro Fixed Income Fund Pan European Equity Fund
Class I AUD Income 1.00% Class B 0.80% Class A 1.60%
Class I Sterling 1.00% Class F 1.60% Class B 1.00%
Class I Sterling Income 1.00% Class I 0.60% Class F 1.80%
Class I USD 1.00% Class P Income 1.00% Class I 0.90%
Class U Euro 2.20% Class S 1.02% Class PAMEU 2.30%
Class R Roll-Up 1.25%
Russell Investments Russell Investments Russell Investments
U.S. Quant Fund ‘World Equity Fund China Equity Fund
Class B 1.00% Class B 0.90% Class A 1.00%
Class C 1.60% Class C 1.60% Class D 1.50%
Class I 0.80% Class D 0.75%
Class P Income 1.50% Class EH-T 0.95%
Class R1 Roll-Up 1.20% Class I 0.90%
Class J 1.60%
Class M 0.60%
Class M Sterling 0.60%
Class N 2.30%
Class P 1.50%
Class R 2.10%
Class SH-B 0.95%
Class TYA 0.68%
Class TYC 0.58%

Rates for classes of shares not yet funded as at 30 September 2024 are not listed.
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iii)

b) Performance Fee
A performance fee (the “Performance Fee”) is payable to the Principal Money Manager and/or the Money Man-
agers in respect of the Russell Investments China Equity Fund on an annual basis as described based on the calcu-
lation methodology as detailed within the prospectus.

No Performance Fees were charged to the Funds during the six months ended 30 September 2024 (six months
ended 30 September 2023: EUR Nil).

Principal Money Manager

The Company and Manager have appointed Russell Investments Limited as Principal Money Manager (the "Principal
Money Manager”) with discretionary powers pursuant to the Principal Money Manager and Advisory Agreement. The
Principal Money Manager fees are paid out of the management fee. The fees payable to the Principal Money Manager
for the support services will be paid out of the assets of the Funds. The Principal Money Manager shall discharge all
fees payable in its capacity as Distributor out of its Management fee.

Investment Managers, Money Managers and Investment Advisers
Russell Investment Management, LLC, is an affiliated group company to the Principal Money Manager. Russell In-
vestments group companies can be appointed as Investment Manager to the Funds.

The appointment of Russell Investments group companies as Investment Manager’s to the Funds is subject to the same
procedures as appointing an external Money Manager or Investment Adviser and an intercompany agreement and in-
vestment guidelines are put in place.

The Principal Money Manager (or its duly appointed delegate) may appoint one or more Investment Advisers who
have expertise in a particular sector and/or asset class. The optimal stock views from the Investments Advisers are ag-
gregated by the Principal Money Manager and the trades are effected by the Principal Money Manager or Investment
Manager (or its affiliate) on a periodic basis with a view to improving trading efficiency, managing portfolio risk bet-
ter and reducing potential transactions costs in respect of the respective Fund’s investments.

The Principal Money Manager shall discharge all fees (except for any Performance Fees) payable to the Money Man-
agers, the Investment Managers and the Investment Advisers out of its Management fee.

Please refer to Administration section for the list of Money Managers, Investment Managers and Investment Advisers
as of 30 September 2024.

Affiliated Broker

The Funds effect certain transactions through RIIS (Russell Investments Implementation Services, LLC and Russell
Investments Implementation Services Limited, collectively called RIIS) and its global network of unaffiliated corre-
spondent brokers. Trades placed through RIIS and its correspondents are made (i) to manage trading associated with
changes in Money Managers, rebalancing across existing Money Managers, cash flows and other portfolio transitions
or (ii) to execute portfolio securities transactions for each Fund’s assets.

RIIS may also be engaged by the Company to carry out foreign currency implementation trading for which a fee of
0.02 per cent per trade is included in individual transactions.

For the financial period ended 30 September 2024, the total commission earned by RIIS, encompassing the range of
services provided, amounted to EUR 204,237 (six months ended 30 September 2023: EUR 250,165).

Directors and Directors’ Fees

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to a fee by way of remuneration at a rate to be deter-
mined from time to time by the Directors. Directors’ fees are paid to non-executive Directors not employed by Russell
Investments group companies. Directors’ fees shall not exceed the limits contained in the prospectus and the Directors
are entitled to certain additional expenses as listed in the prospectus. Directors’ fees charged during the six months
ended were EUR 24,418 (six months ended 30 September 2023: EUR 27,951) these amounts are included in other
fees in the Combined Profit and Loss Account.

All of the Directors are also directors of the Russell Investments Funds discussed in section vi) of this note.
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Transactions with Related Parties - continued

vi)

vii)

The following Directors of the Company were employed by Russell Investments group companies during the six
months ended 30 September 2024: Mr. Peter Gonella, Mr. Neil Jenkins and Mr. William Pearce.

The Principal Money Manager operates a defined contribution pension plan for its employees which invests in Russell
Investments managed funds including the Funds. The pension fund is subject to a management fee rebate. The Direc-
tors who are employed by the Russell Investments group companies may be indirectly exposed to the Company
through the pension scheme.

Related Party Investors and Investees

a) Investment in other Russell Investments Funds
The Funds may invest in the sub-funds of other Russell Investment Funds managed by the Manager as listed in
the table below. Details of the Fund’s investments in these sub-funds can be found in the Schedule of Investments
of each relevant Fund.

Type of Fund Management
Fund Structure Name Structure Fee Rate
Russell Investment Company III plc ...... UCITS Umbrella 0.05% - 0.20%

b) Related Party Shareholders of the Company
During the six months ended 30 September 2024 and the financial year ended 31 March 2024, certain sub-funds
of open-ended investment funds also managed by the Manager and administered by the Administrator were in-
vested in the Funds. In accordance with Section 33 of FRS 102 these entities are deemed related party sharehold-
ers to the Company.

The table below discloses the value of related party shareholders in the Company and the percentage of this value
against the Company’s combined net asset value as at the respective balance sheet dates.

30 September 2024 Company 31 March 2024 Company
Related Party Shareholder EUR ‘000 % EUR 000 %o
Russell Investments Company plc .......c.cccvvernenene 25,358 1.44 23,355 1.35
Russell Investments Qualifying Investor
Alternative Funds PIC.........ccevveviveiiveneeniecnieenns 27,755 1.57 12,646 0.73
Russell Investment Company V plc 44,735 2.54 42,538 2.46

Connected Persons Transactions

Regulation 43 of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations “Restrictions of transactions with connected persons” states
that “A responsible person shall ensure that any transaction between a UCITS and a connected person is conducted a)
at arm’s length; and b) in the best interest of the unit-holders of the UCITS”.

As required under Central Bank UCITS Regulation 81(4), the Directors of the Manager, as responsible persons are
satisfied that there are in place arrangements, evidenced by written procedures, to ensure that the obligations that are
prescribed by Central Bank Regulation 43(1) are applied to all transactions with a connected person; and all transac-
tions with a connected person that were entered into during the period to which the report relates complied with the
obligations that are prescribed by Central Bank Regulation 43(1).

Significant Agreements

Depositary

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited is the Company’s depositary (the "Depositary”). The Depositary has
appointed its parent, State Street Bank and Trust Company, as its global sub-custodian who in turn has appointed a network
of local sub-custodial agents. The sub-custodian fees are paid at annual rates based on the total assets held in each
individual country in which the Funds invest plus applicable transaction charges. In line with the UCITS V Regulations, the
Depositary also provides depositary services.

Depositary fees accrue daily and are paid monthly in arrears.
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Significant Agreements - continued

(ii) Administrator and Transfer Agency

State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited is the Company’s administrator (the "Administrator”). The Administrator is
responsible for the daily determination of net asset value, maintaining the books and records of the Funds in respect of the
Company and other administrative services. The Manager has also appointed the Administrator as the Company’s transfer
agent.

Such fees accrue daily and are paid monthly in arrears. The Company shall discharge reasonable out of pocket expenses
payable to the Administrator out of the Funds’ assets.

The Administrator is also entitled to shareholder services fees as disclosed in the administration agreement and reporting
services fees of USD 7,000 per Fund per annum.

Transfer agency fees are charged based on the number of Funds in the umbrella structure, the number of shareholders,
number of statements issued, number of share classes and volume of shareholder transactions in a period and are subject to
adequate thresholds. Transfer agency fees are charged and paid on a daily basis and are recognised within Administration
and transfer agency fees in the Profit and Loss Account for each Fund.

The depositary and administration fees disclosed in the Profit and Loss Account include minimum fees. If the total of the
minimum fees is in excess of the combined administration and depositary percentage charges, the share class fee, the
reporting service fee and the shareholder service fee, after the deduction of any discount, then this minimum will apply. The
minimum fee for new Funds will be waived for one year from the launch of the new Fund.

The aggregate of the administration and depositary fees will not exceed 0.35 percent of the Net Asset Value of any Fund.

Soft Commissions, Directed Brokerage Services and Commission Recapture

As disclosed in the prospectus for the Company, each of the Investment Managers and Money Managers may enter into
transactions on a soft commission basis, i.e. utilise the services and expertise of brokers in return for the execution of trades
through such brokers.

Where appropriate, any such arrangements will comply with the requirements of Article 11 of the MiFID II Delegated
Directive and any such transaction must be entered into on the principle of best execution and be in the best interests of
Shareholders and must provide benefits that will assist in the provision of investment services to the Company.

During the financial period ended 30 September 2024, the Investment Managers and Money Managers may have effected
transactions through brokers with whom it had arrangements whereby each broker agreed to use a proportion of the
commission earned on such transactions to discharge the broker’s own costs or the costs of third parties providing certain
services to the Investment Managers and/or Money Manager, as the case may be. The services which were paid for under
such arrangements were those permitted under regulatory rules applicable to the relevant Investment Managers and/or
Money Manager, namely those that relate to the execution of transactions on behalf of customers or the provision of
investment research to the relevant Investment Managers and/or Money Manager.

The Money Managers may participate in the Russell Investments’ soft commission and commission recapture programme
(the “Programme”) by executing a portion of their securities transactions through certain brokers (the “Correspondent
Broker Networks”). Any such participation in the Programme is not mandatory and the appropriate participation percentage
target is determined on a Money Manager by Money Manager basis, based upon asset class, investment mandate, trading
habits, and tolerance for participation and is always subject to a Money Manager’s ability to obtain best execution. The
Programme, including the Correspondent Broker Network, is administered by Recapture Services, a division of BNY
ConvergEx Execution Solutions LLC (“BNY”) and State Street Global Markets (“SSGM?”). A portion of the commission
earned by the Correspondent Broker Network as a result of this trading activity is set aside in the Programme as “credits”.
These credits are then earmarked for purchase of third party research (“Soft Commission Credits””) or commission recapture
(“Commission Credits”). All soft commission use through the Programme is overseen by Russell Investments’ soft
commission committee (the “Committee”) which is made up of senior level investment personnel. The Committee, with the
guidance of Russell Investments’ investment strategy committee, establishes an annual soft commission research budget for
the use of the Soft Commission Credits. Soft Commission Credits are used to purchase third party research that will aid
Russell Investments in its investment decision-making process. Research purchased through the Programme is obtained
from unaffiliated third parties at market rates. Once the soft commission research budget has been met the Committee will
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instruct BNY and SSGM to recapture the Commission Credits which are then rebated directly back to the relevant Fund
from which the commission was generated. Russell Investments does not receive any revenue (directly or indirectly from
BNY or any broker) from the commission recapture component of the Programme.

The Investment Working Group ("IWG") oversees any directed brokerage services or similar arrangements and associated
costs to the Funds on an annual basis.

There were no fees for directed brokerage services during the financial period ended 30 September 2024 (financial period
ended 30 September 2023: EUR Nil).

Distributions

Distribution policy

With the exception of Roll-Up Class Shares, the distribution policy of each Fund is to declare distributions out of net
income. Roll-Up Class Shares do not declare or distribute net income and their net asset value reflects net income.
Distributions declared by Income Class Shares are paid in cash unless the shareholder chooses to reinvest part or all of the
amount in the capital of the relevant Share Class. Accumulation Class Shares declare a distribution which is then reinvested
in the capital of the relevant share class.

Distribution Frequency
The distributions in respect of the Funds are calculated and declared on a calendar quarterly basis (i.e. quarterly periods
ended 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December).

Taxation

Under current law and practice the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the
Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended (the “TCA”). Provided the Company continues to be resident for tax purposes
in Ireland and is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland, the Company should not be chargeable to Irish tax on its income
or gains.

However, Irish tax may arise on the occurrence of a “chargeable event”. A chargeable event includes any distribution
payments to shareholders or any encashment, redemption, transfer or cancellation of shares and any deemed disposal of
shares for Irish tax purposes arising as a result of holding shares in the Company for a period of eight years or more.

No Irish tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in respect of a shareholder who is an Exempt Irish Investor (as defined
in Section 739D of the TCA) or who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of
the chargeable event, provided, in each case, that an appropriate valid declaration in accordance with Schedule 2B of the
TCA is held by the Company and the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that
the information contained therein is no longer materially correct or where the Company has been authorised by Irish
Revenue to make gross payments in the absence of appropriate declarations.

Distributions, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Company may be subject to
withholding taxes imposed by the country of origin and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Company or its
shareholders.

The Minimum Tax Directive provides for a European Union wide implementation of the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development (OECD) Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion Profit Shifting (BEPS) Pillar Two rules. The
Pillar Two legislation was enacted in Ireland and is effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2024. The Company
meets the definition of an investment entity under BEPS Pillar Two rules, and the clause within it that seeks to protect the
tax neutrality of investment funds. This excludes the Company from quantitative disclosures under BEPS Pillar Two
requirement along with Qualified Domestic Minimum Rop-up Tax (QDMTT) requirement.
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a)

b)

Number of Shares in Issue and Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders

Authorised Share Capital

The authorised share capital of the Company is 39,000 subscriber shares of no par value and 500 billion participating shares
of no par value. Subscriber shares do not form part of the net asset value of the Company. They are disclosed in the
financial statements by way of this note only.

Holders of subscriber shares are not entitled to dividends or any surplus of assets over liabilities upon the winding-up of the
Company. The subscriber shares are held by Russell Investments.

Redeemable Participating Shares

Each of the shares entitles the holder to participate equally on a pro rata basis in the profits and dividends of the relevant
Fund attributable to such shares and to attend and vote at meetings of the Company and of the relevant Fund represented by
those shares. No class of shares confers on the holder thereof any preferential or pre-emptive rights or any rights to
participate in the profits and dividends of any other class of shares or any voting rights in relation to matters relating solely
to any other class of shares.

Each share represents an individual beneficial interest in the Company. The shares are not debt obligations or guaranteed by
the Company. The return on an investment in the Company will depend solely upon the investment performance of the
assets of the relevant Fund and the increase or decrease (as the case may be) in the net asset value of the shares. The amount
payable to a shareholder in respect of each share upon liquidation of the Company or a Fund will equal the net asset value
per share. However, in a relatively illiquid market, a Fund may not be able to dispose of its investments quickly and as such
a Fund may experience adverse price movements upon liquidation of its investments. Settlement of transactions may be
subject to delay and administrative uncertainties and the price repaid to the shareholders in such circumstances will not
equal the final published net asset value per share.

Net assets attributable to shareholders represent a liability on the Balance Sheet, carried at the redemption amount that
would be payable at the balance sheet date if the shareholder exercised the right to redeem the shares in the Company.

Participating Share Transactions
All cash amounts are in the functional currency of the relevant Fund not the currency of the class.

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Number of Shares in issue

Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024

Beginning Shares Shares End Beginning Shares Shares End
Share Class of period Issued Redeemed of period of period Issued Redeemed of period
Class I AUD
Income.............. 57,805 3,485 (11,463) 49,827 50,596 783 - 51,379
Class I Sterling. 268 3 (12) 259 294 3 (62) 235
Class I Sterling
Income.............. 35,109 - - 35,109 20,726 16,750 (7,132) 30,344
Class I USD...... 13,767 4,382 (779) 17,370 22,941 1,551 (7,524) 16,968
Class U Euro .... 28 - 5) 23 15 - - 15

Value of Share Transactions

Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024

Subscriptions Redemptions Subscriptions Redemptions
Share Class USD 000 USD 000 USD 000 USD *000
Class  AUD
Income.............. 2,024 (6,735) 431 -
Class I Sterling. 4 17) 4 93)
Class I Sterling
Income.............. - - 19,155 (7,889)
Class I USD...... 3,855 (689) 1,416 (6,744)
Class U Euro .... - (5) - -
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Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund
Number of Shares in issue

Six months ended 30 September 2023

Six months ended 30 September 2024

Beginning Shares Shares End Beginning Shares Shares End

Share Class of period Issued Redeemed of period of period Issued Redeemed of period
Class B. 38,157 2,444 (1,362) 39,239 45,503 3,327 (2,833) 45,997
Class F.. 50 - 2) 48 30 - 6) 24
Class Lo 6,148 - (72) 6,076 6,076 - 71) 6,005
Class P Income. 8,835 488 - 9,323 9,081 597 (360) 9,318
Class S....cccvvne 1,758 69 (170) 1,657 1,655 13 - 1,668
Value of Share Transactions

Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024

Subscriptions Redemptions Subscriptions Redemptions

Share Class EUR 000 EUR 000 EUR *000 EUR *000
Class B...oouwuee 4,099 (2,277) 5,923 (5,084)
Class F..cooovevnne - 2) - ®)
Class L..overnnnne () (2)
Class P Income. 6 - 8 (®)]
Class S...covveennee 9 (22) 2 -
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund
Number of Shares in issue

Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024

Beginning Shares Shares End Beginning Shares Shares End

Share Class of period Issued Redeemed of period of period Issued Redeemed of period
Class A ....ceue 993 21 (54) 960 908 45 (24) 929
Class B...oooueuce 13,293 8,770 (9,282) 12,781 16,821 66 (633) 16,254
Class F...oooouevnee 543 22 (19) 546 564 15 (170) 409
Class L...ccounue. 27,524 172 - 27,696 27,876 264 (284) 27,856
Class PAMEU .. 6,361 50 - 6,411 6,461 46 - 6,507
Class R Roll-
| TR 24,427 1,573 (1,287) 24,713 25,070 1,587 (3,776) 22,881
Value of Share Transactions

Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024

Subscriptions Redemptions Subscriptions Redemptions

Share Class EUR 000 EUR 000 EUR ’000 EUR 000
Class A. 36 (C2Y)] 85 (45)
Class B. 16,904 (18,051) 143 (1,366)
Class F.. . 56 (48) 39 (462)
Class L..covvnnee 7 - 12 (14
Class PAMEU .. 1 - 1 -
Class R Roll-
Up.viiiniiiens 309 (252) 345 (843)
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Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Number of Shares in issue

Six months ended 30 September 2023

Six months ended 30 September 2024

Beginning Shares Shares End Beginning Shares Shares End
Share Class of period Issued Redeemed of period of period Issued Redeemed of period
Class B. 2,323,631 173,063 (1,503,432) 993,262 935,576 79,116 (89,383) 925,309
Class C. 2,029 196 (239) 1,986 1,884 915 (541) 2,258
Class L...occuenne. 40,129 718 (958) 39,889 35,545 3,468 (593) 38,420
Class P Income. 206,655 5,877 (24,665) 187,867 173,957 5,903 (14,387) 165,473
Class R1 Roll-
Up.vviiiiniienns 347,148 28,701 (32,150) 343,699 341,803 92,710 (39,889) 394,624
Value of Share Transactions
Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024
Subscriptions Redemptions Subscriptions Redemptions
Share Class USD ’000 USD ’000 USD ’000 USD °000
Class B............. 8,008 (69,527) 4,506 (4,986)
Class C..ovvenee 657 (810) 3,750 (2,375)
Class Lo 45 (61) 269 (48)
Class P Income. 417 (1,773) 527 (1,335)
Class R1 Roll-
Up.oviiiiiiien 602 (677) 2,366 (1,066)
Russell Investments World Equity Fund
Number of Shares in issue
Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024
Beginning Shares Shares End Beginning Shares Shares End
Share Class of period Issued Redeemed of period of period Issued Redeemed of period
Class B............. 13,355,024 707,533 (980,929) 13,081,628 12,053,253 820,291 (684,490) 12,189,054
Class C. 52,064 2,377 (7,401) 47,040 41,722 2,610 (4,310) 40,022
Class D.... . 119,625 7,261 (47,069) 79,817 73,645 6,657 (3,111) 77,191
Class EH-T....... 2,277,537 106,691 (256,933) 2,127,295 1,960,437 44,376 (222,4306) 1,782,377
Class Lo 179,450 10,329 (15,960) 173,819 112,811 2,412 (18,178) 97,045
Class J .oooeennne. 23,050 - - 23,050 3,021 - (3,021) -
Class M ............ 115,052 25,202 (6,542) 133,712 136,262 16,963 (14,651) 138,574
Class M
Sterling 13,609,529 2,818,015 (985,309) 15,442,235 16,025,984 1,400,774 (2,182,053) 15,244,705
Class N. 2,447 58 (131) 2,374 2,497 - (75) 2,422
Class P.. 855,853 13,056 (53,219) 815,690 760,397 33,520 (32,121) 761,796
Class R....coevuee 380,212 660 (178,998) 201,874 128,651 1,301 (39,565) 90,387
Class SH-B....... 116,919 5,555 (4,213) 118,261 115,743 8,894 (7,615) 117,022
Class TYA ........ 1,133,041 - - 1,133,041 1,133,041 - (533,885) 599,156
Class TYC........ 715,144 - - 715,144 715,144 - (126,750) 588,394
Class USD-H
Income.............. 150,574 1,808 (4,155) 148,227 - - - -
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Value of Share Transactions

Six months ended 30 September 2023

Six months ended 30 September 2024

Subscriptions Redemptions Subscriptions Redemptions
Share Class USD 000 USD 000 USD 000 USD *000
Class B..oounee 29,373 (41,100) 40,939 (34,300)
Class C. . 106 (335) 138 (225)
Class D...cooeee 479 (3,112) 519 (242)
Class EH-T....... 2,923 (7,163) 1,415 (7,187)
Class Lo 776 (1,205) 217 (1,639)
Class J.ooovevvennene - - - (130)
Class M ............ 54,166 (14,129) 43,612 (37,547)
Class M
Sterling............. 48,180 (16,935) 28,536 (44.,596)
Class N......o..... 16 (35) - (23)
Class P.....cocuuee 258 (1,049) 775 (746)
Class R....cccoe 200 (55,192) 449 (14,394)
Class SH-B....... 1,999 (1,558) 3,887 (3,340)
Class TYA - - - (16,907)
Class TYC - - - (5,011)
Class USD-H
Income.............. 3,451 (8,000) - -
Russell Investments China Equity Fund
Number of Shares in issue

Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024
Beginning Shares Shares End Beginning Shares Shares End

Share Class of period Issued Redeemed of period of period Issued Redeemed of period

40,292 965 (447) 40,810 24,144 1,375 (1,529) 23,990

8,675 1,716 (1,490) 8,901 11,349 115 (2,279) 9,185
Value of Share Transactions

Six months ended 30 September 2023 Six months ended 30 September 2024

Subscriptions Redemptions Subscriptions Redemptions
Share Class USD ’000 USD ’000 USD 000 USD 000
Class A ....ceuue 1,741 (805) 2,244 (2,467)
Class D.....coeuee 1,720 (1,449) 97 (2,075)

¢) Swing Pricing/Dilution Adjustments

Swing pricing (also known as dilution adjustment) is applied to a Fund once net subscriptions or redemptions for a Fund for
a given dealing day is determined by the Administrator to exceed certain predetermined percentage thresholds relating to a
Fund’s net asset value. In calculating the swing pricing, the net asset value of a Fund is swung by a “swing factor”. Swing
prices will be calculated, and reviewed by the Securities Valuation Committee for the EMEA’s fixed income funds, on a
weekly basis to best reflect and compensate the cost of trading.

The swing factors applied during the six months ended 30 September 2024 ranged from no swing factor to 0.30 per cent on

both subscriptions and redemptions.

The swing factors applied during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 ranged from no swing factor to 0.25 per cent on

both subscriptions and redemptions.
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8. Number of Shares in Issue and Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders - continued
d) Significant Shareholders
The following table details the number of shareholders with significant holdings of at least 20 per cent of the relevant

Fund’s net asset value, the aggregate monetary value and percentage (of that Fund’s net asset value) of that holding as at
30 September 2024.

Number of Value of Aggregate

Significant Holding Shareholding
Fund Shareholders ‘000 as a % of the Fund
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund ........ 1 USD 30,974 37.60
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund.........cc.cocvovviininn. 2 EUR 52,820 62.35
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund .... 1 EUR 27,540 60.23
Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund................. 1 USD 21,816 22.43
Russell Investments World Equity Fund.. 2 USD 923,033 58.22
Russell Investments China Equity Fund .........cccccovveveininiiniencnninenne 1 USD 20,164 35.81

The following table details the number of shareholders with significant holdings of at least 20 per cent of the relevant
Fund’s net asset value, the aggregate monetary value and percentage (of that Fund’s net asset value) of that holding as at
31 March 2024.

Number of Value of Aggregate

Significant Holding Shareholding
Fund Shareholders ‘000 as a % of the Fund
Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund ........ 1 USD 15,680 21.49
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund 2 EUR 52,261 64.15
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund .........ccccoveeiinccennnne 1 EUR 27,458 59.66
Russell Investments World Equity Fund.........cccccvveveinineinenennenennns 2 USD 845,951 55.65
Russell Investments China Equity Fund .........ccccoveveiininiincncnininenns 1 USD 16,227 34.11

9. Efficient Portfolio Management
The Company may enter into securities lending arrangements and repurchase agreements (together “Efficient Portfolio
Management Techniques”) and may invest in OTC FDIs subject to the restrictions set forth in the prospectus and to the
extent consistent with the Fund’s investment objective and policies.

The use of techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities, money market instruments and/or other financial
instruments in which the Funds invest for efficient portfolio management purposes will generally be made for one or more
of the following reasons:

i)  the reduction of risk;

ii)  the reduction of cost; or

iii) the generation of additional capital or income for the relevant Fund with an appropriate level of risk, taking into ac-
count the risk profile of the Fund and the risk diversification rules set out in the UCITS Regulations issued by the
Central Bank.

All the revenues arising from Efficient Portfolio Management Techniques employed shall be returned to the relevant Fund
following the deduction of any direct and indirect operational costs and fees arising. Such direct and indirect operational
costs and fees, (which are all fully transparent) which shall not include hidden revenue, shall include fees and expenses
payable to repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements counterparties and/or securities lending agents engaged by the
Company from time to time. Such fees and expenses of any repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements counterparties and/or
stocklending agents engaged by the Company, which will be at normal commercial rates together with VAT, if any, thereon,
will be borne by the Company or the Fund in respect of which the relevant party has been engaged.

The Principal Money Manager, Money Manager(s), Investment Managers and Investment Advisors on behalf of a Fund may
employ techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities, money market instruments and/or other financial
instruments in which they invest for efficient portfolio management purposes. At any time a Fund may hold a combination
of derivative instruments such as futures contracts, forward contracts, options, swaps, swaptions, forward foreign exchange
contracts, caps, floors and credit derivatives, any of which may be listed or over-the-counter.

None of the Funds entered into securities lending arrangements or repurchase agreements during the financial period ended
30 September 2024 or financial year ended 31 March 2024.
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10. Financial Risks

The activities of each Fund expose them to various financial risks such as market risk (including market price risk, interest
rate risk, and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The portfolio management process seeks to manage risk in a
manner consistent with each Funds objectives.

The Company’s financial risk management objectives and policies applied during the six months ended 30 September
2024 are consistent with those disclosed in the Company’s audited financial statements as at and for the financial year
ended 31 March 2024.

)

Fair valuation hierarchy
FRS 102 Section 11.27 on “Fair Value: Disclosure” requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy of inputs is summarised in the three broad levels listed below.

= Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

= Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is deter-
mined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this
purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value mea-
surement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is
a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety
requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

No significant transfers occurred between the levels during the financial period and prior financial period under re-
view.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Directors. The Directors con-
sider observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and veri-
fiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
include active listed equities and exchange traded derivatives. The Funds do not adjust the quoted price for these in-
struments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2.
These include stale priced listed equities, unlisted equities, bonds, investment funds and OTC FDIs.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently. Level 3 securi-
ties are securities that may be priced by a single pricing vendor or may have prolonged stale prices or may have no
valid market information (indications or comparable security types) available.

Please refer to the base of each Fund’s Schedule of Investments for analysis, within the fair value hierarchy, of each
Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by investment type) measured at fair value at 30 September 2024 and 31 March
2024.
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11. Exchange Rates

Where applicable, the Administrator used the exchange rates listed below to translate foreign currency amounts, market
value of investments and other assets and liabilities into Euro at the following rates for each EUR 1.

30 September 2024 30 September 2024 30 September 2024
Argentine Peso ARS  1,082.3037 Indian Rupee INR 93.5264 Romanian Leu RON 4.9758
Australian Dollar AUD 1.6087 Indonesian Rupiah IDR 16,897.0008 Russian Ruble RUB 103.9322
Brazilian Real BRL 6.0778 Jamaican Dollar IMD 175.4877 Serbian Dinar RSD 117.0402
British Pound GBP 0.8320 Japanese Yen JPY 159.6398  Singapore Dollar SGD 1.4308
Canadian Dollar CAD 1.5077 Malaysian Ringgit MYR 4.6020 South African Rand ZAR 19.2323
Chilean Peso CLP 1,002.1015 Mexican Peso MXN 21.8768 South Korean Won KRW  1,459.4589
Colombian Peso COP  4,658.4328 New Israeli Sheqel ILS 4.1514 Swedish Krona SEK 11.3130
Costa Rican Colon CRC 578.8729 New Taiwan Dollar TWD 353191 Swiss Franc CHF 0.9414
Czech Republic Koruna CZK 25.2160 New Zealand Dollar NZD 1.7541 Thailand Baht THB 359117
Danish Krone DKK 7.4547 Nigerian Naira NGN  1,863.8039 Turkish Lira TRY 38.1547
Dominican Peso DOP 67.3313 Norwegian Krone NOK 11.7550 U.S. Dollar USD 1.1161
Egyptian Pound EGP 53.9052 Paraguayan Guarani PYG 8,696.6709 Ukrainian Hryvnia UAH 45.9232
Ghana Cedi GHS 17.6336  Peruvian Nuevo Sol PEN 4.1511 Uruguayan Peso uYU 46.5170
Hong Kong Dollar HKD 8.6689 Philippine Peso PHP 62.5407 Yuan Renminbi CNY 7.8303
Hungarian Forint HUF 397.1501 Polish Zloty PLN 4.2815
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024

Argentine Peso ARS 926.1053 Indian Rupee INR 90.0747 Romanian Leu RON 4.9701
Australian Dollar AUD 1.6554 Indonesian Rupiah IDR 17,123.3986 Russian Ruble RUB 99.9810
Brazilian Real BRL 5.4060 Jamaican Dollar JMD 166.2180 Serbian Dinar RSD 117.1368
British Pound GBP 0.8549 Japanese Yen JPY 163.4526 Singapore Dollar SGD 1.4576
Canadian Dollar CAD 1.4615 Malaysian Ringgit MYR 5.1116 South African Rand ZAR 20.4511
Chilean Peso CLP 1,059.3179 Mexican Peso MXN 17.9515 South Korean Won KRW  1,453.9499
Colombian Peso COP  4,174.4697 New Israeli Sheqgel ILS 3.9568 Swedish Krona SEK 11.5480
Costa Rican Colon CRC 540.5400 New Taiwan Dollar TWD 34.5638 Swiss Franc CHF 0.9728
Czech Republic Koruna CZK 25.2860 New Zealand Dollar NZD 1.8056 Thailand Baht THB 39.4065
Danish Krone DKK 7.4590 Nigerian Naira NGN  1,409.3999 Turkish Lira TRY 34.9402
Dominican Peso DOP 64.0710 Norwegian Krone NOK 11.7165 U.S. Dollar USD 1.0800
Egyptian Pound EGP 51.1920 Paraguayan Guarani PYG 7,984.9794 Ukrainian Hryvnia UAH 42.3900
Ghana Cedi GHS 14.3100 Peruvian Nuevo Sol PEN 4.0181 Uruguayan Peso uYu 40.5702
Hong Kong Dollar HKD 8.4526  Philippine Peso PHP 60.7122  Yuan Renminbi CNY 7.8056
Hungarian Forint HUF 394.0400 Polish Zloty PLN 4.3068

The Administrator used the average exchange rates for each reporting period as listed below to translate into Euro the Profit
and Loss Account and Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders of those
Funds not prepared in Euro in preparing the Company’s Combined Profit and Loss Account and the Combined Statement of
Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders at the following rates for each EUR 1.

Six months ended 30 September 2024 Six months ended 30 September 2023
U.S. Dollar USD 1.0874 U.S. Dollar usD 1.0849
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12. Comparative Dealing Net Assets

The net asset value per share may include a swing factor if the price had been swung at the financial period end.

Russell Investments Emerging Market Debt Local Currency Fund

Class I
Class IAUD Class I Sterling
Income Sterling Income ClassIUSD  Class U Euro
AUD ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 USD ‘000 EUR ‘000
30 September 2024 42,907 275 26,574 16,576 15
31 March 2024 .......coovvvvvirinne 43,189 341 18,538 20,918 15
Class I
Class IAUD Class I Sterling
Income Sterling Income Class1USD  Class U Euro
AUD GBP GBP USD EUR
Net asset value per share ............
30 September 2024 .................. 835.10 1,169.70 875.76 976.89 979.50
31 March 2024 .......ccoccvviiiiinne 853.60 1,159.19 894.44 911.83 950.41
Russell Investments Euro Fixed Income Fund
Class P
Class B Class F Class 1 Income Class S
EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 EUR ‘000
30 September 2024 ............c..... 84,138 35 151 106 234
31 March 2024 .......ccoovvviiiinne 80,897 43 153 105 226
Class P
Class B Class F Class 1 Income Class S
EUR EUR GBP GBP EUR
Net asset value per share ............
30 September 2024 .. . 1,829.21 1,475.82 25.23 11.38 140.25
31 March 2024 .....c.covvvvvvinine 1,777.83 1,440.15 25.17 11.57 136.46
Russell Investments Pan European Equity Fund
Class R
Class A Class B Class F Class I Class PAMEU Roll-Up
EUR 000 EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000 GBP ‘000 EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000
30 September 2024 .................. 1,794 36,130 1,145 1,111 175 5,149
31 March 2024 .......covvvvvivininne 1,691 35,935 1,521 1,097 168 5,428
Class R
Class A Class B Class F Class I Class PAMEU Roll-Up
EUR EUR EUR GBP EUR EUR
Net asset value per share ............
30 September 2024 . 1,931.02 2,222.82 2,796.20 39.88 26.86 225.01
31 March 2024 .......coovvvivvirinne 1,861.47 2,136.34 2,698.29 39.37 25.98 216.53
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12. Comparative Dealing Net Assets - continued

Russell Investments U.S. Quant Fund

Class P
Class B Class C Class I Income Class R1 Roll-Up
USD ‘000 EUR ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 USD ‘000
30 September 2024 .................. 56,352 9,247 2,471 11,993 11,191
31 March 2024 .......ccoovereennnee 52,118 7,316 2,219 12,277 8,875
Class P
Class B Class C Class I Income Class R1 Roll-Up
USD EUR GBP GBP USD
Net asset value per share ............
30 September 2024 .................. 60.90 4,096.22 64.33 72.48 28.36
31 March 2024 .......ccoovereennnee 55.71 3,883.52 62.42 70.57 25.96
Russell Investments World Equity Fund
Class B Class C Class D Class EH-T Class I Class J Class M
USD ‘000 EUR ‘000 GBP ‘000 EUR ‘000 GBP ‘000 USD ‘000 EUR ‘000
30 September 2024 .................. 646,597 1,998 4,749 55,772 6,889 - 336,903
31 March 2024 .......ccccvverivnnnnee 596,543 2,015 4,485 58,216 7,933 129 318,920
Class B Class C Class D Class EH-T Class I Class J Class M
USD EUR GBP EUR GBP USD EUR
Net asset value per share ............
30 September 2024 .................. 53.05 49.91 61.52 31.29 70.98 - 2,431.21
31 March 2024 .......cccveriinnnnee 49.49 48.29 60.90 29.70 70.32 42.58 2,340.49
Class M
Sterling Class N Class P Class R Class SH-B Class TYA Class TYC
GBP ‘000 USD €000 GBP ‘000 EUR ‘000 GBP ‘000 JPY €000 JPY €000
30 September 2024 .................. 244,503 779 13,933 30,868 41,845 2,888,756 3,512,390
31 March 2024 254,252 755 13,819 42,616 39,085 5,383,238 4,207,879
Class M
Sterling Class N Class P Class R Class SH-B Class TYA Class TYC
GBP USD GBP EUR GBP JPY JPY
Net asset value per share
30 September 2024 .. . 16.04 321.77 18.29 341.50 357.58 4,821 5,969
31 March 2024 .......cccvevvvnnnnee 15.86 302.32 18.17 331.25 337.69 4,751 5,884

Russell Investments China Equity Fund

Class A Class D
USD ‘000 EUR ‘000
30 September 2024 .................. 46,604 8,690
31 March 2024 37,874 8,982
Class A Class D
USD EUR
Net asset value per share ............
30 September 2024 . 1,942.66 946.09
31 March 2024 ......ccccovvevvvenene. 1,568.67 791.43
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13. Segregated Liability

Each Fund will be responsible for paying its fees and expenses regardless of the level of its profitability. The Company has
availed of the segregated liability provisions of the Companies Act. The adoption of segregated liability ensures that liability
incurred on behalf of a Fund will generally be discharged solely out of the assets of that Fund and there can generally be no
recourse to other Funds to satisfy these liabilities. Notwithstanding the foregoing there can be no guarantee that should an
action be brought against the Company in the court of another jurisdiction that the segregated nature of the Funds would
necessarily be upheld.

14. Seasonal and Cyclical Activities

The Company is not subject to seasonal or cyclical activities.

15. Significant Events During the Financial Period
Russell Investment Company II plc was approved for marketing in Spain on 2 April 2024.
The Prospectus for Russell Investment Company II plc was updated on 7 June 2024.
Russell Investment Company II plc was approved for marketing in Portugal on 21 June 2024.

There were no other significant events affecting the Company during the financial period ended 30 September 2024.

16. Significant Events Since the Financial Period End
The Memorandum and Articles of Association for Russell Investment Company II plc were updated on 18 October 2024.

There were no other significant events since the financial period end 30 September 2024.

17. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the Directors on 14 November 2024.
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Details of the indexes used by the Principal Money Manager, Investment Managers, Investment Advisers and Money Managers
appointed for the Funds are set out below:

Fund Name

Investment Manager/Adviser Name

Benchmark Name

Return Type

Currency

Russell Investments Emerging
Market Debt Local Currency Fund
Russell Investments Emerging
Market Debt Local Currency Fund
Russell Investments Euro Fixed
Income Fund

Russell Investments Euro Fixed
Income Fund

Russell Investments Euro Fixed
Income Fund

Russell Investments Pan European
Equity Fund

Russell Investments Pan European
Equity Fund

Russell Investments Pan European
Equity Fund

Russell Investments Pan European
Equity Fund

Russell Investments Pan European
Equity Fund

Russell Investments Pan European
Equity Fund

Russell Investments Pan European
Equity Fund

Russell Investments US Quant
Fund

Russell Investments US Quant
Fund

Russell Investments US Quant
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments World Equity
Fund

Russell Investments China Equity
Fund

Russell Investments China Equity
Fund

114 Appendix |

Barings LLC

Colchester Global Investors
Limited

Russell Investment Limited
FIL Pensions Mgmt

Russell Investment Limited
Russell Investment Limited
Pzena Inv Mgmt, LLC

Russell Investment Limited
INVESCO Asset Mgmt Ltd
Liontrust Inv Part LLP
Numeric Inv LLC

Joh. Berenberg, Gossler & Co.
KG

Russell Investment Management,
LLC

Numeric Inv LLC

Jacobs Levy Equity Mgmt, Inc.
Russell Investment Limited
Russell Investment Limited
Sanders Capital, LLC

Numeric Inv LLC

Nissay Asset Management
Corporation

INVESCO Asset Mgmt Ltd
Wellington Mgmt Co LLP
PineStone Asset Management Inc.
Brandywine Global Investment
Management, LLC

Joh. Berenberg, Gossler & Co.
KG

INVESCO Asset Mgmt Ltd
Keywise Capital Mgmt (HK) Ltd

Bin Yuan Capital (Cayman) Ltd

J.P. Morgan GBI-EM Global
Diversified

J.P. Morgan GBI-EM Global
Diversified

LIBOR 1 Month EUR Rate
FTSE EuroBIG Index
SOFR Overnight Rate Index
MSCI Europe Index

MSCI Europe Index

MSCI Europe Index

MSCI Europe Index

MSCI Europe Index

MSCI Europe Index

MSCI Europe Index

Russell 1000 Index

Russell 1000 Index

Russell 1000 Index

MSCI World Index

MSCI USA

MSCI ACWI Index

MSCI World Index

TOPIX

MSCI Europe ex UK Index
MSCI World Index

MSCI World Index

Russell 1000 Index

MSCI Europe Index

MSCI Europe Index

MSCI CHINA INDEX

MSCI China All Shares Index

Total Return

Total Return

Total Return

Total Return

Total Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Total Return

Total Return

Total Return

Net Return

Total Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

Net Return

USD

USD

EUR

EUR

USD

EUR

EUR

USD

EUR

EUR

EUR

EUR

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD
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Benchmark Name

Return Type Currency

Fund Name Investment Manager/Adviser Name
Russell Investments China Equity Russell Investment Limited
Fund
Russell Investments China Equity Russell Investment Limited
Fund
Russell Investments China Equity Bank of Communications
Fund Schroders Fund Mgmt Co., Ltd.

MSCI China All Shares Index

MSCI China A Onshore Index

MSCI China A Onshore Index

Net Return USD
Net Return USD

Net Return CNH
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